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Chairman’s Statement *E# &

Since 1995, the Group has been in operation in mainland
China as an overseas business with foreign investors, and as a
provider of television production and media services. We have
been publicly listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(“HKSE") for nine years, and have successful made it through
two major global economic crises — the financial tsunami in
2008 and the European economic crisis in 2011. This would
not have been possible without the trust of our investors, the
support of our partners, and the hard work of all our staff.

With such a united front, the Group has successfully entered
into an agreement with the China TV Copyright Protection
Centre (CTCPC), a direct subsidiary of the State Administration
of Radio, Film and Television (SARFT), to form a joint venture.
The main business of the joint venture will be to purchase
overseas TV series and films to be sold and distributed to
broadcasting platforms in China. Through providing content for
TV and new media, this joint venture will be a powerful
addition to our current business platform and partnership with
CCTV to produce TV shows. The combination of producing
local TV shows and introducing overseas productions that form
an extremely high proportion of market share will solidify the
Group's position as a rare and valuable provider of film and
television content in the country. This is truly a breakthrough
for our business.

In June 2012 the Group also introduced a new major
shareholder, Hanny Holdings Limited. As a publicly listed Group
on the HKSE, Hanny Holdings Limited brings with it
exceptionally rich market experience that will inevitably be
beneficial to the Group’s business development. With the
professional knowledge possessed by the new management
team, the Group is expected to have new breakthroughs in its
business model.

After twenty years of untiring hard work, the Group has built
deep and strong collaborating relationships with broadcast
media in China. Coupled with its resources and the Chinese
Government's policy to promote the nation’s cultural industry,
the Group is in an excellent position to strive for exceptional
results.
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On behalf of the Board of Directors, | hereby express my
sincerest gratitude to all of our staff, and to all our national
and international working partners, for your continued support
and effort, in making the Group what it is today.

Dr. LEUNG Anita Fung Yee Maria

Chairman of the Board

Qin Jia Yuan Media Services Company Limited
Hong Kong, 27 March 2013
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The prosperous Chinese economy in recent years laid down the
solid groundwork for the country’s cultural development and is
further facilitated with the promulgation of the National
Framework for Cultural Reform and Development Planning for
the “12th Five-Year Plan” Period (BIZ[+=F J& Hi (b &
BFEREMBEMME)) in February 2012 requiring earnest and
thorough implementation according to actual circumstances by
all government departments across the country. The report of
the 18th Party Congress of the Chinese Communist Party set
out the guidelines and direction to build China into a strong
nation in cultural business by deepening the reformation of
cultural system and enhancing the nation’s strength and
competitiveness. The combination of the above reaffirms the
business direction of the Group’s emphasis on planning,
production and distribution of TV series in the PRC. During the
period, the Group streamlined its operations by disposing of its
entire shareholdings in a non wholly-owned subsidiary
engaged in the marketing business and its 51% interest in a
subsidiary engaged in the outdoor media services in the PRC.
On the other hand, it has partnered with the subsidiary of the
State Administration of Radio Film and Television, China TV
Copyright Protection Center (“the Center”) on the distribution
of foreign films and dramas to new media.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

During the fifteen months ended 31 December 2012, the
Group attained a turnover of HK$478.8 million (for the year
ended 30 September 2011: HK$742.2 million). Loss for the
period was HK$626.2 million (profit for the year ended 30
September 2011: HK$54.5 million). The loss for the current
period was arrived at after charging administrative and other
operating expenses of HK$93.5 million (for the year ended 30
September 2011 HK$93.5 million); loss on disposal of
subsidiaries of HK$45.0 million (for the year ended 30
September 2011: HKS$Nil); impairment of certain aged
receivables of HK$173.1 million (for the year ended 30
September 2011: HK$Nil) in relation to its advertising business
that will not be further developed; impairment loss for
intangible assets of HK$291.1 million (for the year ended 30
September 2011: HK$Nil); finance costs of HK$159.7 million
(for the year ended 30 September 2011 : HK$79.0 million);
income tax of HK$49.8 million (for the year ended 30
September 2011: HK$5.7 million) and after crediting the
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change in fair value of derivative financial instruments of
HK$40.9 million (for the year ended 30 September 2011
HK$22.8 million).

During the fifteen months ended 31 December 2012, the
Group has shifted its operational focus onto the partnership
with China Central Television (“CCTV") and working with
major provincial TV stations to produce large-scale and high-
quality TV series that will be premiered on CCTV's channels
and/or major provincial TV channels including satellite
channels. The rate of coverage and ratings of premiere on
CCTV's channels and major satellite channels are far more
superior. Certain TV series were under planning and
production stage during the period and it is expected the
contribution generated from these TV series to both revenue
and the bottom-line shall only be crystallized upon the launch
of these series in late 2013. Consequently turnover of the
Group for the fifteen months ended 31 December 2012 was
lowered than that for the year ended 30 September 2011.

During the fifteen months ended 31 December 2012, there
was an one-off financial impact from the early redemption of
the interest-bearing convertible notes in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$90,669,693 due in 2015 issued by the
Company comprising effective interest of approximately HK$50
million calculated in accordance with Hong Kong Accounting
Standards 32 and 39.

The major broker of the Company for selling of the Company's
film library in the PRC was undergoing an internal
restructuring during the period and the sales and marketing
activities for the Company in respect of the film library were
significantly slowed down. Consequently no sales of film library
were recorded during the fifteen months ended 31 December
2012. In view that there is lack of current sales data, the
directors considered that it would not have sufficient data to
support a self-evaluation of the fair value as of 31 December
2012 for purpose of the impairment assessment. BMI
Appraisals Limited (“BMI”), an independent qualified
professional valuer with professional qualifications and recent
experiences in the valuation of similar intangible assets was
engaged by the Company to conduct a fair valuation.
Comparing the fair value as provided by BMI and the carrying
value of the intangible assets as at 31 December 2012, the
Company determined that an impairment of HK$291.1 million
has to be recognised.
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Impairment loss for certain aged accounts receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables in aggregate of
approximately HK$173.1 million was made for the fifteen
months ended 31 December 2012 (for the year ended 30
September 2011: HK$Nil). The aged accounts receivables were
mainly in connection with the Group's advertising business.
During the June 2012 interim review, the management of the
Company, after a high level review and considered that the
aging of these receivables was relatively recent and the
counter parties did not refuse to pay or raised any dispute,
determined that no provision for doubtful debt is required.
Further follow up actions taken thereafter but without
satisfactory response. During the full financial period end
closing, the management of the Company after thorough
assessment on the recoverability of these receivables,
determined that a provision for impairment is necessary for
prudent sake. The management of the Company shall take
further stronger action available to chase after the debt. In
previous years, the Group has also made certain payments for
the purchase of air-time on certain PRC television channels for
its advertising business. While the Company has scaled down
its advertising operations since the end of 2011, the possibility
of utilization of these air-time is considered remote.
Consequently the directors of the Company determined that a
provision for impairment loss is necessary. The Company has
also paid certain deposits for the acquisition of certain PRC TV
series a few years ago and made payments for developing
certain business projects which the Group previously planned
to pursue. Due to the change of market conditions, the
Company decided not to proceed with the project originally
planned to pursue. Accordingly, the Company considered that
a provision for impairment is necessary.

On 22 October 2012, the Company announced that it has
completed the disposal of 51% of the issued share capital of
an investment holding company with investment in the outdoor
media advertising business in the PRC at the total
consideration of HK$75 million to be settled by HK$15 million
in cash and HK$60 million (“Consideration Receivable”), with
maximum revenue of HK$20 million per year depending on the
amount of business that the Group is able to secure, which
shall be satisfied by a cooperation agreement whereby the
purchaser grants the rights to sell advertising time on certain
LED display screens within the PRC to a subsidiary of the
Group, for a fixed term of three years commencing from the
date of completion. As announced, based on the unaudited
balance sheet as at 30 June 2012, the expected gain before tax
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from the disposal was approximately HK$1.6 million for
illustrative purpose. While finalizing the results of the Company
for the fifteen months ended 31 December 2012 in a couple of
days before the date of the Company’'s 2012 final results
announcement, the directors after due consideration of the
nature of the Consideration Receivable, did not recognise such
advertising rights as an intangible asset under HKAS 38 since
the exercise of the rights for each adverting time slot requested
by the Group is subject to the purchaser's agreement.
Accordingly the Consideration Receivable could not be
recognised as an asset until the realisation of income is certain,
therefore minimal value has been assigned to such rights as at
the date of disposal. On this basis, a loss on disposal of the
subsidiary of HK$58.1 million was recognised in profit or loss
for the fifteen months ended 31 December 2012.

Notwithstanding the Group resulted a loss for the period, the
earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation and
amortization prior to taking into account i) the impairment loss
for accounts receivable, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables; and ii) impairment loss for intangible assets, were
approximately HK$118.3 million. The directors of the Company
are of the opinion that the financial position of the Company
remains strong.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group adopts a prudent funding and treasury policy with
regards to its overall business operation. As at 31 December
2012, the Group’s cash level stood at HK$167.2 million (30
September 2011: HK$301.2 million). The balances are mainly in
Hong Kong Dollar and Renminbi. With cash in hand and
banking facilities available, the Group has sufficient financial
resources to satisfy its commitments and working capital
requirements.

As at the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding bank
borrowings of approximately HK$429.1 million, comprising
bank borrowings and bank overdrafts of HK$417.2 million and
mortgage bank loans of HK$11.9 million. All the Group's
borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong Dollar and
Renminbi.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had an outstanding

principal amount of convertible bonds of HK$150.0 million (30
September 2011: HK$240.7 million).
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On 10 February 2012, the Company completed the rights issue
pursuant to which 3,742,660,840 shares of US$0.01 each by
way of rights issue on the basis of four rights share for every
one share at a subscription price of HK$0.08 per rights share.
These newly issued shares rank pari passu in all respects with
the existing shares. Of the total consideration of HK$299.4
million received, HK$291.9 million has been credited to share
capital.

On 28 November 2012, the Company proposed to raise gross
proceeds of not less than approximately HK$164.1 million and
not more than approximately HK$172.7 million before
expenses, by way of rights issue. Pursuant to the rights issue,
the Company shall allot and issue not less than 468,798,074
rights shares and not more than 493,294,716 rights shares at
a subscription price of HK$0.35 per rights share, on the basis
of one rights share for every one share. The rights issue
became unconditional on 26 March 2013 and the total
consideration of HK$164.1 million was raised.

The gearing ratio (expressed as a percentage of total
borrowings net of pledged deposits over total equity of the
Group) was 52.4% (30 September 2011: 34.3%).

MORTGAGES AND CHARGES

As at 31 December 2012, bank deposits of HK$112.1 million
(30 September 2011: HK$89.3 million) were pledged to banks
to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.

As at 31 December 2012, mortgage bank loans of HK$11.9
million (30 September 2011: HK$57.0 million), were secured by
the Group's land and buildings with carrying value of HK$23.7
million (30 September 2011: HK$108.1 million).

As at 31 December 2012, the entire amount of issued share
capital of certain subsidiaries held by the Company is pledged
for convertible notes with outstanding principal amount of
HK$100.0 million (30 September 2011: HK$100.0 million).
Aggregate net assets held by those subsidiaries amounted to
HK$7.1 million (30 September 2011: HK$28.8 million), which
consist of purchased licence rights with carrying value of
HK$305.2 million (30 September 2011: HK$322.9 million).
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MATERIAL DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Disposal of a non wholly-owned subsidiary

Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 28 June
2012, QJY Marketing Group Company Limited, a subsidiary of
the Company, disposed of its entire equity interest in Triangle
Marketing Services Company Limited at a total consideration of
HK$6 million, resulting in a gain of HK$4,043,000 recognised
in the consolidated income statement.

Disposal of 51% interest in a subsidiary engaged in
the outdoor media services in the PRC

On 22 October 2012, the Group completed the disposal of
51% of the issued share capital of an investment holding
company with investment in the outdoor media advertising
business in the PRC at the total consideration of HK$75 million
to be settled by HK$15 million in cash and HK$60 million,
with maximum revenue of HK$20 million per year depending
on the amount of business that the Group is able to secure,
which shall be satisfied by a cooperation agreement whereby
the purchaser grants the rights to sell advertising time on
certain LED display screens within the PRC to a subsidiary of
the Group, for a fixed term of three years commencing from
the date of completion.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

There have been no significant changes in the Group’s policy
in terms of exchange rate exposure. Transactions of the Group
are mainly denominated either in Hong Kong Dollar or
Renminbi. However, the management monitors closely the
exposures and will consider hedging the exposures should the
need arise.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 2 November 2012, the Company announced that it
proposed to reorganise its capital structure by consolidating
every 10 issued and unissued shares into one consolidated
share of par value US$0.10 each, and subsequently reducing
the nominal value of each issued consolidated share from
US$0.10 to US$0.01. The resultant share capital became
US$10,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000 shares of US$0.01
each, which has been increased to US$100,000,000 divided
into 10,000,000,000 shares of US$0.01 each. The above
capital restructuring was approved by the shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company on 21
December 2012 and the capital restructuring took effect on
26 February 2013.
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On 22 March 2013, 97 valid acceptances in respect of a total
of 291,312,000 right shares provisionally allotted under the
rights issue have been received, representing approximately
62.14% of the total number of right shares available under the
right issues and 96 valid applications for a total of 24,941,191
excess rights shares have been received, representing
approximately 5.32% of the total number of rights shares
available under the rights issue.

Based on the above results, the rights issue was under-
subscribed by 152,544,883 rights shares, representing
approximately 32.54% of the total number of rights shares
available under the rights issue. In accordance with the terms
of the underwriting agreement, the underwriter had
performed its underwriting obligations and had procured
subscribers to subscribe for all the untaken rights shares.

The conversion price of the outstanding 2012 convertible
bonds was adjusted from HK$7.43 per share to HK$7.11 per
adjusted share with effect from 8 March 2013 as a result of
the Rights Issue.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had a total staff of 90
(30 September 2011: 154). Employees are remunerated based
on their performance, experience and the prevailing industry
practices, with compensation policies and packages being
reviewed on a regular basis. Bonus payments are discretionary
and depend on both the Group’s performance and the
performance of the individual employee. Benefits include
retirement schemes, medical and dental care insurance and
share option scheme.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend
for the fifteen months ended 31 December 2012 (for the year
ended 30 September 2011: final dividend in scrip form of
HKO.03 cent per share with cash option).
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Following the approval of the super-ministry reform by the
12th National People’s Congress and the uproaring marketing
demand of both domestic and offshore TV dramas, the Group
sees it more advantageous to develop its business of planning,
production and distribution of TV series in the mainland.
Furthermore, the Group shall put further resources to invest
and enrich its film library and speed up its pace to move
forward the business of the joint venture with the Center and
it is expected that the investment with the Center shall start
making contribution to the results of the Group in the second
half of 2013.

In the coming years, the Group shall continue to put resources
to strengthen and broaden its position in the market to
enhance shareholders’ wealth.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LAl Tsz Wah, aged 49, was appointed as an executive
Director and chief executive officer of the Company on 25
June 2012 and 9 July 2012, respectively. He is a member of
the nomination committee and also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lai has more than 25 years
of experience in auditing, accounting and finance in
international accounting firms and listed companies. Mr. Lai
holds a master degree in business administration from the
University of Warwick. He is a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and a
fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Mr. GUO Hong, aged 53, was appointed as an executive
Director on 28 May 2012. He is a director of several subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Guo is the General Manager and a
director of HuaXia Qin Jia Yuan Culture and Communication
Company Limited (“HuaXia”), a joint venture company between
the Group and Hua Xia Industrial (Holdings) Limited. He is also
a director of It REB EM&K T R L EEBR A A (Beijing
HuaXia Qin Jia Yuan Culture and Communication Company
Limited*), a wholly-owned subsidiary of HuaXia. Mr. Guo
obtained university education by studying Administration
Management for three years at Wuhan University. Mr. Guo is
the vice president of A EI5E B # B X {t % & (China Disabled
Persons’ Federation Hua Xia Culture Group*), a state-operated
social and charity organization.

* for identification purpose only

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. LEUNG Anita Fung Yee Maria, aged 64, is the co-
founder and was the chief executive officer of the Group since
October 2002. She was re-designated from an executive
Director to a non-executive Director on 9 July 2012 and
remains as the chairman of the Company.

Dr. Leung holds a Doctorate degree (major in Chinese History)
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. She has more
than 39 years’ experience in media industry, having brought
her talent into full play in the areas of TV program
production, public relations, advertising and marketing for
more than 32 years.

Dr. Leung worked for a number of companies in Hong Kong in
senior management position, including Sun Hung Kai Securities
Limited, Ogilvy & Mather Advertising and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Dr. Leung had
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established a recruitment agency in Hong Kong from late 70’s
to mid 80’s, which was the first agency to introduce Filipino
domestic helpers for families in Hong Kong.

Dr. Leung is also a renowned novelist in Hong Kong and the
PRC with a novel series with financial and economic
background. She has published more than 100 novels and
essays since 1989. Dr. Leung founded Qin Jia Yuan Publishing
Company in 1990. In 1992, Dr. Leung was awarded the Writer
of the Year 1991 Award by the Hong Kong Artists’ Guild.

In 1992, People’s Literature Press, a grade-A state literary
publishing house, started publishing Dr. Leung's series novels.
The news was broadcast by China Central Television (“CCTV")
at the 19:00 Xinwen Lianbo and she was the first overseas
writer to receive the honour. The publishing house also printed
a book of “The Phenomenon of Anita Leung Fung Yee”, a
collection of literary criticism about Dr. Leung’s novels, after
her novels had been all the rage in China.

In addition, her novel “Old Sores Unlimited” won the Grand
Prix Award for novels in the third “Legendary” contest
organized by Legendary Magazine Corporation in China. Novels
written by Dr. Leung were the best selling books in National
Capital Book Fair in Beijing in 1994, 1995 and 1996. In 1995,
one of Dr. Leung’s work obtained Special Award in the
Seventh Straits Sentiments Essay Contest organized by China
Central Broadcasting Radio.

Furthermore, Dr. Leung’s novels have been adapted for movies
and TV drama series in the PRC, Taiwan and Hong Kong from
time to time during these years. Her novel “Embroidered
Banner” was adapted to a TV drama series by China Central
Television, as broadcast during prime time on Channel One of
CCTV in 1996.

Dr. Leung was a member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (“CPPCC") of Beijing in the PRC and
has been elected as a member of the Twelfth National
Committee of the CPPCC in the PRC in 2013. She is also a
member of Board of Trustees of Chung Chi College, The
Chinese University of Hong Kong, chairman of the Committee
of Overseers of Lee Woo Sing College, The Chinese University
of Hong Kong and a standing committee member of the
Chinese General Chamber of Commerce. Dr. Leung is the
spouse of Dr. Wong, co-founder and a former non-executive
chairman of the Company. Dr. Leung is also a director of
several subsidiaries of the Company.
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Mr. Peter Alphonse ZALDIVAR, aged 45, joined the Group
in July 2010. He graduated from the University of Wisconsin-
Madison with a Bachelor of Arts in Economics in 1989. He
obtained a Juris Doctor, cum laude, from Harvard Law School
in 1994. Mr. Zaldivar is a Chartered Financial Analyst and a
member of the CFA Institute and CFA Society of Chicago. Mr.
Zaldivar has worked with various asset management
companies. He is a principal and co-founder of Kabouter
Management LLC, a Chicago based investment management
firm.

Mr. LAM Haw Shun, Dennis, JP, aged 66, an alternate
Director to Mr. Peter Alphonse ZALDIVAR, a non-executive
Director, effective from 30 April 2012. He joined the Group in
May 2004 as an independent non-executive Director and was
re-designated as a non-executive Director on 8 July 2010. Mr.
Lam resigned as a non-executive Director on 22 March 2012.
Mr. Lam has a Bachelor’'s degree in Electrical Engineering from
the University of Washington and a Master of Business
Administration degree from the University of California, Los
Angeles. Mr. Lam has over 31 years experiences in the finance
industry. Prior to his current appointment, Mr. Lam has held
senior positions in various financial institutions. He was a
senior adviser of Mizuho Securities Asia Limited. Mr. Lam was
also the first vice chairman of the Stock Exchange and first
deputy chairman of HKSCC.

Dr. LIN Junbo, aged 41, joined the Group in May 2011. Dr.
Lin holds a doctorate degree of Economics from Zhejiang
University. Dr. Lin joined the Xinhu Group in April 1999 and is
the chairman of Xinhu Group Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries —
Xinhu Zhongbao Co., Ltd., the shares of which are listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange and Xiangcai Securities Co., Ltd.
Xinhu Zhongbao Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the real estate, finance and other investment
businesses in the PRC whereas Xiangcai Securities Co., Ltd. is
principally engaged in the securities brokerage business in the
PRC. The Xinhu Group is a group of companies engaging in
finance, energy, real estate and equity investments in the PRC.
Dr. Lin is a director of Hong Kong Xinhu Investment Co.,
Limited and Shanghai Great Wisdom Co., Ltd., the shares of
which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. SZETO Wai Ling, Virginia, aged 50, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 31 August 2012.
She is also the chairman of the remuneration committee and a
member of the audit committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Ms. Szeto is a practising solicitor
in Hong Kong and a solicitor of the Supreme Court of England
and Wales. She is currently the sole practitioner of Szeto
Virginia & Co, Solicitors. Ms. Szeto was the head of legal
department of New World Development Company Limited, the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Ms. Szeto holds a Bachelor of Laws Degree from
Oxford Brookes University and a Master of Science Degree in
Criminal Justice Policy from The London School of Economics
and Political Science.

Mr. FUNG Ho Leung, Arthur, aged 50, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 31 August 2012. He is
also the chairman of the audit committee and the nomination
committee and a member of the remuneration committee of
the Company. Mr. Fung has many years of experience in
accounting firms. He is a practicing Certified Public Accountant
in Hong Kong, and holds a fellow membership of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
membership of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Fung holds a Master of Business Administration from the
University of Strathclyde in the United Kingdom.

Mr. YEUNG Chung Hang, Patrick, aged 39, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 18 January 2013.
He is a member of the audit committee and the remuneration
committee of the Company. He has over 15 years of
experience in investment banking and private equity in the
Asia Pacific region. He is currently a managing director of
Crosby Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited and a director
of BlackPine Private Equity Partners. Mr. Yeung holds a
Bachelor of Science degree from the Massachusetts Institute of
Technology in Electrical Science and Engineering.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The senior management of the Group comprises the executive
Directors who held office during the period from 1 October
2011 to 31 December 2012 (“Senior Management”).
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The board (the “Board”) of directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) and the management are committed to uphold a
high standard of corporate governance to safeguard the
interests of shareholders of the Company and the Company as
a whole.

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (effective until 31
March 2012) and was revised and renamed as Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (effective
from 1 April 2012) (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

During the period from 1 October 2011 to 31 December 2012,
the Company was in compliance with the code provisions set
out in the CG Code except the following deviations:

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles
and responsibilities of chairman and chief executive officer
should be divided. Dr. Leung Anita Fung Yee Maria (“Dr.
Leung”) has the combined role of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer since 22 March 2012 and after the retirement
of Dr. Honourable Wong Yu Hong, Philip, GBS. As announced
on 25 June 2012, Dr. Leung resigned and Mr. Lai Tsz Wah was
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer with effect from 9
July 2012 and Dr. Leung remained as the Chairman. Since then
the roles and responsibilities of chairman and chief executive
officer are separated.

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code provides that the non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term and
subject to re-election. The independent non-executive Directors
are not appointed for a specific term but they are subject to
retirement at the first general meeting after their appointment
and thereafter subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company (the “Articles”).

Code Provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4 provides that issuers should
establish a nomination committee which is chaired by the
chairman of the board or an independent non-executive
director and comprise a majority of independent non-executive
directors with written terms of reference and make available of
such terms of reference on the websites of the Stock Exchange
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and the Company. Issuers should provide the nomination
committee sufficient resources to perform its duties, etc. For
the period from 1 April 2012 to 30 August 2012, the
Company had not established a nomination committee.
However, the Nomination Committee of the Company has
been established on 31 August 2012 with its written terms of
reference of which is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

Code provision C.1.2 of the CG Code requires that
management should provide all members of the Board with
monthly updates giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the issuer’s performance, position and prospects
in sufficient detail to enable the Board as a whole and each
director to discharge their duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter
13 of the Listing Rules. Updates on the Group's business were
not provided to the Board members on a monthly basis.
However, the management has provided monthly updates since
December 2012 on a monthly basis.

Code provision D.1.4 of the CG Code requires that issuers
should have formal letters of appointment for directors setting
out the key terms and conditions of their appointment. Some
Directors appointed during the period have not yet entered
into formal letters of appointment. However, the Directors shall
be subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Articles. In addition, the Directors are required to refer to the
guidelines set out in “A Guide on Directors’ Duties” issued by
the Companies Registry and “Guidelines for Directors”
and “Guide for Independent Non-executive Directors” (if
applicable) published by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors
in performing their duties and responsibilities as Directors.

Code provision E1.2 of the CG Code requires the chairman of
the board to attend the annual general meeting. The then
Chairman, Dr. Honourable Wong Yu Hong, Philip, GBS did not
attend the annual general meeting held on 21 March 2012
due to his personal commitment. In addition, due to personal
commitments, the independent non-executive directors did not
attend an extraordinary general meeting of the Company held
on 30 March 2012 to approve a transaction subject to
independent shareholders’ approval.

The Board will continue to monitor and review the Company’s

corporate governance practices to ensure compliance with the
CG Code.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code for
Securities Transactions”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Confirmations have been sought
from the Directors that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions throughout the period from 1 October 2011 or
their respective date of appointment as Directors to 31
December 2012. The Board has also adopted the Model Code
for Securities Transactions as guidelines for relevant employees
in respect of their dealings in the securities of the Company.

THE BOARD

Role of Directors

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for leading the
Company in a responsible and effective manner. Every Director
is charged to act in the best interest of the Company and
contribute to the Company with their expertise and
knowledge. The Board decides on overall strategies and
monitors the Group’s performance on behalf of the
shareholders.

Composition
The Board currently comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors
Mr. LAl Tsz Wah (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. GUO Hong

Non-Executive Directors
Dr. LEUNG Anita Fung Yee Maria (Chairman)
Mr. Peter Alphonse ZALDIVAR
(with Mr. LAM Haw Shun, Dennis, JP as his alternate director)
Dr. LIN Junbo

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. FUNG Ho Leung, Arthur

Ms. SZETO Wai Ling, Virginia

Mr. YEUNG Chung Hang, Patrick

The diversified expertise and experience of the non-executive
Directors contribute significantly in advising management on
strategy and policy development. The non-executive Directors
also serve to ensure that a high standard in financial and other
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mandatory reporting is maintained and to provide adequate
checks and balances for safeguarding the interests of the
shareholders and the Company as a whole. Having considered
the functions of non-executive Directors, particularly their role
in checks and balances, it is considered that there is a
reasonable balance between the executive and non-executive
Directors on the Board.

Dr. Leung is the spouse of Dr. Honourable Wong Yu Hong,
Philip, GBS, former Director and Chairman of the Board. Save
as disclosed therein, the Directors have no other financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships with
each other.

Non-compliance of Rule 3.10(1), Rule 3.10A and Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules

Following the resignation of Mr. Lau Hon Chuen, GBS, JP on 8
August 2012, the number of independent non-executive
Directors and members of Audit Committee of the Company
had fallen below the minimum number required under Rule
3.10(1), Rule 3.10A and Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. On 31
August 2012, Mr. Fung Ho Leung, Arthur and Ms. Szeto Wai
Ling, Virginia had then been appointed as independent non-
executive Directors of the Company and Mr. Wayne Chou
resigned as an independent non-executive Director. Thereafter,
the number of independent non-executive Directors and the
members of the Audit Committee of the Company are three
and the number of independent non-executive Directors of the
Company represents at least one-third of the Board which in
full compliance with the requirements under Rule 3.10(1), Rule
3.10A and Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules from 31 August 2012.

On 22 October 2012, Mr. Hui Koon Man, Michael resigned as
independent non-executive Director and member of Audit
Committee of the Company. The number of independent non-
executive Directors and members of Audit Committee of the
Company had fallen below the minimum number required
under Rule 3.10(1), Rule 3.10A and Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules. On 18 January 2013, Mr. Yeung Chung Hang, Patrick
was appointed as independent non-executive Director of the
Company. Thereafter, the number of independent non-
executive Directors and the members of the Audit Committee
of the Company are three and the number of independent
non-executive Directors of the Company represents at least
one-third of the Board which in full compliance with the
requirements under Rule 3.10(1), Rule 3.10A and Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

As at the date of this report, Mr. Fung Ho Leung, Arthur, one
of the independent non-executive Directors has appropriate
accounting or related financial management expertise as
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The Board has
received from each independent non-executive Director a
written annual confirmation of their independence and is
satisfied with their independence in accordance with the
Listing Rules. The Company considers that all independent
non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent.

Non-Executive Directors
Each of the non-executive Directors was appointed for a
specific terms of either one or two years.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

In accordance with the CG Code and the Articles, all Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) are subject to
retirement by rotation once every three years. Composition of
the Board will be reviewed regularly to ensure that it covers a
balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company. The Directors’
profile is set out on pages 21 to 24.

During the period, Mr. Lai Tsz Wah, Mr. Guo Hong, Mr. Fung
Ho Leung, Arthur and Ms. Szeto Wai Ling, Virginia were
appointed as Directors. The appointment of the above new
directors is a matter for consideration and decision by the full
Board. Only the most suitable candidates who are experienced
and competent and able to fulfill the fiduciary duties and
duties of skill, care and diligence are considered. During the
period, the Board as a whole is responsible for agreeing to the
appointment of its new members and for nominating
appropriate person for election or re-election pursuant to the
Articles for shareholders’ approval at the annual general
meeting.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

As at the date of this report, the positions of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company are currently
held by Dr. Leung and Mr. Lai Tsz Wah respectively. The
Chairman is responsible for ensuring that the Board is
functioning properly, with good corporate governance practices
and procedures. She also steers the Board and the Company
towards corporate goals. The Chief Executive Officer is
responsible for effective implementation of the overall
strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board as well as the
daily operation of the Group.
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With the support of the Chief Executive Officer, the Chairman
seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
brought up at Board meetings and receive adequate and
reliable information in relation to matters discussed at Board
meetings and also other affairs of the Group on a timely
basis.

Directors’ Duties

The Directors are continually updated with the regulatory
requirements, business activities and development of the
Company to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.
Through regular Board meetings, all Directors are kept abreast
of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as required under the CG Code. The roles
and functions of the Board in respect of corporate governance
function are set out in code provision D.1.3 of the CG Code.

The Board had considered the following corporate governance
matters for the period from 1 October 2011 to 31 December
2012 :

— Adoption of corporate governance duties under the CG
Code.

—  Establishment of the Nomination Committee.

— Adoption of revised CG Code as the Company’'s code of
corporate governance practices.

— Review the usage of annual caps on the continuing
connected transactions of the Group.

— Review the compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
of this corporate governance report.

Board Delegation

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for setting
overall corporate strategies; evaluation of the performance of
the Group and the management; and approval of matters that
are of a material or substantial nature. Supported by senior
management members, the Chief Executive Officer is
responsible for effective implementation of the Board's
decisions and the day-to-day operations of the Group.
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Board Process ESEERF
During the period from 1 October 2011 to 31 December 2012, HK-Z——F+A—HEZ_FT——F+
the Board has scheduled meetings at regular interval and —A=+—HHH S rFrFHLE7e

additional board meetings were held as and when necessary. % @ WHEMBBE R TR RV EE BHNE
The Directors participated in person or through electronic TEZE€&€#  -EFAHHFNFBET
means of communication. The attendance of each Director at B ARG - KFEELFEES 5
board meetings and general meetings are set out as follows: MR A& 2B REH AT :

Name of Directors

Esla
No. of Board No. of general
meetings meetings
attended/No. attended/No.
of Board of general
meetings meetings
eligible to eligible to
Executive Directors attend attend
HITES HEESE
BERRE & Bx R
FEABHRE XEXE
EExE AEABLURE
BRI BEXEXH
Mr. LAl Tsz Wah (Chief Executive Officer) $8F 4 4 (77 48 %) 8/8 11
(appointed on 25 June 2012 and (R=ZF——FXHA=-+7h
as Chief Executive Officer effective HEZE ITH—F—=
from 9 July 2012) F+ANHELETBAR
)
Mr. GUO Hong FAEER-ZF—-F 7/8 0/1
(appointed on 28 May 2012) AAZFNNHAEZ(F)
Mr. YIU Yan Chi, Bernard BERAHREER=F—=F 4/7 1/2
(resigned on 22 March 2012) =A== HAFE)
Mr. TSIANG Hoi Fong BRAERER-ZF—ZF 6/7 172
(retired on 21 March 2012) =A==+ —HRME)
Mr. YEUNG Ching Wan BEESRE(FEEABFL) 5/7 2/2
(former Chief Financial Officer) (R-_EF——F=HA—+—
(resigned on 22 March 2012) H & 1F)
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Name of Directors
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BHE

EEps
No. of Board No. of general
meetings meetings
attended/No. attended/No.
of Board of general
meetings meetings
eligible to eligible to
Non-Executive Directors attend attend
EBITES HEESE
BERRE HERE
EERBHE XKERE
EEE EERBRHE
BHEAYH BREXERY
Dr. LEUNG Anita Fung Yee Maria 2EEBL(EE) 19/20 3/4
(Chairman) (resigned as Chief Executive (R-ZZF—=—F+HNH
Officer and redesignated to Non- BEIT 7T AB 3 R T F 73
executive Director on 9 July 2012) FFHTEZE)
Mr. Peter Alphonse ZALDIVAR Peter Alphonse ZALDIVAR 10/20 0/4
Vige
Mr. LAM Haw Shun, Dennis, JP MEE KT+ 7/12 0/1
(appointed as alternate director to (R=ZF——FHA=+H
Mr Peter Alphonse ZALDIVAR on J& Z (T /5 Peter Alphonse
30 April 2012) ZALD/VARffEinE*/jE;%
%)
Dr. LIN Junbo MR IE L 5/20 0/4
Dr. Honourable WONG Yu Hong, Philip, %= & 5418 £ GBS 4/7 172
GBS (former Chairman and retired (FitmE R-F——F=
on 21 March 2012) A=+—HREE)
Mr. LAM Haw Shun, Dennis, JP MEERFHL (R =—F— 6/7 2/2
(resigned on 22 March 2012) —HFE=ZH - HEF)
Mr. LIU Yuk Chi, David BB ELE(GIE L E K 2/7 0/2
(former Vice Chairman and retired on —EFE——F=A-+—H
21 March 2012) RIE)
Ms. HO Chiu King, Pansy Catilina MBELt (R -—FE——F 2/12 0/3
(resigned on 28 May 2012) AAZT/NHEFE)
Mr. FLYNN Douglas Ronald FLYNN Douglas Ronald 5t 4 4/7 0/2
(resigned on 22 March 2012) (R-ZF——F=H—+—
H FE(F)
Mr. OWYANG Loong Shui, Ivan BilsEREER=ZF—= 6/7 172
(retired on 21 March 2012) F=H—+—HRIE)
Mr. Stanley Emmett THOMAS Stanley Emmett THOMAS 5/12 2/3
(resigned on 28 May 2012) EHE(R=ZFE——FRH
=+ /VHEFF)
Mr. Lincoln PAN Lin Feng EREEE(RZFE—ZF 7/12 2/3

(resigned on 28 May 2012)

Qin Jia Yuan Media Services Company Limited

AA=ZF/HEE)

P+ RRRBARAF]



Corporate Governance Report £ ¥ &5 # &

Name of Directors

Exps
No. of Board No. of general
meetings meetings
attended/No. attended/No.
of Board of general
meetings meetings
eligible to eligible to
Independent Non-Executive Directors attend attend
BIAERITES HEESEE
BERRE % i =R
EABHE XKEXH
EEE CGC4BHE
EmAH BREXERE
Mr. FUNG Ho Leung, Arthur BERFEER-FE—ZF 5/5 1”71

(appointed on 31 August 2012)
Ms. SZETO Wai Ling, Virginia

(appointed on 31 August 2012)
Mr. YEUNG Chung Hang, Patrick

(appointed on 18 January 2013)

Mr. LAU Hon Chuen, GBS, JP
(resigned on 8 August 2012)

Mr. HUI Koon Man, Michael, JP
(resigned on 22 October 2012)

Mr. Wayne CHOU
(resigned on 31 August 2012)

Directors are provided with relevant information to make
informed decisions. The Board and each Director have separate
and independent access to the Company’s senior management
for information and making enquiries if necessary. A Director
of the Company who considers it necessary to seek
independent professional advice in order to perform his/her
duties as a Director of the Company may convene, or request
the Company Secretary of the Company to convene, a meeting
of the Board to approve the consultation of independent legal
or other professional advisor for advice. For regular Board
meetings, an agenda and accompanying board papers of the
meeting are sent in full to all directors at least three days
before the intended date of a meeting.

NA=ZF+—HEZ(T)

AEEBR LT (R=_F—= 5/5 1/1
FNA=F+—HEZF)

HEELEE(R-F—
—A+/NHEZF)

BERGBSKFM T (R
E——F /\ANNHEF)

FREXAFHLT (R-ZF—
—FF+A-FZHEF)
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Every Director is entitled to have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary with a view to ensure that
the Board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations,
are complied with. All minutes are kept by the designated
secretary and are open for inspections by any Director during
normal office hours by giving reasonably advance notice.
Minutes of Board meetings and Board committees meetings
record in sufficient details the matters considered in the
meetings and decisions reached. Draft and final versions of
minutes of Board meetings have been sent to all Directors for
their comments and record respectively within a reasonable
time after the relevant meeting was held.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of
interest in a matter before the Board, the matter will be dealt
with in accordance with applicable rules and regulations and,
if appropriate, an independent board committee will be set up
to deal with the matter.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following committees with
defined terms of reference, which are of no less than exact
terms than those set out in the CG Code.

Remuneration Committee

The Chairman of the current Remuneration Committee is Ms.
Szeto Wai Ling, Virginia and other members are Mr. Fung Ho
Leung, Arthur and Mr. Yeung Chung Hang, Patrick, all are
independent non-executive Directors. The primary function of
the Remuneration Committee is to make recommendations to
the Board on the Company's policy and structure for all
remuneration of Directors and senior management. The
Company’'s emolument policy is to ensure that the
remuneration offered to employees including executive
Directors and senior management is based on the skills,
knowledge, responsibilities and involvement in the Company’s
affairs. The remuneration packages are also determined by
reference to the Company’s performance and profitability,
remuneration level in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions. The emolument policy for non-executive Directors,
mainly comprising directors’ fees, is subject to annual
assessment with reference to the market standard. Individual
Director and senior management would not be involved in
deciding their own remuneration. The specific written terms of
reference which follows closely the requirements of the code
provisions of the CG Code have been adopted by the Board
and are available on the Company’'s website,
www.qjymedia.com.
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During the period from 1 October 2011 to 31 December 2012,

the Remuneration Committee held six meetings,

attendance record as follows:

Name of Members

W_B——F+A—BE-F——F+
—B=+—EHM FMEBERGTT
AV Y 1-E S

BRElZ
No. of
meetings
attended/
No. of
meetings
eligible to
attend
HEE=
R EERE
HEEEXH
Ms. SZETO Wai Ling, Virginia (Chairman) AIEER LT (£E) N/A
(appointed on 31 August 2012) (RZFE——FNNA=+—HEZF) I3 A
Mr. FUNG Ho Leung, Arthur BER A& N/A
(appointed on 31 August 2012) (RZF—=—FNNA=1—HEZF) T iE A
Mr. YEUNG Chung Hang, Patrick 5 ME1E A N/A
(appointed on 18 January 2013) (RZF—=F—HA+/NHEZT) ~E A
Mr. LAU Hon Chuen, GBS, JP (former 2E RGBS KT+ (FIF/E) 3/6
Chairman) (resigned on 8 August 2012) (R=—ZF——F NANHEF)
Mr. HUI Koon Man, Michael, JP AR K At 2/6
(resigned on 22 October 2012) (R=ZF——FF+A=ZF=HFT)
Mr. Wayne CHOU JB kA& 5/6
(resigned on 31 August 2012) (RZFE——FTA=+—HEF)
Mr. LAM Haw Shun, Dennis, JP MEFERFHLT 4/4

(resigned on 22 March 2012)
Mr. Stanley Emmett THOMAS
(resigned on 28 May 2012)

During the period from 1 October 2011 to 31 December 2012,
the Remuneration Committee reviewed matters relating to
remuneration packages of directors and senior management

(R—F——F=H -+ _-HEF)
Stanley Emmett THOMAS % & 4/5
(R—FE——FRA=-+/HET)

and made recommendation to the Board for approval.

The remuneration of the Senior Management (former and
existing executive Directors) fell within the following band:

R-B——F+tA-RE-F—_F+
—A=t—RHH FMZEEEHT
RESMAREEEFMNECREZE
B WRERSELRZEAHEIE -

EREEERERRTHTES)ZH
AT o E :

Number of Senior Management

BREEBAR

Up to HK$1,000,000

&% = #1,000,0007% 7T

6

Annual Report 2012 3R



36

Audit Committee

The Chairman of the current Audit Committee is Mr. Fung Ho
Leung, Arthur and other members are Ms. Szeto Wai Ling,
Virginia and Mr. Yeung Chung Hang, Patrick, all are
independent non-executive Directors. The Audit Committee is
to oversee the Group’s financial reporting system and internal
control procedures, and to review and monitor the external
auditors’ independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of
the audit process in accordance with the applicable standard.
Other duties of the Audit Committee are set out in its specific
written terms of reference which deal clearly with their
authority and duties and are available on the Company’s
website, www.qgjymedia.com.

During the period from 1 October 2011 to 31 December 2012,
the Audit Committee held three meetings with attendance
record as follows:

Name of Members

MEHE
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BHE
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BEZZBCRAICERRBERTE
HtK B AR ERELZ T RIZERK
£ 2RRBILENTES - ERERE
SERFECYBHERERRABEE
BF - WiREBRERERERIINERZ
BRI BIMEREBREEAREZEFZ
Bl - ERZEGCHMBEHNA
CEMRERER - ZHIFW5IAEER
BEBE - HEAATAIRAE 2B

www.gjymedia.com & i °

RZZE-——F+tA-HE-ZT—-F+
“A=t—HEHE BERZEERTT
—REFH BELEET

INE R

No. of meetings
attended/No. of
meetings eligible

to attend

HEERRE

EERBHURE

EE DS

Mr. FUNG Ho Leung, Arthur (Chairman) &% R %4 (£ &) N/A

(appointed on 31 August 2012) (R=ZF—=—FNNA=+—HEZH) T iE A

Ms. SZETO Wai Ling, Virginia RlIERBR KL N/A

(appointed on 31 August 2012) (RZB——F)/ A=+ —HEZF) T3 A

Mr. YEUNG Chung Hang, Patrick 5 ME1E A& N/A

(appointed on 18 January 2013) (RZF—=F—HA+/THEZT) 38 A

Mr. LAU Hon Chuen, GBS, JP ZEHGBSATF ML 2/3

(resigned on 8 August 2012) (RZZF——FTA/NAEFF)

Mr. HUI Koon Man, Michael, JP A XA ARt 1/3
(resigned on 22 October 2012) (RZF—=—F+HA=ZF=HFF)

Mr. Wayne CHOU (former Chairman) B % & (BT £ /) 3/3
(resigned on 31 August 2012) (RZF——FNNVA=+—HEFFIF)

Mr. LAM Haw Shun, Dennis, JP MEEKRFELT A
(resigned on 22 March 2012) (R=ZF——F=H -+ _HFF)

Mr. Lincoln PAN Lin Feng RN e 2/2
(resigned on 28 May 2012) (RZF—=FAA=FHE)
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At the meetings, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
audited financial statements for the year ended 30 September
2011 and the interim reports for the six months ended 31
March 2012 and for the nine months ended 30 June 2012
with senior management and the Company’s external auditors.
The Audit Committee has also reviewed the Group’s
accounting policies and practices, the Listing Rules and
statutory compliance, internal controls and financial reporting
matters.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee has been established on 31
August 2012. The Chairman of the Nomination Committee is
Mr. Fung Ho Leung, Arthur and other members are Ms. Szeto
Wai Ling, Virginia and Mr. Lai Tsz Wah, majority being the
independent non-executive Directors. The Nomination
Committee is to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
at least annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy. Other duties of the Nomination Committee are set
out in its specific written terms of reference which deal clearly
with their authority and duties and are available on the
Company’s website, www.qgjymedia.com.

After establishment, the Nomination Committee did not hold
any meeting during the fifteen months ended 31 December
2012,

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the new code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code,
all directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

The current Directors who holds office during the period from
1 October 2011 to 31 December 2012 have participated in
continuous professional development and provided a record of
training they received for the period from 1 October 2011 to
31 December 2012 to the Company. The management
provided induction materials to the Directors appointed during
the period.
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The individual training record of each current Director who W-_ZT——F+A—HE-ZT——_F+
held office during the period from 1 October 2011 to 31 —A=+—HHMSETESZEHF
December 2012 is set out below: Al s F YT

Attending or

participating in Reading

seminars/ materials

conference/ relating to

workshops rules and

relevant to rules regulations and

and regulations discharge

and the Group’s of directors’

business/ duties and

Name of Director directors’ duties responsibilities
R & B
AR R

RO R & EE ARARAUR

B EEREZ 15 61 BL &

Mg g% BUTESHER

EEia Iy SEZEBME
Mr. LAl Tsz Wah FEFELELE v

Mr. GUO Hong AT E v

Dr. LEUNG Anita Fung Yee Maria REEIEL v

Mr. Peter Alphonse ZALDIVAR Peter Alphonse Zaldivar 5t 4 v

Mr. LAM Haw Shun, Dennis, JP MZAF KT 4+ (Peter
(alternate director to Mr. Peter Alphonse Zaldivarst 4 2 &

Alphonse ZALDIVAR) TEE) v

Dr. LIN Junbo MRE R 18+ v
Mr. FUNG Ho Leung, Arthur BERTE v
Ms. SZETO Wai Ling, Virginia CIE =S = R g v

Remark: Mr. YEUNG Chung Hang, Patrick was appointed as — f&z=r: (28|54 R —F — =& — f

independent non-executive director on 18 January +NAEEFLEBE IS TE
2013 and is not included above. EFUFFEELEFXA -
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged an external professional company
secretarial services provider to provide company secretarial
services to the Company and appointed Ms. Mui Ngar May
(“Ms. Mui”) as the Company Secretary of the Company.

Mr. Fan Ho Yin, the Group Financial Controller of the
Company, is the primary point of contact at the Company for
the Company Secretary.

According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules, Ms. Mui has confirmed to the Company that she has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
for the period from 1 October 2011 to 31 December 2012 and
has obtained the practitioner's endorsement certificate for
2012/2013 issued by The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The amount of fees charged by the auditor generally depends
on the scope and volume of the auditor's work. For the
period from 1 October 2011 to 31 December 2012, the
remuneration to the auditor of the Company charged to
income statement were approximately HK$1,800,000 for audit
services and HK$1,044,000 for non-audit services. Moreover,
the remuneration of HK$980,000 to the auditor for non-audit
services related to the rights issue completed by February 2012
was debited to the share premium account.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE ACCOUNTS

The management provides the explanation and information to
the Board to facilitate an informed assessment of the financial
and other information put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group. Meanwhile, the Directors are
responsible for ensuring that appropriate accounting policies
are selected and applied consistently; and that judgments and
estimates made are prudent and reasonable. In preparing the
financial statements for the period from 1 October 2011 to 31
December 2012, the accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong have been adopted and the requirements of the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
applicable laws were complied with.
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The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon
the Group’s ability to continue as going concern. The Board
has prepared the financial statements on a going concern
basis.

The reporting responsibilities of external auditors of the
Company are disclosed in “Independent Auditor’s Report”.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group. The scope of the review
is determined and recommended by the Audit Committee and
approved by the Board annually. The review covers all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risks management functions. Such annual review
also considers the adequacy of resources, staff’s qualifications
and experience and training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function. The
internal control review function reports directly to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee. Regular internal control
review reports are circulated to the Audit Committee members
and the Board in accordance with the approved scope.

During the period from 1 October 2011 to 31 December 2012,
management has conducted regular review on the
effectiveness of the internal control system covering all
material controls in area of financial and compliance controls
and various functions for risks management. The Board,
through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control system covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management function for the period from 1
October 2011 to 31 December 2012. The Audit Committee is
satisfied that the internal control system maintained by the
Group is sufficient to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that the Group's assets are safeguarded against loss
from unauthorized use or disposition, transactions are properly
authorized and proper accounting records are maintained.

In addition, an independent professional firm has been
engaged to review and assess certain internal control system of
the Group for the period from 1 October 2011 to 31
December 2012 and reported the review and recommended
procedures whereas no material control failure were noted.
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The Group will continue to enhance the system to cope with
the changes in the business environment.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Effective communication

The Company discloses relevant information to shareholders
through the Company’s annual report and financial statements,
the interim report, as well as the Annual General Meeting (the
“AGM"). The section under “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of the annual report
facilitate the shareholders’ understanding of the Company’s
activities. The AGM allows the Directors to meet and
communicate with shareholders. The Company’s financial
statements and each of the required disclosure of information
are dispatched within the prescribed period imposed by laws
and regulations.

During the period from 1 October 2011 to 31 December 2012,
the Company also held three extraordinary general meetings
("EGM").

The Chairmen of the AGM and EGMs had explained the
procedures for conducting a poll.

To manage its relationship with investment community, the
Group meets regularly with the press and financial analysts
and participates frequently in other conferences and
presentations.

To further promote effective communication, the corporate
website is maintained to disseminate Company announcements
and other relevant financial and non-financial information
electronically on a timely basis.

During the period, the Company has established a
shareholders’ communications policy.

Shareholders’ Rights

An AGM of the Company shall be held in each year and at
the place as may be determined by the Board. Each general
meeting, other than an AGM, shall be called an extraordinary
general meeting.
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Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

Shareholders may convene an extraordinary general meeting of
the Company (“EGM") according to the provisions as set out
in the Articles and The Companies Law (2011 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands. According to the Articles, any two or more
shareholders or any one shareholder which is a recognized
clearing house holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company, shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary of the
Company, to require an EGM to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

The written requisition must state the business to be
transacted at the meeting, signed by the requisitionist(s) and
deposited at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong for the attention of the Board or the Company
Secretary, and may consist of several documents in like form,
each signed by one or more requisitionists. The requisition will
be verified with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong and upon their confirmation that the requisition is proper
and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance
with the requirements under the Articles and the Listing Rules
to all the registered shareholders. On the contrary, if the
requisition has been verified as invalid, the requisitionist(s) will
be advised of this outcome and accordingly, an EGM will not
be convened as requested.

If within twenty-one (21) days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
convene a meeting in the same manner, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months after the expiration of this said twenty-one (21) days.
The notice period to be given to all the registered
shareholders for consideration of the proposal raised by the
requisitionist(s) concerned at the EGM varies according to the
nature of the proposal as set out in the Articles and the CG
Code.
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The procedures that shareholders can use for proposing a
person for election as Director at general meeting are set out
in the document entitled “Procedures for a Shareholder to
Propose a Person for Election as a Director”, which is currently
available on the Company's website.

Putting enquiries by shareholders to the Board
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for
the attention of the Chief Executive Officer or the Company
Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong.

Procedures for putting forward proposals by
shareholders at shareholders’ meeting

Shareholders should follow the procedures set out in the sub-
section headed “Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting” above for putting forward proposals for
discussion at general meeting.

The above procedures are subject to Articles and applicable
laws and regulation.

Voting by way of poll

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all votes of the
shareholders at the AGM or EGM must be taken by poll. The
chairman of the meeting demanded a poll for every resolution
put to the vote of the AGM and EGMs held during the period
pursuant to article 76 of the Articles. Relevant details of the
proposed resolutions, including biographies of each retiring
Director standing for re-election, were included in the circular
to shareholders dispatched together with the proxy forms. The
Company announced the results of the poll in the manner
prescribed under Rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.
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Constitutional Document

The Memorandum of Association and Articles of the Company
has been published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

The share capital clause of the Company’s Memorandum of
Association has the following changes during the period
ended 31 December 2012:

By an ordinary resolution passed on 15 December 2011, the
authorized share capital of the Company was increased from
US$26,000,000 to US$100,000,000 by the creation of an
additional 7,400,000,000 shares of US$0.01 each.

By an ordinary resolution and a special resolution passed on
21 December 2012 and upon the confirmation of capital
reduction issued by the Grand Court of the Cayman lIslands, (i)
every ten (10) issued and unissued shares of par value of
US$0.01 each in the capital of the Company was consolidated
into one (1) share of par value of US$0.10 each, and (i) the
par value of each issued and unissued shares of the Company
was reduced from US$0.10 to US$0.01 (“Adjusted Share”).

By an ordinary resolution passed on 21 December 2012 and
immediately upon the above capital reorganization becoming
effective, the authorized share capital of the Company was
increased from US$10,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000
Adjusted Shares of US$0.01 each to US$100,000,000 divided
into 10,000,000,000 Adjusted Shares of US$0.01 each by the
creation of an additional 9,000,000,000 Adjusted Shares of
US$0.01 each.

Hong Kong, 27 March 2013
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The Directors submit herewith their report together with the
audited financial statements for the period from 1 October
2011 to 31 December 2012.

CHANGE OF FINANCIAL YEAR END DATE

The financial statements as audited covering a period of
fifteen months from 1 October 2011 to 31 December 2012 are
prepared due to the change of the financial year end date
from 30 September to 31 December, as set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 30 April 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are the provision of
cross-media services including television (“TV") program and
production related services, TV advertising, out-of-home
advertising, and art and performance services.

The particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 12 to the
financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The loss of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the fifteen months ended 31 December 2012
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 68
to 207.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the share capital of the Company
during the period are set out in note 28(c) to the financial
statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

There were no purchases, sales or redemption of the
Company’s listed securities by the Company and any of its
subsidiaries during the fifteen months ended 31 December
2012.
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RESULTS AND RESERVES

The results of the Group for the fifteen months ended 31
December 2012 are set out in the consolidated income
statement on pages 68 and 69 of the annual report. The
movements in reserves are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 75 of the annual
report.

An interim scrip dividend of HK0.025 cent per share with a
cash option (2011: interim dividend in scrip form of HK1.28
cents per share with a cash option) was paid on 4 July 2012.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the fifteen months ended 31 December 2012
(Year ended 30 September 2011: final dividend in scrip form of
HKO0.03 cent per share with cash option).

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM RIGHTS ISSUE

The gross proceeds from the rights issue proposed on 28
November 2012 will be approximately HK$164.1 million. The
estimated net proceeds from the rights issue will be
approximately HK$153.1 million, which are intended to be used
of approximately HK$70.0 million for reducing the borrowings
of the Group, and approximately HK$70.0 million for the
development of the Group’s TV program, foreign films
distribution and production related services, and the remaining
balance for general working capital of the Group. The Group
is actively seeking for new investment opportunities in the
development of the Group's TV program, foreign films
distribution and production related services, the investment
costs of which are expected to be substantial. With the net
proceeds from the rights issue, the Company will have the
necessary financial resources to seize any attractive investment
opportunities whenever they arise.

Based on the estimated number of TV series production to be
launched and the relevant budget, approximately HK$70.0
million shall be applied for the development of the Group’s TV
program, foreign films distribution and production related
services. Notwithstanding the aforementioned, as at 31
December 2012, the Group has not yet concluded any
particular investment opportunities.
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With regard to the rights issue carried out by the Company in
February 2012, approximately HK$134.0 million out of the
total net proceeds of HK$280.0 million raised has been
allocated to the Group’s TV program development business,
out of which approximately HK$78.0 million was applied to
purchase TV program adaptation rights, approximately HK$31.0
million was applied for the acquisition of quality TV series or
movies copyrights and approximately HK$25.0 million was
applied for the co-investment in TV drama production with the
PRC provincial TV stations. The time span between the
planning and the broadcast of collaborative projects generally
takes eighteen to twenty-four months. Accordingly, the
investment in the Group's TV program development has not
made any contribution to the Group’s performance for the
fifteen months ended 31 December 2012. Moreover,
approximately HK$101.1 million out of the net proceeds has
been used to early redeem the Company’s convertible notes.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the fifteen months ended 31 December 2012, the
Group made donations of HK$1,800,000 (Year ended 30
September 2011: HK$3,700,000) for charitable purposes.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last four financial years ended 30
September and a financial period ended 31 December 2012 is
set out on page 208 of the annual report.

FIXED ASSETS
Details of the movements in fixed assets of the Group are set
out in note 11 to the financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES
Details of the convertible notes of the Group are set out in
note 26 to the financial statements.

BANK LOANS
Particulars of bank loans of the Group as at 31 December
2012 are set out in note 22 to the financial statements.
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The Directors during the fifteen months ended 31 December
2012 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. LAl Tsz Wah
(Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. GUO Hong

Mr. YIU Yan Chi, Bernard

Mr. TSIANG Hoi Fong

Mr. YEUNG Ching Wan
(former Chief Financial
Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Dr. LEUNG Anita Fung Yee
Maria (Chairman)

Mr. Peter Alphonse ZALDIVAR

Mr. LAM Haw Shun,
Dennis, JP

Dr. LIN Junbo

Dr. Honourable WONG Yu
Hong, Philip, GBS
(former Chairman)

Mr. LIU Yuk Chi, David
(former Vice Chairman)

Ms. HO Chiu King, Pansy
Catilina

Mr. FLYNN Douglas Ronald
Mr. OWYANG Loong Shui,
Ivan

Mr. Stanley Emmett THOMAS

Mr. Lincoln PAN Lin Feng

Qin Jia Yuan Media Services Company Limited #)+&IEERIEER QA

(appointed on 25 June 2012
and as Chief Executive Officer
effective from 9 July 2012)

(appointed on 28 May 2012)
(resigned on 22 March 2012)
(retired on 21 March 2012)

(resigned on 22 March 2012)

(resigned as Chief Executive
Officer and redesignated as
Non-executive Director
on 9 July 2012)

(resigned as Director on 22
March 2012 and appointed
as alternate director to Mr.
Peter Alphonse ZALDIVAR on
30 April 2012)

(retired on 21 March 2012)

(retired on 21 March 2012)
(resigned on 28 May 2012)
(resigned on 22 March 2012)
(retired on 21 March 2012)
(resigned on 28 May 2012)

(resigned on 28 May 2012)
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. FUNG Ho Leung, Arthur (appointed on 31 August 2012)

Ms. SZETO Wai Ling, Virginia (appointed on 31 August 2012)

Mr. YEUNG Chung Hang,
Patrick

Mr. LAU Hon Chuen, GBS, JP (resigned on 8 August 2012)

(appointed on 18 January 2013)

Mr. HUI Koon Man,
Michael, JP

Mr. Wayne CHOU

(resigned on 22 October 2012)

(resigned on 31 August 2012)

Each of Dr. Honourable Wong Yu Hong, Philip, GBS (“Dr.
Wong”), Mr. Liu Yuk Chi, David, Mr. Tsiang Hoi Fong, Mr.
Owyang Loong Shui, Ivan retired at the conclusion of the
annual general meeting held on 21 March 2012.

In accordance with Clause 95 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Yeung Chung Hang, Patrick, who was
appointed as a new Director on 18 January 2013, will hold
office until the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM"),
and being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

In accordance with Clause 96A of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Dr. Leung Anita Fung Yee Maria, Mr. Peter
Alphonse Zaldivar and Dr. Lin Junbo will retire by rotation at
the forthcoming AGM, and being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the AGM.
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None of the Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has an unexpired service contract which is
not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
normal statutory obligations.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, a confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

Changes of Directors’ Information under Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change of
directors’ Information of the Company since the date of the
2012 interim report for the period ended 30 June 2012 are as
follows:

1. Dr. Leung Anita Fung Yee Maria (“Dr. Leung”) was re-
designated from an executive Director to a non-executive
Director on 9 July 2012.

2. Dr. Leung resigned and Mr. Lai Tsz Wah was appointed as
the Chief Executive Officer with effect from 9 July 2012,
but remains as the Chairman of the Board.

Save for the information disclosed above, the Company is not
aware of other change in the directors’ information which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules.

50 Qin Jia Yuan Media Services Company Limited #)+4 £ 82 BRISH R A 7

RENEERRBFASLEECESR
METITAIR—FAERNBEZR
AT(EEECTEERINBRRIHEE
AP B R AR I 2 RE MR A A -

B EWRAEIBE - RFRIEEESE
MIFRNTERRERBY 5 2 HER -
RARBABBEUFATESZENIE
L e

RELTHREBSIBO)EZES
EE e

BiE FTHEBIFE135BME 88 2=
E-——_EXA=tHIEHEBZzZ-E—=
FHREHHEAHUARZ AR ESTERE
g

1. REBSI(RBLDR-F—=
F+ANBHATERREAEN
TEE

2. REBLIBEETTHREH  WEBEIES
FXF MBFELELREZREAR
TR B-ZE——FtANA
HE A o

B E XTI E 2 BRI - REIW A RE
EFERCEMED  MARE TR
BIE1351BIVIE FIAHEE



Report of the Directors EE B & &

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS E?&i%?‘;{t}k =R IG -
& A

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, B 9 R R HERXE
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
At 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the WZ-ZZ——F+-A=+—H BREALQ

Directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of BI¥Z#FE A& HEIEH (BB AHIFE571F)
the Company and its associated corporations (within the ([FEHFKEEASIEN ) E3I52EEF 2 BiD
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance RIS @ HIRIBEEEX HIZE TE'J
(Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) as HMERRIEBRM2ER  LEFEA
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company FT4l @ £ ER A A K EAH &l(m%
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the R &EHNHE 1|7|<1§|J%XV“B)ZHX 3Wis
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model B MESFHAF2EZ R AR W
Code for Securities Transactions and as known to the F:

Company were as follows:

(i) Interests in the Company (i) RATIZHER

Number of the Adjusted Shares/
underlying Adjusted Shares held (Note 1)

FisERERe AREAERGEE (M)

Approximate
percentage of total

Interest in issued share capital

underlying of the Company as

Personal Family Corporate Adjusted Total at

Name of the Director Interest Interest Interest Shares Interest 31 December 2012

RZ¥—Z-%f§

+=-—A=+—H

HERAERAE EASIZBERT

EEna BAEDZ Rz LSz KROER B BREBHE S

(Note 2)

(Fft5£2)

Dr. Leung Nil Nil 30,131,716 30,258,639 60,390,355 6.44%
2iE+ i s (Note 3)
(B 5£3)

Mr. Guo Hong 677,578 Nil Nil Nil 677,578 0.07%

Mr. Lam Haw Shun, Dennis, JP 2,582,344 Nil Nil 269,291 2,851,635 0.30%
MEFE KT+ i a (Note 4)
(B 554)
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Reference is made to a circular of the Company dated 28
November 2012 (the “Circular”). Unless the context requires
otherwise, capitalized terms used in this section shall have the
same meanings as those defined in the Circular.

The number of Adjusted Shares/underlying Adjusted Shares held
and the total issued share capital of the Company are calculated
on the basis of (i) the Capital Reorganization becoming effective
and completion of the Increase in Authorized Share Capital; (ii)
the Rights Issue has completed; (iii) no new Share or Adjusted
Share being issued and no Share or Adjusted Share being
repurchased by the Company on or before the Record Date.
Accordingly, the total issued share capital of the Company for
calculating the percentages in the last column refers to the
issued share capital as enlarged by the Rights Shares to be
issued under the Rights Issue i.e. 937,596,148 Adjusted Shares.

These 60,390,355 Adjusted Shares include (a) 22,232,498
Adjusted Shares held by Dynamic Master Developments Limited
("Dynamic Master”) and 7,899,218 Adjusted Shares held by Up
& Rise Limited ("Up & Rise”); (b) an aggregate of 30,131,716
Rights Shares that they have agreed to take up pursuant to the
Irrevocable Undertaking; and (c) outstanding share options to
subscribe for 126,923 Adjusted Shares granted to Dr. Wong,
spouse of Dr. Leung, under the Share Option Scheme, in which
Dr. Leung is deemed to be interested under the SFO.

Dynamic Master is owned as to 58.37%, 32.76% and 5.32% by
Goodhold Limited (“Goodhold”), Hunterland City Cultural Assets
Investment and Services Limited (“Hunterland City”) and Up &
Rise respectively. Goodhold is owned as to 50% by each of Dr.
Leung and Dr. Wong. Hunterland City is 99.99% owned by Dr.
Leung. Up & Rise is wholly-owned by Dr. Leung. Accordingly,
Dr. Leung is deemed to be interested in the Adjusted Shares
held by Dynamic Master and Up & Rise under the SFO.

Mr. Lam Haw Shun, Dennis, JP is an alternate non-executive
Director. He has outstanding share options to subscribe for
269,291 Adjusted Shares granted under the Share Option
Scheme.
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(

)

Share options of the Company

(ii)

AT ZERHE

Number of share options

BRENE
Exercise Percentage of
price per total issued
Closing price share Grant Exercise  Lapsed/ share capital of
immediately as at As at  Adjusted during during cancelled As at the Company as
before date 31 December 1 October during the the during 31 December at 31 December
Grantee Date of grant Exercise period of grant 2012 2011 the period  period  period the period 2012 2012
B® B®
Zg¥-Z%§ 1 —¥-C%
RERY +=8 R” #Wh =-%T--% +ZA=+-8
B#igiz =+-B2 —¥--% B B B %%/ +ZR HAFEBEH
RARA RHBEH fTEH kHE SBRTEE +A-B Eol RiH it i3] =t-8B fTRFESH
(Adjusted)
(E8%)
HKS HKS (Note 1)
ET BT (i 31)
Directors
gz
Mr. Lam Haw Shun, 6 March 2007 6 March 2007 to 13 June 2014 2.04 0.8076 560,844 862,836 — — — 1,423,680 0.030%
Dennis, JP
(alternate director)
HEEATHL “EZLF=ARA
(BEES) Z-E-EERATZH
21 December 2009 7 January 2010 to 13 June 2014 1.57 0.6422 500,000 769,230 — — . 1,269,230 0.027%
ZZTNF ZZ-TF-f+H
+=ZA=t-H E-E-EEXRATZH
Consultant 21 December 2009 15 January 2010 to 13 June 2014 1.57 0.6422 500,000 769,230 — — — 1,269,230 0.027%
5 ZTTNE “Z-TF-f+RH
TZAZt-H E-E-EEXATZH
Other participants 21 December 2009 7 January 2010 to 13 June 2014 157 0.6422 500,000 769,230 — — — 1,269,230 0,027%
A2 EAL ZZTNE —ZT-Z2F-F+tH
+ZA=t-AR EE-MERAT=R
21 December 2009 27 January 2010 to 13 June 2014 1.57 0.6422 1,500,000 2,307,692 — — 3,807,692 — —
—ZENE —Z-FF-A=-t+H
tZA=t-A —T-mEAATEAR
16 April 2008 16 April 2008 to 13 June 2014 4.50 16231 1,365,861 2,101,324 — — 3,467,185 — —
—EEINF ZZT\FMATAAE
mA+/A “T-mERATZH
21 December 2009 11 January 2010 to 13 June 2014 1.57 0.6422 500,000 769,230 — — 1,269,230 — —
“TThE “T-FF-A1-8
+ZA=t-8 Z-ZT-mEXAT=H
15 March 2007 15 March 2007 to 13 June 2014 2.04 0.8076 5,608,453 8,628,389 — — . 14,236,842 0.303%
s 3 “RREF=ATHA
FE-WERATZH
21 December 2009 7 January 2010 to 13 June 2014 1.57 0.6422 500,000 769,230 — — — 1,269,230 0.027%
ZTTNE “T-TF-f+H
TZA=t-H E-E-EEXATZH
10 June 2008 10 June 2008 to 13 June 2014 5.16 2.0249 682,930 1,050,661 — — 1,733,591 — —
i Y3 ZZT\ERATH
~ATH E-F-WERATZR
21 December 2009 29 January 2010 to 13 June 2014 157 0.6422 500,000 769,230 — — 1,269,230 — —
EhE “E-TF-A-1NA
+ZA=t-8 E-T-NEAAT=RA
22 May 2008 22 May 2008 to 13 June 2014 5.46 2.0249 682,930 1,050,661 — — 1,733,591 — —
—ERN\% “ET\FRA-T=H
hAZf=H E-E-ENERATZH
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Number of share options
BRERE
Exercise Percentage of
price per total issued
Closing price share Lapsed/ share capital of
immediately as at As at  Adjusted Grant Exercise cancelled As at the Company as
before date 31 December 1 October during  during  during during 31 December at 31 December
Grantee Date of grant Exercise period of grant 2012 2011 the period the year the year the year 2012 2012
I B
—%-Z§ |3 —%-Z§
RERE +=A I #h —¥--% +-A=t+-H
Biifiz =+-82 —B--£ Mh HBA HA &R/ +ZH EAT2BEE
398 REBH g kHE SkiTEE +A-8 AE  RE ##  =t-B TRFENH
(Adjusted)
(88%)
HK$ HK$ (Note 1)
B BT [E)
21 December 2009 19 January 2010 to 13 June 2014 157 0.6422 500,000 769,230 - — 1,269,230 — —
—ZTNE - F-AthBE
+ZA=+-AH “Z-mERATZH
21 December 2009 30 January 2010 to 13 June 2014 157 0.6422 500,000 769,230 - — 1,269,230 — -
e 53 —2-2F-A=tRE
+=A=t-AH ZT-WESATZH
21 March 2007 21 March 2007 to 13 June 2014 2.09 08076 560,844 862,836 - — 1,423,680 - -
TR “RTEF=A-+-RE
=A=t+-8B ZZ-WERATZH
21 December 2009 8 January 2010 to 13 June 2014 1.57 0.6422 500,000 769,230 — — 1,269,230 — —
ZETAE —2-F5-A)\RZ
+ZhA=+-8 —Z-mEXATZH
21 December 2009 15 January 2010 to 13 June 2014 157 06422 500,000 769,230 — — — 1,269,230 0.027%
“TIAfF -“T-TF-B1EAZE
+tZA=+-H —Z-NEXATZH

Total 15,961,862 24,556,699 — — 18511,889 22,006,672

@i

* Exercise price and number of the options were adjusted with * TR -ATERRBRZBRET
effect from 17 January 2012. FEELHEELHE -

Notes: Pt 5 -

1. In this section the number of share options and exercise price 1. RAERA - AR RITEEIL K
were not adjusted pursuant to the Capital Reorganization and AR £ 3G) B PT A 2 R E AR R
Rights Issue as mentioned in (i) above. The total issued share BIEHAE - HEBEIHLRAART
capital as at 31 December 2012 of 4,687,980,748 shares was T-——F+-_A=+-RZBETK
used in calculation the percentage. 7N 18 £1/4,687,980,748R ik 15 ©

2. These share options represent personal interest held by the 2. HZEEERREFEUNESEAAS
Director as beneficial owner. NEBZEAEZ -

3. Dr. Wong Ying Ho, Kennedy, BBS, JP, resigned as Director on 29 3. BERRELIBBSAFMIR_F—F

November 2010 and was appointed as consultant of the
Company. His interests in share options to subscribe for
1,269,230 shares of the Company were reclassified under the
category of consultant.
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4. Other participants include the former directors, Mr. Tsiang Hoi 4. H2BEATBEINEESERA
Fong, as he remains as director of subsidiaries of the Group, Dr. FEREBDASEEMB AR ZE
Wong and Mr. Hui Koon Man, Michael, JP, their options still B) @BEIEHFEXARFHL - B
remained outstanding as at 31 December 2012, TE——FE+_A=+—RAEEE

s #8 1 R AT 8

5. During the fifteen months ended 31 December 2012, no options 5. RBE_ZE——F+ZA=+—Hit
are granted under the Share Option Scheme. 1 FE A A AR R B AR AT B
AR -
(iii) Interests in associated corporations (iii) REBEB ZHE R
Percentage of
total issued
share capital
of relevant
Number of shares of the class of
associated corporation associated
HEGEER S 8E corporation
as at
Name of associated Name of Class of Personal Family Corporate 31 December
corporation director Capacity shares interests interests interests Total 2012
1’
—E--F
+=-A=+—-H
iGHEEER
HEER
I 3 15PN Rk AT E2BEET
HEEE R Bz HfH R i # i #i &% RETHL
Qin Jia Yuan Cultural Dr. Leung  Beneficial owner Class A 1 1 Nil 2 100%
Assets (Hong Kong) and interests (non- (Note 1)
Company Limited of spouse voting)
("QJY Cultural”)
P+BECEH R+ EaliAAR ARR & (M)
(BB)ERAT R e (8
(T +&xXt]) EX)
Qin Jia Yuan Publishing ~ Dr. Leung  Beneficial owner Class A 1 Nil 1 2 100%
Company Limited and interests in (non- (Note 2)
("QJY Publishing”) controlled voting)
corporation
P+HEEREBER AR REL ERBEAR AR = GEy)
(T%+ &R ) REMRAZ (ER

g e
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Notes:

1. The 2 shares in QJY Cultural are held as to 1 share by Dr. Leung
and 1 share by Dr. Wong. As Dr. Leung and Dr. Wong are a
married couple, Dr. Leung is deemed to be interested in the 1
share held by Dr. Wong.

2. The 1 share in QJY Publishing is held by Triglory Culture Asset
Media Services Limited which is owned as to 60% by Dr. Leung
and 40% by Dr. Wong. Dr. Leung is therefore deemed to be
interested in this 1 share in QJY Publishing.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO), which were required (i) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO; or (ii)
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (iii) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange and as known to
the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclose in this report, no contracts of significance, to
which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party, and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the period from 1 October 2011 to 31 December 2012.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
Interests of the directors of the Company in competing
businesses as at 31 December 2012 which are required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules were as
follows:

Name of entity the

EENRBERBZES
RZZE——F+_-_A=+—HB " RBEL
MBRESIVKEATFTHEBEZLATNEER
BEREBIERA T

Description of the

businesses in which are businesses of the entity

considered to compete
or likely to compete
with the businesses of

which are considered to
compete or likely to
compete with businesses

Nature of interest
of the director

Name of director the Group of the Group in the entity
REHFVABHEELEE SEMREHGAARER
BRETEHREBRGREZ £BERNTRBENEZ EENEE2

EENZ ERZERLEE E¥ o2 R EEauE

Lin Junbo AT R EEAR QA Television investment, As a director of

(TFME R

(Non-executive Director)

production and distribution

O R AR

(the “Competing Business”)

MR GERITES)

The Company had been notified by the above Director that
she has interested in the Competing Business during the period
under review. #7852 1% is a subsidiary of #1#H E DA R
NI

The Board is of the view that the Group is capable of carrying
on its business independently of the Competing Business.
When making decisions on the television investment,
production and distribution of the Group, the above Director,
in the performance of her duties as Director, has acted and
will continue to act in the best interests of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the
Company has any interest in any business apart from the
Group's business, which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders passed
on 13 June 2004, the Company has established a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) whereby the Directors of the Company
may, at their discretion, invite any full time or part time
employees and Directors, consultants and advisers of the

BEKE  RIERET
(HEFEHD

ERIFTMTRZ
5%

PREEEHEARR  REEBAR -
BERBEFEGTHRERED - AR ER
AT BERPDBRARZERT QAR -

E=eqR AREEANEBYINBEF
EBZBRATNETERR - E5AKHE
BRKRE HERBTELARARE
PREERETEEERE  EELH
SHBAREE 2 ZREMNETE

BEXFRBELN  ANEFHMEAE
B 3¢ 75 5177 52 55 51 3¢ 75 4 5 o5 7T 62 18
BERME R ATEGEAET
W3 o

R& I #E 5 21

RABRBRER-_ZZTNFAT=
FEBZEMRBRR LB MRIEE
(TZ&t8)) BUHERAREZAIRIEEB
TRzRaRBEENES  SEHFES
BEMBER(AETa%EmEzER
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Group (subject to the eligibility requirements as set out
therein) to take up options which entitle them to subscribe for
shares representing up to a maximum in nominal value of
30% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to
time. The total number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme and other schemes must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange
unless further shareholders’ approval has been obtained. The
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted and to be granted (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12 months’ period
up to the date of grant to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director or their associates would
not exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue or an aggregate value
of HK$5,000,000 unless further shareholders’ approval has
been obtained; and to each other eligible person would not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue. The purpose of the Scheme
is to attract and retain the best available personnel, to provide
additional incentive to employees (full time and part time),
Directors, consultants and advisers of the Group and to
promote the success of the business of the Group. The
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years
ending on 13 June 2014 (the “Scheme Period”). The exercise
price of options shall be determined by the Board and shall
not be less than the highest of the closing price of the shares
of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheet on the date of grant of the options and the
average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer and the
nominal value of a share of the Company. An option may be
exercised at any time during a period being not less than six
months and not more than ten years from the date of grant
and expiring at the close of business on the last day of such
period, or the date falling on the expiry of the Scheme Period,
whichever is the earlier, subject to the provisions of early
termination hereof.

During the fifteen months ended 31 December 2012, no
option has been granted (Year ended 30 September 2011: nil)
to Directors to subscribe for shares of the Company. Details of
the options granted to the Directors and employees are set out
in the section headed “Directors’ and chief executives’ interests
and short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures”.

Qin Jia Yuan Media Services Company Limited #)+&IEEREER QA

HE)EMERE UREBERZHEER
RAITREEITIRAEE30% 2 RMD °
BEZTEI R EMEA S A ET RN B
- AETBBABRRRRMAER AT
EFHZBRARIEEITRAZ210% + HEH
SRR ERE— SR ARSI - REZRHEH
HIrER+—@AHER  AERE R
BrFREZEREEBEITHERKTT
FEREETEMRNEERREXB L
FERNTESHIBEZBHBEATBITLE
FETIRHBE  THBEBEETR
19 20.1% =k 42 18 1~ 15 #8 385,000,000/8
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As at the date of this report, a total of 2,100,516 shares
(adjusted after Capital Reorganization and Rights Issues as
mentioned in a prospectus dated 8 March 2013, representing
0.44% of the existing issued share capital of the Company)
may be issued upon exercise of all options which had been
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme.

DISCLOSEABLE INTERESTS AND SHORT

POSITIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE SFO
The interests and short positions of those persons (other than
a Director or chief executive of the Company disclosed above)
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as at 31
December 2012, which have been notified to the Company
and recorded in the register required to be kept under Section

RABREBE  REZTIHERD 2B
MEHEE 2 BT FEIT 2 IR D 428K
A2,100516(EtHE AT —=F=
ANBZHEBRERZMM 2 BRAEHA R
RIELFAE)  HERARIBRBEBEEITR
K #0.44% -

MBEHRMGRBAFHEZ
B 3R #E a1 R it
R-ZB——F+-A=+—0 REK
%%&%Eﬁ%%%&%ZﬁﬁEﬂ@
RARBEGFZBRMNEE RO
17 B AR AR 10 o 7 e &MFZA
T(EAARBERRZEEREETHR

336 of the SFO or as known to the Company were as follows: A BEKIMN 0T :
Approximate
percentage of
Total total issued
number of share capital
the Adjusted of the
Shares/ Company
underlying as at
Name of substantial Adjusted 31 December
shareholder Capacity Nature of interest Shares held 2012 Notes
R-F—Z-%
FiEAE +-—A=+—AH
B4, HATZEH
HEERE EBTRAE
TERFEEZE 514 HEtE B 3 48 B BmHESL B 5
(Note 1) (Note 1)
(B 72 1) (B 7E1)
Hong Kong Xinhu Investment Beneficial owner Beneficial interest 33,287,689 3.55% 2
Co., Limited
BEAMPIRERRAF EmEAA B n
Xinhu Zhongbao Co. Ltd. Interested in controlled Corporate interest 33,287,689 3.55% 2
corporation
MPPEROERAA ZEB ARz NGIE: X
Loyal Concept Limited Beneficial owner Beneficial interest 100,000,000 10.67% 3
ERERA BEmEn
Hanny Holdings Limited Interested in controlled Corporate interest 100,000,000 10.67% 3

corporation

REH ATz ER AR 3+

HEEEARAR
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Approximate
percentage of

Total total issued
number of share capital
the Adjusted of the
Shares/ Company
underlying as at
Name of substantial Adjusted 31 December
shareholder Capacity Nature of interest Shares held 2012 Notes
R-T—Zf
Fi#EAE +-—A=+—AH
B4 HaT 2
HEERE EBTRAE
TERFEE 54 HEtE B 3 48 B mOETLE Bft 5
(Note 1) (Note 1)
(B 32 1) (Bt 52 1)
Kabouter Management LLC Investment Manager Corporate interest 78,613,668 8.38% 4
REKRE NGIE: E
Dr. Wong Interested in controlled Corporate Interest/ 60,390,355 6.44% 5
corporation/Interest of Family Interest/
spouse/Beneficial owner Beneficial Interest
=g RES AR RS NEVER S RIE
fiBis EaEEA B/ BmiEn
Emperor Securities Limited Beneficial owner Beneficial interest 373,856,164 39.87% 6
REBH(BEB)ERAQA EmnEAA BEmEn
Emperor Capital Group Limited Interested in controlled Corporate interest 373,856,164 39.87% 6
corporation
REFFEEARAA Sk NG g £ NREE
Albert Yeung Holdings Limited Interested in controlled Corporate interest 373,856,164 39.87% 6
corporation
BREREEXEZERBRAR Sl ARz NCIE E
STC International Limited Trustee Corporate interest 373,856,164 39.87% 6
EEA NE =
Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert Founder of a discretionary  Other interest 373,856,164 39.87% 6
trust
52 KE L EISERERISZZA H fth # 28
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon Interest of spouse Family Interest 373,856,164 39.87% 6

Ehext

BC 18 1 2

ENY - FH
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Notes:

Reference is made to the Circular. Unless the context requires otherwise,
capitalized terms used in this section shall have the same meanings as
those defined in the Circular. The number of Adjusted Shares/
underlying Adjusted Shares held and the total issued share capital of
the Company are calculated on the basis of (i) the Capital
Reorganization becoming effective; (ii) the Rights Issue has completed;
(iii) no new Share or Adjusted Share being issued and no Share or
Adjusted Shares being repurchased by the Company on or before the
Record Date. Accordingly, the total issued share capital of the
Company for calculating the percentages in the second last column
refers to the issued share capital as enlarged by the Rights Shares to
be issued under the Rights Issue i.e. 937,596,148 Adjusted Shares.

Hong Kong Xinhu Investment Co., Limited is wholly-owned by Xinhu
Zhongbao Co. Ltd., the shares of which are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. Hong Kong Xinhu Investment Co., Limited is the
beneficial owner of 33,287,689 Adjusted Shares. Xinhu Zhongbao Co.
Ltd. is deemed to be interested in such 33,287,689 Adjusted Shares
through Hong Kong Xinhu Investment Co., Limited under the SFO. The
options granted to Hong Kong Xinhu Investment Co., Limited to
subscribe for 23,391,630 Adjusted Shares under the Option Deed
dated 17 May 2011 had been lapsed on 16 May 2012.

These 100,000,000 Adjusted Shares include 50,000,000 Adjusted
Shares held by Loyal Concept Limited (“Loyal Concept”) in the capacity
as the beneficial owner and 50,000,000 Rights Shares that it has
agreed to take up pursuant to the Irrevocable Undertaking. Loyal
Concept is indirectly wholly-owned by Hanny Holdings Limited, the
shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Hanny Holdings
Limited is deemed to be interested in such 100,000,000 Adjusted
Shares through Loyal Concept under the SFO.

These 78,613,668 Adjusted Shares include 39,306,834 Adjusted Shares
held by the members of the Kabouter Fund II, LLC, Kabouter Fund |
(QP), LLC and International Select Partners, LP (“Kabouter Group”) in
total and an aggregate of 39,306,834 Rights Shares that the members
of the Kabouter Group have agreed to take up pursuant to the
Irrevocable Undertaking. Accordingly, Kabouter Management LLC is
deemed to be interested in such 78,613,668 Adjusted Shares through
Kabouter Group under the SFO.

GEE

1.

FURMZBK - RXESEMRBEIN

ZN
TR EAmEEZBRMATEEAER
FIRE - AT HERG,HELRER
MBELRARZMEBETRATIR T E

EAE  (VRAETEHE L (NHEKE T
B (AR EN LSRR 2 AT T
s AR D BB EELR DR
BRG At ARAEREE-_WED
Lt 2 AR & T B 1T IR AR R A AR T 1 AR
TZHBEEMDENEZBEBETRAME
937,596,148 J% 4L 5 B % 17) °

EEHHEREBERARBTAPERD
RAR(EBRORESZIERSE LT 2
BHEBE BATHREBERAAB
33,287,689 FHBR O EmBEAA IR
BESREEED  HBPERGERA
RS AERE BN EREERRAREAR
#433,287,689 KB BRH 2w - BB
AR EERARBREAR AT ——F
AA+EtHE HRHZEERTRE
23,391,630 K FAER GO 2 HED R _F
——FRA+RBXRH-

#100,000,000% #& 3@ & % {» & & Loyal
Concept Limited ([Loyal Concept]) A E z= #
BAFHHE 250,000,000 L FHERAS
LA K BB R R &S Al e e A&
50,000,000 % f A% B2 {9 ° Loyal Conceptma
WEEEBRAF (ERMHDABERZ T LET)
ME2ERE BREFHFRBERL - 8
Bl E B R AR AR &5 B Loyal Concept
A 7%100,000,000 % &L AR D 2 s ©

578,613,668 1% #& # % % 17 8 #& Kabouter
Fund Il, LLC + Kabouter Fund | (QP), LLC }%
International Select Partners, LP ([Kabouter
Bz BRI B HFA 239,306,834
% 48 S B R D - LA K Kabouter 52 B Z ik B
ARERERBETIIBEAZEAB A H
39,306,834 Ak n - E It - RIEBEFFH
N EIE &P - Kabouter Management LLC
1R B WA 5%278,613,668% 45 3 B AR 19 2 #E
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e
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5. These 60,390,355 Adjusted Shares include (a) 22,232,498 Adjusted
Shares held by Dynamic Master and 7,899,218 Adjusted Shares held by
Up & Rise; (b) an aggregate of 30,131,716 Rights Shares that they have
agreed to take up pursuant to the Irrevocable Undertaking; and (c)
outstanding share options to subscribe for 126,923 Adjusted Shares
granted to Dr. Wong under the Share Option Scheme.

Dynamic Master is owned as to 58.37%, 32.76% and 5.32% by
Goodhold, Hunterland City and Up & Rise respectively. Goodhold is
owned as to 50% by each of Dr. Leung and Dr. Wong. Hunterland
City is 99.99% owned by Dr. Leung. Up & Rise is wholly-owned by Dr.
Leung. Dr. Wong, spouse of Dr. Leung, is therefore deemed to be
interested in the Adjusted Shares held by Dynamic Master and Up &
Rise under the SFO.

6. Emperor Securities Limited is interested in these Adjusted Shares by
virtue of the Underwriting Agreement. Emperor Securities Limited is an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Emperor Capital Group Limited, the
shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. 63.94% of the
shares of Emperor Capital Group Limited are held by Emperor Capital
Group Holdings Limited. The entire issued share capital of Emperor
Capital Group Holdings Limited is held by Albert Yeung Holdings
Limited, which in turn is held by STC International Limited on trust for
The Albert Yeung Discretionary Trust (the “AY Trust”). Dr. Yeung Sau
Shing, Albert, as founder of the AY Trust, and Ms. Luk Siu Man,
Semon, as the spouse of Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert, are deemed to
be interested in the 373,856,164 Rights Shares for the purpose of the
SFO.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions set out in notes 33 (a) (i) to (iii)
to the financial statements (the “Transactions”) which are in
existence or entered into during the fifteen months ended 31
December 2012 fall under the definition of connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

During the fifteen months ended 31 December 2012, details of
the continuing connected transactions set out in note 33(a) (i)
required to be disclosed are set out in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” in this report.
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5. £2.60,390,355 % #4€ 78 2 % 19 £ 15 (a)Dynamic
Master &z Up & Rise? 5l A 222,232,498
1% 127,899,218k &8 T E R 15 (b)) E 2 A
BARB N AIHE A& GE &R 2 & ££30,131,716
RS ROEBLRIEERET S
XA RE126,923REFHE KD 2 R1TE
i ik o

Goodhold + = #& F| X Up & Rise 7 7l #
A Dynamic Master 258.37% * 32.76% &
5.32% ## 7 ° Goodhold A 21 L k& E+
DRIEESO% R - FTEFNBRELHE
99.99% %5 ° Up & RisemRE+2 &%
BoRHt BEFHFLRAEKRD  REL
2 B0 15 5 18 1+ #5474 % A Dynamic  Master
KUp & RiseTis AR AERGND 2w -

6. BEFFEB)ARATEHHZEME
EZEKERAERND 2 ER - REFFH (FHE)
ERAFAREBHEEFRAT (ARG
REZFAEMmcBE2ENRBAR - HE
BEEE B R AR 263.94% 0% 13 B Emperor
Capital Group Holdings Limited # £ °
Emperor Capital Group Holdings Limited 2
2HEEITRAABIEZKREXZRER
NEFEE  MEXKEZEERERAFA
F STC International Limited /& The Albert
Yeung Discretionary Trust ([AY Trust]) 2 7
HEAFE RABLFRBEKROIME - 15
S ERIETERAY TrustZ BISZ A - RBENE
ZEEAGIRELZ2RE AR AR
373,856,164 % it fk B fn A -

BEXHABALRS

B 75 3R 2% Bt 5% 33(a) (i) 2 (iii) T &4 = [ Bt
TRG(ZERS| IRBEE_ZT——
F+-—A=+—HUETHRBEAFER
V)BR ETRBIEIAAZITRE 22
REORBFEMERS -
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Report of the Directors EE B & &

The other Transactions set out in notes 33(a) (i) and (iii) fall
under Rules 14A.33(3) (c) and 14A.65 (4) of the Listing Rules
respectively and are exempted from reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements in the
Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules (where
applicable) with respect to the connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions entered into by the
Company for the fifteen months ended 31 December 2012.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the fifteen months ended 31 December 2012, the
Group has entered into certain tenancy agreements which
constituted continuing connected transactions under Rule
14A.34 of the Listing Rules. Details of the connected
transactions required to be disclosed are set out as follows:

Terms

HA PR

Connected person

FAEANL

Date of agreement

EAE

B 5E33G)) R (i T R iZERH 5
Bl B 38 B 8514A.33(3)(c) K2 14A.65(4)
BT ATE  WERRETETRIZ
AR AEMBIYBRRIERT -

RAIEEB EMBANBEUAEZE(WER)
MEREBEE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—H
H+EBEAFI I Z2EBER G R ERE
REETWERT -

FiERERXS
REBEE_E——F+=-_A=+—HIET
AR @I TETHERZ
B ERRBIE LR B 14A 34K 1%
RIEBEMESS - MTEHIZSHER
SETHEZFE:

Annual rental
payable

FE £ 4 10

Premises

L/ES

Winco (Dongguan) Paper
Products Co., Ltd
(Note (a))

31 December 2009 and 3 years commencing
27 February 2012 from 1 January 2010
and 1 January 2013

KE(RE)RMERLRF —TBAF+-A
(M E @) =t—BRk-FE——F BEA=ZFRE-ZT—

—A=++«A F-A—RBH=F

Notes:

(a) Winco (Dongguan) Paper Products Co., Ltd., a company controlled by
Dr. Wong and Dr. Leung.

(b)  Rental paid for the period 1 October 2011 to 31 December 2011:
HK$312,000 (equivalent RMB253,500) and from 1 January 2012 to 31
December 2012: HK$1,246,000 (equivalent RMB1,014,000).

E:g—gi—ﬁ—ﬁ

Certain blocks of
factory and office
buildings in Shitanbu
Control Zone,
Tangsha, Dongguan,
Guangdong
Province, the PRC

FEERER:ED
¥ S A B i
ERERATIM
P3N

B 3

For the period from

1 October 2011 to
31 December 2012:
HK$1,558,000

(For the year ended
30 September 2011:
HK$1,209,000)
(Note (b))

—T-—%1+A-8%

—T——%+=A
=+—HHM™:
1,558,000 7t (B =
—E——%NA=+
BIEEE : 1,209,000
7 7T) (M 3 (b))

@ XE(RZ)ARABRABDDHEEFLLR

BEEHZ AT -

by HR=ZZE——F+A—HE==-ZT——F+=A

=+—HEBR-ZE

——#—A—H&=F

——HE+-A=+—HHBzENEAELH
51 4312,000% 7T (FEE R AR 253,5007T)
1%1,246,0007% 7t (A8 & 7 A R #1,014,000

JL) °
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All the continuing connected transactions were entered in the
ordinary course of business on normal commercial terms.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that the transactions are:

— in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the
Group;

— on normal commercial terms;
— in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the

interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditors have confirmed in a letter to the
board of directors that:

— The connected transactions have received the approval of
the Company’s board of directors;

— There was an agreement
transaction; and

in place governing each

— The connected transactions had not exceeded the
respective amount approved by shareholders.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws in Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate turnover attributable to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for approximately 63.5% (2011: 45.0%)
and the largest customer accounted for approximately 24.0%
(2011: 11.7%) of the Group’'s total turnover for the fifteen
months ended 31 December 2012.

The aggregate purchase attributable to the Group's five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 55.2% (2011: 53.1%)
and the largest supplier accounted for approximately 20.6%
(2011: 16.5%) of the Group’s total purchases for the fifteen
months ended 31 December 2012.

Qin Jia Yuan Media Services Company Limited #)+&IEEREER QA
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At no time during the period have the Directors, their
associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had any interest in these major
customers and suppliers.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the fifteen months ended 31
December 2012 were audited by KPMG. KPMG retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
Qin Jia Yuan Media Services Company Limited

LAI Tsz Wah
Director

Hong Kong, 27 March 2013

A RAEE - RFLBMBALTHE
A AR (R E F A BB QR IRA5% A
FERBEREE LR T2ERPRHEER
ZAE AR AR o

ARFRE
REARESZAHENRIEEEH A
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TRAIFTIRE 2 ARFRE -

¥ BB
BHE_Z——F+-_A=+—HI+H
BAZHMEHRREBESRETAER
gtz - EEEETEBMBREL
RFEERBBEEBREMT REERE
BEREEBREEEET[THSZFAE
A RRZEE I RER -
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Independent Auditor’s Report %1 #% B Ef iR &

e

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Qin Jia Yuan Media Services Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Qin
Jia Yuan Media Services Company Limited (the “Company”) set
out on pages 68 to 207, which comprise the consolidated and
company balance sheets as at 31 December 2012, the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
fifteen months ended 31 December 2012 and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

Qin Jia Yuan Media Services Company Limited #)+&IEEREER QA
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2012 and of the Group's loss
and cash flows for the fifteen months ended 31 December
2012 in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 27 March 2013
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Consolidated Income Statement 48 1555 %

——F A= —Hit+HalEA

For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2012 # 7 -2
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAETTFITR)

Fifteen
months Year
ended ended
31 December 30 September
2012 2011
BE HE

—F—-——f —E——%F
+=-A=+—H AA=1+H

IE+HEAR IEFE
Note $'000 $'000
Bt 5E T T
Turnover BxE 3 478,842 742,234
Direct costs HEKAK (367,202) (557,349)
111,640 184,885
Other revenue H g A 4(a) 29,819 1,285
Other net (expense)/income H(F %), e \? B 4(b) (42,630) 20,183
Impairment loss for accounts }KHSZEEIT < FEA R
receivable, prepayments, ?ﬁ%&,ﬁ\@ﬁg%%ﬂlﬁz
deposits and other receivables (B & 1R 5(c) (173,089) —
Impairment loss for intangible mILEECREEE
assets 13 (291,079) —
Administrative and other operating 771 M H fib & & X
expenses (93,459) (93,544)
(Loss)/profit from operations mE(BE) (458,798) 112,809
Change in fair value of derivative T4 ¢m T EZ
financial instruments NEEEF 26 40,937 22,817
Share of profit from associates JE 1k Bt & 2 &) i A 1,167 3,486
Finance costs 1 7 B A 5(a) (159,703) (78,953)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRPiET(E518) itk 5 (576,397) 60,159
Income tax Fr 15 %% 6 (49,831) (5,691)
(Loss)/profit for the period/year A HiM <&
(518) @ F (626,228) 54,468

68  Qin Jia Yuan Media Services Company Limited E)+4 8BRS B R A 7
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For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2012 #ZF —F— —F+ - H=+—Hi+7EH

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAETTFIT)

Fifteen
months Year
ended ended
31 December 30 September
2012 2011
BE HE

—F—-——f —E——%F
+=-A=+—H AA=1+H

IF+HM@EA IFFE
Note $'000 $'000
B 5 T F T
Attributable to: THEIEREN:
Equity shareholders of the NEIREREA
Company (628,058) 53,748
Non-controlling interests FEVE B 14 1,830 720
(Loss)/profit for the period/year A EAR 4EE
(B548) its F (626,228) 54,468
(Loss)/earnings per share SKR(EBE), B
Basic AR 9(a) $(1.49) $0.37
Diluted B 9(b) $(1.49) $0.37

The notes on pages 79 to 207 form part of these financial M E79H £ FE207B 2 Wi B ZE Y%
statements. ik z—#H o
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For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2012 #Z _—F— —F+-H=+—HIF1+7HA
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAETTFITR)

Fifteen
months Year
ended ended
31 December 30 September
2012 2011
BE BHE

—g—C-F —T——%F
+-—A=+—H HALA=+H

IE+AEA IEFE
$'000 $'000
T T
(Loss)/profit for the period/year MM Fm(B5H#) (@#H (626,228) 54,468
Other comprehensive income for the A H#If EEHM2EEZE
period/year
Exchange difference on translation of &8 SN B A &) B 7% 3 &
financial statements of foreign EECERER
subsidiaries (750) (6,765)
Reclassification adjustment for loss on R X EEFRISHAELNEE
settlement of cross currency interest EBREZ2ENDEAER
rate swap contract — 4,264
S 1) (2,501)
Total comprehensive income for the I EFE
period/year 2EESEE (626,978) 51,967
Attributable to: THEIERE :
Equity shareholders of the Company — A& EHFEF A (628,808) 51,247
Non-controlling interests I 1% 1 A A 1,830 720
Total comprehensive income for the A/ EE
period/year 2EEGEE (626,978) 51,967

The notes on pages 79 to 207 form part of these financial M F798 & £2078 7 M 5 & It % 8 1%
statements. WEkz—8H -
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As at 31 December 2012 RZ-FE—Z—F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAETTFIT)

As at As at
31 December 30 September
2012 2011

RZ¥|—ZF HR-F——F
+=A=+—H NA=+H

Note $'000 $'000
B 5 F Tt F 7t

Non-current assets ERHEE
Fixed assets @ E & E 1 85,270 120,447
Intangible assets BEEE 13 871,998 877,661
Goodwill RS 14 21,076 21,076
Interest in associates REE AR 2R 15 3,858 70,973
Other financial assets BB igEE 16 31,908 31,908
Other assets Hib&E 380 380
1,014,490 1,122,445
Current assets RENE E
Inventories FE 17 548,724 377,903
Accounts receivable & U BR 3k 18(a) 150,161 409,663
Prepayments, deposits and other FEfTFIE & & &

receivables B fE W SRR 18(b) 146,256 254,283
Pledged deposits EEAEFER 20 112,113 89,281
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY 21 55,077 211,875
e 1,012,331 1,343,005
Current liabilities k=R
Bank loans and overdrafts BITERKEBEX 22 (405,472) (332,248)
Loans from shareholders RKEKREBEZER 23(a) (12,697) (28,000)
Other loans EmER 23(b) (62,998) —
Accruals and other payables EETERNKEMBEMNIKIE 24 (335,493) (504,301)
Current taxation N HRFR 18 (67,516) (19,252)
Derivative financial instruments $T4£ 4@ T A 25 — (40,937)
Convertible notes Al iR e IR 26 (124,501) (120,790)
. (1,008,677) (1,045,528)
Net current assets AE&E=EFE 0 3654 297477
Total assets less current BEERAHERE

liabilities 1,018,144 1,419,922
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAETTFITR)

As at 31 December 2012 R-ZFE——#+—-H=+—H

As at As at
31 December 30 September
2012 2011

RZ¥|—ZF HR-F——F
+=A=+—H NA=+H

Note $'000 $'000
B 5 F Tt F 7t
Non-current liabilities EFRBERE
Bank loans RITEXR 22 (23,668) (68,703)
Deferred tax liability BEEBIBEBEE 6(c) (6,868) (8,609)
e (30,536) (77,312)
NET ASSETS EEFE 987,608 1,342,610
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRGEE 28
Share capital N 365,662 72,879
Reserves {5 1 618,504 1,267,528
Total equity attributable to AT REFH A EL
equity shareholders of the BB
Company 984,166 1,340,407
Non-controlling interests FEEHMER 3,442 2,203
TOTAL EQUITY XS EE 987,608 1,342,610

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors
on 27 March 2013.

LAI Tsz Wah
HyE

Director

EF

The notes on pages 79 to 207 form part of these financial
statements.
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Balance Sheet EEEB %

As at 31 December 2012 RZ-FE—Z—F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAETTFIT)

As at As at
31 December 30 September
2012 2011

R-ZF-—Z%F R-FT——%F
+=-A=+-—H NA=+H

Note $'000 $'000
BT 5 Fx Tt
Non-current assets ERHEE
Investment in subsidiaries RMBRACEE 2 60,943 72943
Current assets RENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries  JF& Yg Bf B A &) ZL 18 19 923,005 1,446,993
Prepayments, deposits and other FE{TFIE « &L & &
receivables H b e U k1R 19,238 15,277
Pledged deposits EEAEFER 20 21,800 —
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEFEEY 21 74 126
o oeaam 14623%
Current liabilities RENERE
Amounts due to subsidiaries XN NG 19 (114,252) (24,181)
Loan from a shareholder KE—BWREZER 23(a) — (28,000)
Other loans EmER 23(b) (51,800) —
Accruals and other payables FEETERKEMBEMNKIE 24 (14,997) (22,239)
Derivative financial instruments $T4£ 4@ T A 25 — (40,937)
Convertible notes AR E T 26 (124,501) (120,790)
e (305,550) ~ (236,147)
Net current assets nBpEEFE 000 658,567 1,226,249
NET ASSETS BEEFE 719,510 1,299,192
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As at 31 December 2012 R-ZFE——#+—-H=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (& 5)7)

As at As at
31 December 30 September
2012 2011
NR=ZF—Z-8F R-_T——F
+=A=+—H hAB=+H
Note $'000 $'000
B 5% T F 7t
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BXREE 28
Share capital fi& < 365,662 72,879
Reserves 7% & 353,848 1,226,313
TOTAL EQUITY A 719,510 1,299,192

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors RZT—=F=H-++tHKES<H

on 27 March 2013. R R
LAl Tsz Wah GUO Hong
By E AT
Director Director
g o

The notes on pages 79 to 207 form part of these financial M E798 £ FE2078 2 Wik AL E %

statements. MR 22— B -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Fquity 4 & ##t % 8 5% L] I-

For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2012 #Z _—ZF——F+-H=+—HiF+7EA
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAETTFIT)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AERERHAELS
Equity
component Retained
Capital of earnings/ Non-
Share Share General redemption Capital Exchange Hedging convertible Warrant (Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve  reserve reserve notes reserve losses) Total interests Total
-& AFXEE -R& Hib TRERER ZRE REERN/ E3:300:
RE RHRE HE HE  HE ERRE i ZERHY BEEE (BHEBER) @z i @z
Note $'000 $'000  $'000 $'000  $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i Fr Ffr Fr fr Fn Fr Fr fr  Fr Fr T T T
Balance at 1 October 2010  R=F-F%
+A-BZ&R 63,827 851,106 666 95 8838  (13,341) (4,264) —  53% 192,400 1,104,719 894 1,105,613
Changes in equity for 2011: =% ——%
ZRERD:
Profit for the year AEERF — — — — — — — — - 53,748 53,748 720 54,468
Other comprehensive income Et2EEBH — — - - — (6,765 4,264 — - - (2,501) — (2,501)
Total comprehensive income for AEE2EB % AH
the year — — — — — (6,765) 4,264 — — 53,748 51,247 720 51,967
Dividends declared in respect of St EEEFERZBKE  28(b)ii),
the previous year 28(c)(iv) 121 1,870 - - - - - - - (10,765) (8,774) - (8,774)
Dividends declared in respect of HAFEERZHKE  28(b)),
the current year 28(c)(iv) — — — — — — — — — (11,937)  (11,937) —  (11,937)
Placement of shares RERR 28(c)ii) 6,560 102,423 — — — — — — — — 108,983 — 108,983
Equity settled share-based REZHZS
transactions 27 — — — — 3,691 — — — — — 3,691 — 3,691
Remuneration shares BN 28(c)(v) 137 2,069 — — — — — — — — 2,206 — 2,206
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEREAR 28(c)(vi),
30(a) 459 7,080 — — — — — — — - 7,539 589 8,128
Conversion of convertible notes ~ E#H A #KREH 26(d) 1775 26,587 - - — — — — - — 28362 — 28362
Reclassification of convertible ~ B HEAHRBEZE
notes 26(a) — — — — — — — 54,371 — - 54,371 — 54,371
Balance at 30 September 2011 R=F——%
and 1 October 2011 hRA=+ER
—g--%
+A-B248 72,879 991,135 666 95 12,529 (20,106) — 54371 539 223,446 1,340,407 2,203 1,342,610
Changes in equity for 20122 Z—F—ZF
ZRESS:
Profit for the period KHEET — — — — — — — — — (628,058) (628,058 1,830 (626,228)
Other comprehensive income E2@EBE — — — — — (750) — — — — (750) — (750)
Total comprehensive income for  AHH2EBHAHE
the period — — — — — (750) — — — (628,058) (628,808) 1,830 (626,978)
Dividends declared in respect of 5t FFEFRZBRE  28(0)(i),
the previous year 28(c)(iv) 527 1,440 — — — — — — — (1,404) 563 — 563
Dividends declared in respect of FAHBHEE R ZBEE  28(b)(i),
the current period 28(c)(iv) 329 24 - - — — — — - (1,170) (817) - (817)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAT 30(b) — — — — — — — — — — — (591) (591)
Issue of new shares upon rights  fft i B 3 7 #7 fk
issue 28(c)(vii) 291,927 (11,256) - - - - - - - — 280,671 — 280,671
Equity settled share-based REZHZS
transactions 27 — — — — (7,850 — — — — — (7,850) — (7,850)
Balance at 31 December 2012 R-F—ZF
+-ZA=+-8
4] 365,662 981,343 666 95 4,679 (20,856 — 54,371 5,392 (407,186) 984,166 3,442 987,608

The notes on pages 79 to 207 form part of these financial M &79H & FE2078 2 Wit Bt ZE Y%
statements. Wz o—8D
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 48 B 2K E%*

For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2012

HE—FT——F+_A=+—HIF+HMEA

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAETTFITR)
Fifteen months ended Year ended
31 December 2012 30 September 2011
BE-%--% HEZZ2——4F%
+ZA=+-HLE+RER NA=THLEEE
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
bt 3 i T T T
Operating activities GEEY
(Loss)/profit before taxation BB (BR), &7 (576,397) 60,159
Adjustments for: BRTINEEELRE:
Amortisation and depreciation BERTE 5(c) 70,797 45,375
Change in fair value of derivative fTEemIA
financial instruments PANSEIY 1) 25 (40,937) (22,817)
Interest income RGN 4(a) (960) (855)
Share of profit from associates FE1E B2 R RD&E A (1,167) (3,486)
Finance costs BB 5(@) 159,703 78,953
Impairment loss for accounts BN BRX
receivable, prepayments, deposits B ReREME
and other receivables BB REEE 50 173,089 —
Impairment loss for intangible assets ~EFEEZREEBE 13 291,079 —
Gain on disposal of fixed assets HERTEENS 4(b) (1,353) (10,273)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEHNBARERE 4(b) 45,021 —
Fquity settled share-based payment %12 S F 5
expenses (7.850) 3,691
Exchange difference i 5= &8 (824) (4,873)
Operating profit before changes in Z2EZ &S &
working capital ZEERH 110,201 145,874
Increase in inventories FELM (170,821) (36,814)
Decrease/(increase) in accounts FEMBRFUR 2/ (38 40)
receivable 255,681 (98,191)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and FETHIE « B & N
other receivables H fth e W R IEE N (62,786) (80,375)
(Decrease)/increase in accruals and EAERRAEMER
other payables FECRD),/ B (166,154) 99,525
(144,080) (115,855)
Cash (used in)/generated from cgEH(MA),/
operations FEHe (33,879) 30,019
Tax paid: ERHIE:
— Overseas tax paid — BRENIE (2,658) (36)

Qin Jia Yuan Media Services Company Limited #)+&IEEREER QA



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 48 £ 7% E

For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2012 #ZF —F— —F+ - H=+—Hi+7EH

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAETTFIT)
Fifteen months ended Year ended
31 December 2012 30 September 2011
BE-%--% HEZZ2——4F%
+ZA=+-HLE+RER NA=THLEEE
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
bt 3 i T T T
Net cash (used in)/generated from E&EF& (FiAH)/
operating activities FBR&FE (36,537) 29,983
Investing activities BREEH
Acquisition of subsidiaries KEHBEAT — (34,681)
Addition in interest in an EmMR—FEBEAR
associate 2R (4,797) —
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets HEE T & E MG HE 18,970 32,685
Proceeds from disposal of intangible  HEEFEEMSHE
assets — 266,135
Disposal of subsidiaries k=N 40,053 —
Payment for purchase of fixed assets EBAEEEE 2 H A (3,532) (3,358)
Payment for purchase of intangible ~ BAEFEE 2 HA
assets (347,972) (367,025)
Interest received B A B 960 855
Net cash used in investing BREEHMARSTE
activities (296,318) (105,389)
Financing activities MEEH
Increase in pledged deposits BHAFFEM (22,832) (20,242)
Proceeds from new bank loans MERITER 277,360 140,541
Repayment of bank loans BERTER (263,832) (155,971)
Proceeds from other loans HwERMERE 62,998 —
Proceeds from loans from shareholders KB R R 2 &5
Mg A 12,697 28,000
Repayment of loan from a shareholder B RE— %K R
ZER (28,000) —
Interests paid ERFE (65,322) (48,844)
Net proceeds from rights issue iR TS RIBFE 28(c)(vii) 280,671 —
Net proceeds from issuance of shares #47R% {5 BT 15 B 558 — 111,189
Redemption of convertible notes B A% KREE 26(g) (90,670) —
Dividends paid BERRE (1,674) (8,774)
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For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LOBTTST)

HE—FT——F+_A=+—HIF+HMEA

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement &8 B £ E%*

Fifteen months ended Year ended
31 December 2012 30 September 2011
BE-%-C-% HE-T——%
+ZA=+—-HLE+EER NAA=THLFE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T T T
Net cash generated from financing MEEHRABREFE
161,396 45,899
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRBEEEY
(171,459) (29,507)
Cash and cash equivalents at the 1/ &#2ZH &
beginning of the period/year RE2%EEY 207,289 236,796
Cash and cash equivalents at the 1/ &XzH &
end of the period/year REEEEY 35,830 207,289

The notes on pages 79 to 207 form part of these financial
statements.

MREIOBEZF207/B 2T AL F K

HwERz2—8D -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B # i Zff 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (55 &#5855) + LETTIR)

CHANGE OF YEAR END DATE

The majority of the businesses of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) are
carried out in the People’s Republic of China (“the PRC").
The business partners of the Group and the Company’s
subsidiaries established in the PRC have their financial
year end on 31 December. On 30 April 2012, the
Company announced its financial year end date has been
changed from 30 September to 31 December which aims
to facilitate the Company when preparing and updating
its financial statements for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the
Company’s current financial period covers a period of
fifteen months from 1 October 2011 to 31 December
2012.

The comparative figures presented for the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, the consolidated cash flow statement
and the related notes, which cover the year ended 30
September 2011, are therefore not comparable with those
of the current period.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@) Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group
is set out below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #if Zff 5%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. There have been no
significant changes to the accounting policies
applied in these financial statements as a result of
these developments.

The Group has not applied any new standards or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the fifteen
months ended 31 December 2012 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that available-for-sale equity securities and
derivative financial instruments are stated at their
fair value as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about the carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (55 & #5895} » LUETTIIR)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B # R Zfff 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (55 &#5855) + LETTIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

(9]

statements (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on
the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 35.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In
assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #if Zff 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5 & #5895} + LUETTIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXEEFERE)
(continued)
() Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests () MBATIRIEHIMER
(continued) (&)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated income statement and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the period between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards
these holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated balance sheet in accordance with
notes 2(0), (p) or (g) depending on the nature of
the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are
made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity to
reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see note 2(f)) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate (see note 2(d)).

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less any impairment
losses (see note 2(I)(i)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B # i Zff 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &#5855) + LUETTIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHHE(ZE
(continued)
(d) Associates d) BEAT

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless it is classified as held for sale. Under
the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post
acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see note 2(I)(i)). The
Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the investees and any impairment losses
for the period are recognised in the consolidated
income statement, whereas the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition post tax items of the investee's
other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate, the Group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For this
purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying amount
of the investment under the equity method together
with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #if Zff 5%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(d) Associates (continued)

(e)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a jointly
controlled entity, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the date
when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see note 2(f)) or, when appropriate, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in
associates and jointly controlled entities are stated at
cost less impairment losses (see note 2(I)(i)).

Goodwiill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
fair value of the Group's previously held equity
interest in the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on
a bargain purchase.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5 & #5895} + LUETTIR)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B # i Zff 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &#5855) + LUETTIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see note 2(I)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the
period, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit
or loss on disposal.

Available-for-sale equity securities
Investments in available-for-sale equity securities are
initially stated at fair value, which is their
transaction price unless fair value can be more
reliably estimated using valuation techniques whose
variables include only data from observable markets.
Cost includes attributable transaction costs.

Investments in available-for-sale equity securities that
do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are recognised in the balance sheet at
cost less impairment losses (see note 2(I)(i)).

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At each balance sheet date the
fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss on
remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately to profit or loss, except where the
derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting,
in which case recognition of any resultant gain or
loss depends on the nature of the item being
hedged (see note 2(h)).

2

FEE

(e)

(f)

(9)

stBUR(42)

M (E)

BB R AR R AT RUE B 1B
JIME - B EHELEZHE
Nk EREREELEM
FEERELEGAR -
ReELXBURBARE G
EXZHRAERERZ 1€
FEETRENR (2T
2(1)(ii)) »

B E RS BB - (T
MR BN EEE RS
R 5 ) o 5 R
HAER -

g ERAES
RAEHERAES 2 RE R
M AFENE ZRrFE
IR S8 - BRIFRFEAIRA
BEDEEAEMEE - BA
MEESTZCEREERR
KARBRERMSHEIE - KAE
REEIHHRA

KA EERTISHRE - BT
BEAFFEE2AHEER
AEHFZREREEREBR
P32 B 7SO 25 BB /B 18 (2 B
B 52 201)()) 7 7R o

TTEERITH
PTESMTAERYIEATFE
R -BEAFERSRS
HAEHAE -EFFER
N EFEE ZEBREEE
BRNER  BRIEZTETHR
HEREeRBEHPSERE o
EEBRT @ FTELZEMIE
W ZRER AR T+
BB ZMHEMmEERHEMNF
2(h) ©

Annual Report 2012 3R

85



2

Notes to the Financial Statements B #iF Zff 5%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(h) Hedging

()

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated
as a hedge of the variability in cash flows of a
recognised asset or liability, the effective portion of
any gains or losses on remeasurement of the
derivative financial instrument to fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the hedging
reserve. The ineffective portion of any gain or loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Fixed assets
(i)  Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (note 2(I)

(ii)).

(i)  Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of fixed assets are
determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item and are recognised in profit or loss
on the date of retirement or disposal.

(i) Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of fixed assets, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line
method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

— land and buildings are depreciated over
the shorter of the unexpired terms of the
leases and their estimated useful lives,
being 50 vyears from the date of
completion;
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5 & #5895} + LIETTIR)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B # R Zfff 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &#5855) + LETTIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Fixed assets (continued)

()

(iii)

(continued)

— props and costumes are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives of 3 years,
except for cost of props and costumes
which are specifically purchased for the
production of a particular television
("TV") program is included in the cost of
services rendered in connection with the
production of that particular TV program;

— other fixed assets are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Leasehold improvements 2-6 years

—  Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years
and other fixed assets,
including motor vehicles

—  Production equipment 5 years

Where parts of an item of fixed assets have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #iF Zff 5%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(j) Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

(i)

(i)

Licence rights

Licence rights that are acquired by the Group
and intended for longer-term usage are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (see note 2(I)(ii)).
Amortisation is charged to profit or loss at
rates calculated to write off the costs in
proportion to the expected revenues from the
licensing of the rights. Such rates are subject
to annual review by the directors.

TV programs in progress

TV programs in progress are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(I)ii)). Costs
include capital invested and all other direct
costs associated with the production of TV
programs. Costs of TV programs are
transferred to licence rights upon completion.

(i) Advertising rights

Advertising rights represent fees paid to secure
rights to procure advertising clients to place
advertisements with certain specified
newspapers, magazines, TV channels and radio
program for a specific period of time.

Advertising rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses (see note 2(I)(ii)).

Amortisation is calculated on a straight line
basis over the agreed periods of use of the
advertising rights, starting from the date of
commencement of commercial use of the
advertising rights. Both the period and method
of amortisation are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B # R Zfff 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &#5855) + LETTIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(j) Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
(continued)
(lv) Customer contract costs
Costs incurred to acquire contractual

relationships with customers are capitalised if it
is probable that future economic benefits will
flow from the customers to the Group and
such costs can be measured reliably. Customer
contract costs are stated at cost less
impairment
Capitalised customer
contract costs are amortised on a straight line
the minimum enforceable
By the end of the
minimum enforceable contractual period, fully

accumulated amortisation and
losses (see note 2(I)(ii)).

basis over
contractual periods.
amortised customer contract costs will
written off.

In the event that a customer terminates the
contract prior to the end of the minimum
period, the
unamortised customer contract cost will be

enforceable contractual
written off immediately to profit or loss.

(v) Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
indefinite) and

useful life is other than
impairment losses (see note 2(I)(ii)).

Amortisation of other intangible assets

charged to profit or loss on a straight line
basis over the asset’s estimated useful lives
(unless such lives are indefinite) or over the
Both the period and
method of amortisation and any conclusion
that the useful life of an intangible asset is

contractual period.

indefinite are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #iF Zff 5%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(k) Leased assets

(i)

(1)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Leases which do not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases, except
where land held for own use under an
operating lease, the fair value of which cannot
be measured separately from the fair value of
a building situated thereon at the inception of
the lease, in such cases, it is accounted for as
being under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the Group, or taken over from
the previous lessee.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B # R Zfff 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &#5855) + LETTIR)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EETBER(E)
(continued)
() Impairment of assets () EER{E
(i) Impairment of investments in equity () BREEFIREHE
securities

BARZBAHLERER
HIR 2R - Mﬁ&ﬁr
EHRERE BB
BEREBRES EEE
AEBRATEREZA
FEABIEHTIRE
ERERAE 2B =R
% o

Investments in equity securities are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that come to the attention of
the Group about a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an investment in an
equity instrument below its cost.

MREBRERE &
G N XA E E M

If such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance with
note 2(1)(ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment losses
for equity securities carried at cost are
not reversed.

RBEEE:

— For investments in subsidiaries and — BRHEBA
associates (including those recognised ““TZ&%(@%
using the equity method (see note 2(d))), FREDEAER
the impairment loss is measured by (2 B Bt 5E2(d ))ﬁﬁ
comparing the recoverable amount of the T OREEBERS
investment with its carrying amount in B RRE 2RI
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #iF Zff 5%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity
securities (continued)

()

For available-for-sale securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised
in the fair value reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in profit
or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in profit
or loss. Impairment losses recognised in
profit or loss in respect of available-for-
sale equity securities are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets is
recognised in other comprehensive
income. Impairment losses in respect of
available-for-sale debt securities are
reversed if the subsequent increase in fair
value can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised. Reversals of impairment
losses in such circumstances are
recognised in profit or loss.

(ii) Impairment of other assets
Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be

impaired or an
recognised no

impairment loss previously
longer exists or may have

decreased:

fixed assets;
intangible assets; and

goodwill.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B # R Zfff 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &#5855) + LETTIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

()

If any such

indication exists, the asset's

recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, intangible assets that are not yet
available for use and intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.

@)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less cost to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of

assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #iF Zff 5%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

()

(b)

(©

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss whenever the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the «carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less
costs to sell, or value in wuse, if
determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss
in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the period in
which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B # R Zfff 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &#5855) + LETTIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

() Impairment of assets (continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and

impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial period (see notes 1(I)
(i) and (ii)). Impairment losses recognised in an
interim period in respect of goodwill,
available-for-sale equity securities and
unquoted equity securities carried at cost are
not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the
case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would
have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial
year to which the interim period relates.
Consequently, if the fair value of an available-
for-sale equity security increases in the
remainder of the annual period, or in any
other period subsequently, the increase is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
not profit or loss.

(m) Inventories
Inventories represent the cost of acquisition of
certain scripts, synopses and editing rights held for
sale or production in the ordinary course of
business and are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #iF Zff 5%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(m) Inventories (continued)

(n)

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

The carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue in respect of the provision of script-
writing/editing services is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value
and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss
occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories, is recognised as a reduction in
the amount of inventories recognised as an expense
in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts
except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B # R Zfff 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &#5855) + LETTIR)

FEEHBRE)
n) ESRAMEBKKRIEGE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)
(n) Trade and other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are
recognised when there is objective evidence of
impairment and are measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate, where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively where
financial assets carried at amortised cost share
similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the asset's
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses for receivables whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote are recorded
using an allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against
receivables directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #iF Zff 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5 & #5895} + LIETTIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BRTBR(E)
(continued)
(o) Convertible notes (o) Tk pEER
The Group issues convertible notes with and S E R RZHITHS R AT
without detachable warrants. At initial recognition “%&3@9&%?&27%@&%& °
the derivative component of the convertible notes %ﬂ TR YA R

with and without detachable warrants is measured
at fair value and presented as part of derivative
financial instruments (see note 2(g)).

For convertible notes without detachable warrants,
any excess of proceeds over the amount initially
recognised as the derivative component is
recognised as the liability component.

For convertible notes with detachable warrants, the
liability component is measured as the present value
of the future interest and principal payments,
discounted at the market rate of interest applicable
at the time of initial recognition to similar liabilities
that do not have a conversion option and warrants.
The warrants, being the excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as liability component
and derivative financial instruments is recognised as
the equity component.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible notes are allocated to the liability,
derivative and equity components in proportion to
the allocation of proceeds. The portion of the
transaction costs relating to the liability and equity
component is recognised initially as part of the
liability and equity respectively. The portion relating
to the derivative component is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The derivative component is subsequently
remeasured in accordance with note 2(g). The
liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in
profit or loss on the liability component is calculated
using the effective interest method. The equity
component is recognised in the warrant reserve until
either the warrants are exercised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B # R Zfff 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &#5855) + LETTIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Convertible notes (continued)

If the note is converted, the carrying amounts of the
derivative and liability components are transferred to
share capital and share premium as consideration
for the shares issued. If the note is redeemed, any
difference between the amount paid and the
carrying amounts of both components is recognised
in profit or loss. If the warrants are exercised, the
warrant reserve, together with the proceeds received
at the time of exercise, is transferred to share
capital and share premium as consideration for the
shares issued. If the warrants are not exercised upon
expiry, the respective capital reserve is released
directly to retained profits.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with note 2(u)(i), trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #iF Zff 5%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

(s)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’'s cash
management are also included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
consolidated cash flow statement.

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and
the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the period in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

(i) Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans
Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as
required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Employees of the subsidiaries established in the
PRC participate in defined contribution
retirement plans managed by the local
government authorities whereby the
subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
plans at fixed rates of the relevant employees’
salary costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B # R Zfff 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &#5855) + LETTIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(s) Employee benefits (continued)

(i) Contributions to defined contribution

retirement plans (continued)

The Group's contributions to these plans are
charged to profit or loss when incurred. The
Group has no obligation for the payment of
retirement and other post-retirement benefits
of staff other than the contributions described

above.

(i) Share based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital
reserve within equity. The fair value
measured at grant date using the Black-Scholes
pricing model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet
becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the option will vest.

vesting conditions before

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair
value recognised in prior periods is charged/
credited to profit or loss for the period of the
review, unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to
not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The
equity amount is recognised in the capital
reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is

released directly to retained profits).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #iF Zff 5%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(s) Employee benefits (continued)

(t)

(iv) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself
to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by
having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the period comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in the other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the period, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous periods.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B # R Zfff 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &#5855) + LETTIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent
that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #iF Zff 5%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and is reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available. Additional income taxes that arise from
the distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities if, and only if,
the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or
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Notes to the Financial Statements B # R Zfff 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (555 #855)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t) Income tax (continued)
— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

the same taxable entity; or

different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

(u) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities

(i) Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #iF Zff 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5 & #5895} + LIETTIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 XEGHHEEE)
(continued)
(u) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and (v BHZMBER BER

contingent liabilities (continued) FREEE)
() Financial quarantees issued (continued) () FHZHBEERGE)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee (being the
transaction price, unless the fair value can
otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade
and other payables. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable
to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or
loss on initial recognition of any deferred
income.

The amount of the guarantee initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised in
profit or loss over the term of the guarantee
as income from financial guarantees issued. In
addition, provisions are recognised in
accordance with note 2(u)(ii) if and when (i) it
becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on
the Group is expected to exceed the amount
currently carried in trade and other payables in
respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B # R Zfff 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &#5855) + LETTIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(u) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (continued)

(i)~ Provision and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the
Company or the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present
value of expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #iF Zff 5%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(v) Revenue recognition

Revenue

is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit
or loss as follows:

(i)

(ir)

(i)

(iv)

Service income

Service income is derived from the provision of
marketing and advertising related services to
investors and advertising agencies, provision of
scripts and script editing services, ancillary
services relating to production of TV program
to production houses, and public relations
services. Service income is recognised when the
services are rendered.

Contract income

Contract income includes commission income
from introduction of funding from investors to
production houses and commission income
from introduction of TV program related
investments to investors. Commission income is
recognised when the broadcasting schedule of
the relevant TV commercial airtime is
confirmed by major TV stations, such as
provincial TV stations and/or those with
satellite broadcasting capabilities.

Licence fees

Fees from granting of distribution licence rights
are recognised over the contract period or
upon delivery of the master tape of the
relevant program in accordance with the terms
of the contracts.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B # R Zfff 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (555 #855)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(w) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the period are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items,
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 # iR Zff 5%

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(x) Borrowing costs

(y)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Related parties
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;

or

(iii) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group’s

parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B # i Z B 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (55 &#5855) » LUETTIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(y) Related parties (continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same Group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a Group of
which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 # iR Zff 5%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(y) Related parties (continued)

(2)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B # i Z B 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (55 &#5855) » LUETTIR)

3

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of
media services including TV program related services, TV
advertising services, outdoor advertising services, and
other public relations services in the PRC.

The Group provides comprehensive services to PRC TV
production houses in relation to TV program production,
starting from planning to completion of the production
processes. The Group also purchases certain distribution
licence rights directly from other rights holders and either
earns licence fees by granting such rights to film or TV
program trading companies or sells the rights to
distributors directly.

In addition, the Group provides other value-added
services such as provision of scripts and script editing
services of TV programs to its customers.

The Group also renders advertising related services in
respect of placing advertisements with TV channels and
outdoor LED screens to advertising agencies, as well as
public relation services and product promotional services
to advertisers, advertising firms and TV stations
respectively.

3
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 # iR Zff 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5 &#895) + LUETTIR)

3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 EXERTBHREE
(continued)
Turnover represents TV program related, TV advertising, EXEBERERGEE EHRES -
outdoor advertising and public relations service income, PONESHABRBKWA - L2
net of PRC business tax. The amount of each significant BRABZEER  AHFERNEER
category of revenue recognised in turnover for the period MAZSBEXER ARz
is as follows: T
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2012 2011
HBE =

—F—-_f —E——%F
+=A=+—H AA=1+H

IE+AEA IEFE

$'000 $'000

T T

TV program related income BEMREEBAKA 252,377 593,762
TV advertising income BERESFHRA 217,157 98,759
Outdoor advertising income FPINE SR A 6,198 36,846
Public relations service income NEERB WA 3,110 12,867
478,842 742,234
For the periods presented, management has determined BETS R B E AREEE
that no operating segment has been presented as the NEEBERY - WEBERED
Group is only engaged in media related services. The FIREBDH - EEMRHFEITIN
Group’s assets located and operating revenues derived ZEENBRBPREIFEINGE) 2L E
from activities outside the PRC are less than 5 per cent WAD ML EBEE E REEWRAT

of the Group’s assets and operating revenues, 5% e

respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B # i Z B 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (55 &#5855) » LUETTIR)

4 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET 4 HoWwAERHEMGFEZ)
(EXPENSE)/INCOME Wiz iFEE

(@) Other revenue (a) Hbu A
Fifteen

months ended Year ended

31 December 30 September

2012 2011

BE HZE

—E—_%f —E——F
+=A=+-—H NA=+8

IF+HEA WEFE

$'000 $'000

Fxt Tt

Interest income B WA 960 855

Customer deposits forfeited ERKEFIES 28,138 —

Others H b 721 430

29,819 1,285

(b) Other net (expense)/income (b) Hih(BR) WikiFiE

Fifteen

months ended Year ended

31 December 30 September

2012 2011

gE H=E

—F—-_F —E——%F
+=A=+—H AA=1+H

I+ AEA IEFE
$'000 $'000
T T

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAREE
(note 30(b)) (Bt 5£30(b)) (45,021) —
Net exchange gain P& 5 Ik 2 0% 58 1,038 9,910
Gain on disposal of fixed assets & [E T & &E W &= 1,353 10,273
(42,630) 20,183
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 # iR Zff 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5 &#895) + LUETTIR)

5 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5 MBA(BE) &
(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: BREA(ER), afEH0BRT5
I8 :
(@) Finance costs (a) HBRAEX
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2012 201
8=F BHZE

—T—-—%F —T——fF
+=-A=+-—H NA=+AH

IE+AEA EFE
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Interest on bank advances and BARAIFHNEHEEL
other borrowings wholly MITHAREAMBEE
repayable within five years Z B 50,499 45,994
Interest on bank borrowings wholly R RF 1% 2 EEE 2
repayable after five years RITEEZHE 1,243 2,831
Effective interest on convertible  AJAEZE 2 BEF &
notes (Note) (B 5T) 94,381 30,110
Premiums on early redemption of R FERAJEKEE 2
convertible notes (note 26(g)) i (B (Pff 52 26(g)) 10,627 —
Other interest expense H At M) B F 2 2,953 18
159,703 78,953
Note: Included in the amount for the period is effective interest Misk: AR ScEBREREED QA
of approximately $50,000,000 resulting from the early [ First Media Holdings, Ltd
redemption of the interest bearing convertible notes in ([First Medial) TR ¢ 458
the aggregate principal amount of $90,669,693 due 2015 /90,669,693 TR —E —AHF
issued by the Company to First Media Holdings, Ltd (“First B RREBRELECE
Media”) (note 26(g)). B F B 4950,000,0007T (Fff 5%
26(g)) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements B # i Z B 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (55 &#5855) » LUETTIR)

5 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 5 PBRBiEI(ES5E) #5F (&

(b) Staff costs (b) EI AKX
Fifteen

months ended Year ended

31 December 30 September

2012 2011

BE HE

—T—-_F —E——F
+=-HA=+—H HNA=+H

IE+AEA EFE
$'000 $'000
T T
Salaries, wages and other benefits ¥ & ~ T& & H b 48 Fl 28,089 28,075
Contributions to defined JEREH K
contribution retirement plans RIRE S 2,762 2,367
30,851 30,442
(c) Other items (0 H#IEH
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2012 2011
B8F BHE
—¥—-F —ET——F
+=A=+—8 AA=+H
IE+HEAR IEFE
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
Impairment loss (Note): WA BB ()
— accounts receivable — BN 35,626 —
— prepayments, deposits — ERRIE Rk
and other receivables H b JE WUKIB 137,463 —
173,089 —
Impairment loss for intangible B EEREER
assets (note 13) (FfF3E13) 291,079 —
Amortisation of intangible assets #& & & # 54 59,141 36,201
Depreciation of fixed assets BE&EERNE 11,656 9,174
Auditor’s remuneration % SR BN &
— audit services — BRZRS 1,800 1,428
— other services — EMR® 1,044 401
Operating lease charges qR@mE
in respect of properties ZIEEHERH 11,641 10,193
Cost of inventories 78 KA 56,341 82,308
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 # iR Zff 5%

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

(c) Other items (continued)
Note: Impairment loss for accounts receivable relates to balances

due from two advertising agencies located in Beijing, the
PRC, which were previously used by the Group in relation
to its TV advertising business in that region of the PRC.
The Group has scaled down the level of such business
since early 2012 and has not transacted with these
agencies since then. Despite actions taken by
management to recover the balances, they remain
unsettled and are over 15 months overdue as at 31
December 2012. Given the aging of the balances and the
Group having no current or ongoing business with these
agencies, the directors consider the likelihood of receiving
settlement to be low and full provision of $35,626,000
has therefore been made as at 31 December 2012.

Impairment loss for prepayments, deposits and other
receivables relates to payments made by the Group to
secure certain TV slots which were subsequently not able
to be utilized and payments for developing certain
business projects which the Group previously planned to
pursue. Based on the Group's current strategy,
management has undertaken a review of these projects
during the second half of 2012 and has decided to no
longer pursue or invest in them. An impairment provision
of $137,463,000 has been made at 31 December 2012
for the costs incurred to date as these are not considered
to be refundable or recoverable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B # i Z B 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (55 &#5855) » LUETTIR)

6

INCOME TAX 6 FiE#H
(a) Income tax in the consolidated income (a) ZFEEBRZHAEBIE:
statement represents:
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2012 2011
85E BHE
—E—_%f —E——F
+=-A=+-—H2 hA=+H
IE+HEAR IEFE
$'000 $'000
T F T
Current tax — Hong Kong AHABIE
Profits Tax — EEBAEH
Provision for the period/year NEARFERE — 85
Current tax — Provision for AEHE — FEEH
taxation outside Hong Kong  BiIH &
Provision for the period/year NEARE FERE 51,007 6,292
Deferred taxation iE 3 $ 18
Origination of temporary ERNEHECESE
differences (1,176) (686)
49,831 5,691

(i)  No provision has been made for Hong Kong
Profits Tax for the fifteen months ended 31
December 2012 as there were no assessable
profits. The provision for Hong Kong Profits
Tax for the year ended 30 September 2011

of the estimated

was calculated at 16.5%
assessable profits for that year.

(i)  Pursuant to the Macao SAR’'s Offshore Laws,
Qin Jia Yuan Media Services Investment Macao
Commercial Offshore Limited, a subsidiary of
the Group and a Macao offshore company, is

exempted from all taxes in Macau.

(ii)

HE-_ZT——F+-_A=
+—HLE+REA - AR
I o fE R B s A -
EEARBBNG B
H-BHE-_ZT——FAN
AR=THIFEZHE
FIEWBEERZEEE
JER T &% A 216.5% &t

= o
Ean

HRIBOR P4 1= B =%
s EgR AR B
FRERBERAR (%
BzHBEAR R -RE
FIBEF A R)) EH %R P
FrBMIA °
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 # iR Zff 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5 &#895) + LUETTIR)

6 INCOME TAX (continued) 6 FiwBi(&)
(a) Income tax in the consolidated income (a) ZFEEBRZHAEBIE:
statement represents: (continued) (#&)
(i) Income tax in the consolidated income (i) HrEefEmR 2SN IE

THIRBIRE B A :

statement represents the provision of PRC
income tax as follows:

For subsidiaries which are foreign
investment enterprises located and
operated in Shenzhen, the PRC, and
approved for establishment prior to 16
March 2007 by the State Administration
of Industrial and Commerce, the
Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC
provides a five-year transition period
during which the transitional rates are
18%, 20%, 22%, 24% and 25% for the
years ended 31 December 2008, 2009,
2010, 2011 and 2012 onwards,
respectively. Profits of other subsidiaries
established in the PRC are subject to PRC
corporate income tax at 25%. Pursuant to
the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
PRC income tax rates for domestic and
foreign enterprises in the PRC are unified
at 25%.

Foreign enterprises with permanent
establishment in the PRC are also subject
to PRC income tax at a rate of 25% on a
deemed profit basis on their PRC sourced
income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B # i Z B 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (55 &#5855) » LUETTIR)

6 INCOME TAX (continued) 6 Fi&E®(E)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) i T8 BA 32 SR 35 38 AR 1 3 5t
accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax BzEst(BE) &l
rates is as follows: BRIOTF :

Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2012 2011
BE BnE

—¥—-F —T——F
+=-A=+-—AH ANA=+A8

IE+HEA IEFE
$'000 $'000
Fx F T
(Loss)/profit before taxation Br LA (&R, a A (576,397) 60,159
Notional tax on loss before RERAREHE Y
taxation, calculated at the BRI AIE 1B 2
applicable rates ZEHIA (104,711) (4,815)
Tax effect of non-deductible DEE 1553
expenses MG E 185,095 67,518
Tax effect of non-taxable income FFFERT H&)\
2GR E (46,644) (83,834)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not & PR Z A {F A IE
recognised EEZUBTE 16,091 26,822
Actual tax expense EEHRBERAX 49,831 5,691
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 # iR Zff 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5 &#895) + LUETTIR)

6 INCOME TAX (continued) 6 FiR#H(=)
() Deferred tax liability recognised: () EHERZELEHIEERE:
The components of deferred tax liability recognised HARGEEERBERPE
in the consolidated balance sheet and the RZBEEMEBEEBEZEAR
movements during the period are as follows: BEHIMT:

Fair value
adjustment
on business
combination

E¥BEH2Z
A FEHAE
$'000
F 7t

Deferred tax arising from: DTEEMEAZEERIE:
At 1 October 2010 R_ZE-—ZF+HA—H 2,008
Acquisition of subsidiaries 1 B Bt /B8 & 7] 7,287
Credited to profit or loss FFAE R (686)
At 30 September 2011 R—_T——FhLHA=+H 8,609
At 1 October 2011 R-_ZE——F+HA—H 8,609
Disposal of a subsidiary o & —E M B A F) (565)
Credited to profit or loss FFAE R (1,176)
At 31 December 2012 W_E—_F+_H=+—H 6,868
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Notes to the Financial Statements B # i Z B 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (55 &#5855) » LUETTIR)

6

INCOME TAX (continued)
(d) Deferred tax asset not recognised:

(e)

The Group has not recognised deferred tax asset in
respect of tax losses of $836,643,000 (year ended
30 September 2011: $232,456,000) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which
the unused tax losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.
Out of the above tax losses, $204,434,000 (year
ended 30 September 2011: $159,335,000) can be
carried forward to offset against taxable profits of
subsequent years for up to five years from the year
in which they were incurred, while the remaining
tax losses do not expire under the current tax
legislation.

Withholding tax:

The China tax law imposes a withholding tax at
10% unless reduced by a treaty or agreement, for
dividends distributed by a PRC-resident enterprise to
its immediate holding company outside the PRC for
earnings generated since 1 January 2008, and
undistributed earnings generated prior to 1 January
2008 are exempt from such withholding tax.
Provision for withholding tax is recognised for the
dividends that have been declared and deferred tax
liability is recognised for those to be declared in the
foreseeable future. The Group did not recognise any
withholding tax for the fifteen months ended 31
December 2012 (year ended 30 September 2011:
Nil).

6

&8l (&)
(d) RERZEEHRIESE:

(e)
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E718836,643,0007T (B EZ-Z
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A H
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5 &#895) + LUETTIR)

7 DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION AND FIVE 7
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

ESWNERAIZEREHFAL

The remuneration of the Company’s directors is as NRIEZZHME20T:
follows:
Basic Equity Fifteen
salaries, other settled  months ended
allowances Retirement share-based 31 December
Date of Directors’ and Discretionary scheme  payment 2012
appointment/resignation fees  emoluments bonuses contributions  expenses Total
L3 BE-T--f
Hip 2 k# +=-A=t-A8
RfE/BEY ESHe REE  BRERL BAHEBR XHEX LTEEASH
(Note 27)
(M &E27)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T T
Executive directors
HAES
Mr. YIU Yan Chi Bernard Resigned on 22 March 2012 — 180 - 180
BRBLE RZ¥-Z§ZR=+ZHEfE
Mr. TSIANG Hoi Fong Resigned on 21 March 2012 — 295 - 295
BHEALE RZB-Z£ZA-+-BRf
Mr. YEUNG Ching Wan Resigned on 22 March 2012 — 935 - 940
BEERE RZ¥-Z§ZA-+ZHEfE
Mr. GUO Hong Appointed on 28 May 2012 — 166 - 166
B E R=¥-Z§5R-+\BEEHE
Mr. LAI Tsz Wah Appointed on 25 June 2012 - - - -
BTERE R-S-Z&7 A-+IREER
Non-executive directors
HRTES
Dr. LEUNG Anita Fung Yee Maria (Note) Redesignated from executive director on 9 July 2012 — 9,671 (20,118) 1 (18,286)
ZEERL () RZF-ZEtAABBERTESAE
Dr. Honourable WONG Yu Hong, Philip, GBS Resigned on 21 March 2012 50 - - 50
EHELELGBS R-B-"£ZA-+-BRE
Mr. LAM Haw Shun, Dennis, JP Resigned on 22 March 2012 — 458 133 591
MEERFHL R-F-ZE=A-+ZHEE
Mr. Stanley Emmett THOMAS Resigned on 28 May 2012 67 - - 67
Stanley Emmett THOMAS S £ R-B-ZEER-TN\BHE
Mr. Lincoln PAN Lin Feng Resigned on 28 May 2012 67 - - 67

ERERE

R-ZF-ZERAZTN\BEE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (55 &#5855) » LUETTIR)

7 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 7 EEMERABEEHFAL
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued) (4&
Basic Equity Fifteen
salaries, other settled  months ended
allowances Retirement share-based 31 December
Date of Directors’ and Discretionary scheme  payment 2012
appointment/resignation fees  emoluments bonuses contributions  expenses Total
E5He BE-S--%
bR k# +=B=t+-8
RE/BERY 82 kdg BERL BHRAEBR  XHRX LTEEASH
(Note 27)
(M&27)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T T
Non-executive directors
HHTES
Mr. ZALDIVAR Peter Alphonse Appointed on 8 July 2010 125 - — - - 125
ZALDIVAR Peter Alphonse % R-F-FELANBEZR
Mr. LIU Yuk Chi, David Resigned on 21 March 2012 — 1,000 — — — 1,000
AgEiE R-F-Z§=ZA-+-BEf
Mr. FLYNN Douglas Ronald Resigned on 22 March 2012 — 333 — - - 333
FLYNN Douglas Ronald % R-Z-ZE=R-+-HEE
Ms. HO Chiu King Pansy Catilina Resigned on 28 May 2012 67 - — — - 67
MRERL R-ZB-Z£RR-+\B&fE
Mr. OWYANG Loong Shui, lvan Resigned on 21 March 2012 - 180 - - - 180
BEERLE RZF-ZEZA-+-HEf
Dr. LIN Junbo Appointed on 17 May 2011 125 - - - - 125
MEREL R-¥--£5A+tHEEHE
Independent non-executive directors
BUkHTES
Mr. LAU Hon Chuen, GBS, JP Resigned on 8 August 2012 92 - - - - 92
ZIERCSATHT R-ZF-Z£\NANBEE
Mr. HUI Koon Man, Michael, JP Resigned on 22 October 2012 108 - - - - 108
FEXATHT R-F-ZE+A-+ZHEE
Mr. CHOU Wayne Resigned on 31 August 2012 92 - - - - 92
AERE RZF-ZENAZ+-HEf
Ms. SZETO Wai Ling, Virginia Appointed on 31 August 2012 - - - - - -
AftERRL R-E--£\B=+-HEZEHE
Mr. FUNG Ho Leung, Arthur Appointed on 31 August 2012 - - - - - -
BEREE RZE-Z£\B=+-HEZHE
Mr. YEUNG Chung Hang, Patrick Appointed on 18 January 2013 - - - - - -
BEESE RZF-Z£-A+N\BEEHE
Total 793 13,218 (19,985) 16 (7,850) (13,808)
@
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5 &#895) + LUETTIR)

7 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 7 EENERABEEHFAL
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued) (78
Equity settled Year ended
Basic salaries, Retirement ~ share-based 30 September
Directors' other allowances  Discretionary scheme payment 201
fees and emoluments bonuses  contributions expenses Total
S
9815 ZE-—%
it & NA=+H
R0k pLika REEL  RIGHERE  IREX IFEESE
(Note 27)
(Fr&27)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
T T T T Tr T

Executive directors

4nES

Dr. LEUNG Anita Fung Yee Maria — 6,063 — " 7,500 13,574
ZEERL

Mr. YIU Yan Chi Bernard — 360 — — — 360
ERBEE

Mr. TSIANG Hoi Fong — 572 — — — 572
BRALE

Mr. TSE Wai Kuen Gary — 4,923 — 9 (670) 4,262
ARERE

Mr. YEUNG Ching Wan - 1,375 — 10 - 1,385
BEERLE

Non-executive directors

kBTES

Dr. Honourable WONG Yu Hong, Philip, GBS 100 — — — — 100
EHIELGBS

Mr. LAM Haw Shun, Dennis, JP — 1,000 - - (13) 987
MEEATHL

Mr. Stanley Emmett THOMAS 100 - - - — 100
Stanley Emmett THOMAS % £

Mr. Lincoln PAN Lin Feng 100 — — — — 100
BHEEE

Mr. ZALDIVAR Peter Alphonse 100 — — — — 100
ZALDIVAR Peter Alphonse % &

Mr. LIU Yuk Chi, David — 3,400 — — (3,126) 274
HEEEE

Mr. WONG Ying Ho, Kennedy, BBS, JP 17 — — — - 17
EARBIBSATHT
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (55 &#5855) » LUETTIR)

7 DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION AND FIVE 7

ESWERAZEREHFAL

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued) (&
Equity settled Year ended
Basic salaries, Retirement ~ share-based 30 September
Directors’ other allowances  Discretionary scheme payment 2011
fees and emoluments bonuses  contributions expenses Total
BE
EXFS - e
b2 g AAZTH
E3ne RE4 HERA REFEHER  IHREX L FEBEH
(Note 27)
GE))
§'000 §'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T S T
Non-executive directors
kHTES
Mr. FLYNN Douglas Ronald — 1,000 — — — 1,000
FLYNN Douglas Ronald 5 &
Ms. HO Chiu King Pansy Catilina 100 — — — — 100
m@ERt
Mr. OWYANG Loong Shui, Ivan — 360 — — — 360
Mr. SU Xiao Shan - 1,000 - - - 1,000
RELLE
Dr. LIN Junbo 33 - - - - 33
MEREL
Independent non-executive directors
BUFATES
Mr. LAU Hon Chuen, GBS, JP 100 — — — — 100
BERCBSATHL
Mr. HUI Koon Man, Michael, JP 100 — — — — 100
FEXATEL
Mr. CHOU Wayne 100 - - - — 100
AERE
Total 850 20,053 - 30 3,691 24,624
@t

Note: During the fifteen months ended 31 December 2012, Dr. Leung
agreed to waive emoluments totalling $20,118,000 in respect of
discretionary bonuses payable to her in prior years. In addition,
equity settled share-based payment expenses of $7,850,000
were reversed on cancellation of her bonus share entitlement
as certain conditions could not be fulfilled.

B &

REE-_Z——F+-A=+—H
IE+REAA - ZEITRAZNER
BB BRTFEENTHE2BMERL
413£20,118,0007T ° 4D - AR A
TR RAEER - MEA KRR
EEE TELDREIIMNEAX
7,850,0007T °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5 &#895) + LUETTIR)

7 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 7 EEMERABEEHFAL
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued) ()
The above analysis includes two (year ended 30 FROMBEREEEZT——
September 2011: four) individuals whose emoluments are FAA=THIEFE - ME) AL
among the five highest paid individuals in the Group. EMe &S RAE&EaHALZ
Details of the emoluments paid to the remaining three e ABII=F(BE_ZT——F
(year ended 30 September 2011: one) individuals are: NA=FTHILFE: —B)ALXM

ZHEFBERAT:

Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2012 2011
BE H=
—g—C-F —T——fF
+=-A=+—H8 hA=+H
IF+HM@EA IEFE
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Basic salaries, housing and other EXxse BEREAM
allowances, and benefits in kind ALK B Y iE A 3,009 1,560
Retirement scheme contributions RIKETE R 41 12
3,050 1,572
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (55 &#5855) » LUETTIR)

7 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND FIVE 7 EENERAZEEREHFAT
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued) (4 )
The emoluments of the individuals fell within the AT Z SN FATEHE :
following bands:
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2012 2011
BE HZE

—¥-=-f —ZT—F
+tZA=+—-B N A=FA

IE+H@EAR IEFE

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE A B

$0-$1,000,000 07t £1,000,0007T 2 —
$1,000,001-$1,500,000 1,000,0017T £1,500,0007T 1 —
$1,500,001-%$2,000,000 1,500,001t 2£2,000,0007T — 1
3 1
During the period, no amounts were paid or payable to SERBRTERNERAERS
any of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement FATZNNFIE  EAMAMES
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for B BERIMAR 2RSS BT

loss of office. BiE -
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8 (LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company includes a loss of $860,099,000 (year
ended 30 September 2011: profit of $49,035,000) which
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.

9 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
(@) Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is
based on the loss attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of $628,058,000 (year
ended 30 September 2011: profit of $53,748,000)
and the weighted average number of 422,543,000
ordinary shares (year ended 30 September 2011:
145,529,000 ordinary shares after adjusting for the
rights issue completed in February 2012 and the
share consolidation which became effective in
February 2013) in issue during the fifteen months
ended 31 December 2012, calculated as follows:
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8

ABIREFAAEL
(B548) /ita #
NERIEFBEARBGHRABERR
ERRRFERRPARZEIE
860,099,000 (B ZE—F——F L
A=+H8It%E : & 749,035,000
JT) °

SR(EBE), 2FH

() BREX(EBE) B2
BREXNER),/BFEIR
BEE-_E——E+=-A=+
—HIEtREARR T B
B A FE1h B 15628,058,000
T(EEz=—E——FhLA=+
BIEFE & F53,748,0007T)
NMEBAE BT TR R IEF
Y R% 5422,543,0000% (&= =
T-——FhLA=1THILFE:
145,529,000  EM AR =&
——FZAEKZERERZ
T—=F-AEBZEHEH
ELAR)AE  FEUOT:
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (55 &#5855) » LUETTIR)

9 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 9 HE(BE) BiE)
(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share (continued) @) BREXEBE) BT
(&)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares B AR 2 0 1G ] B
Fifteen

months ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2012 2011
BE =

—¥-=-f —Z2——F
+tZA=+-B hA=1H

IE+AEA IEFE
‘000 ‘000
T iz F I
Issued ordinary shares at 1 October W+HA—HZ
EEITERR 934,340 818,294
Effect of conversion of convertible — EH#ATHARR = 4% 2
notes (note 28(c)(ii)) 52 2 (M 5228(0)(i) — 18,145
Effect of placement of share RERNzTE
(note 28(c)(iii)) (B 5E28(c)Gii)) — 32,718
Effect of scrip dividends MERREZEE
(note 28(c)(iv)) (B 5E28(c)(iv)) 5,693 690
Effect of remuneration shares WDz &
(note 28(c)(v)) (P 5F28(c)(v)) — 403
Effect of acquisition of subsidiaries WM B QAR 2 &£
(note 28(c)(vi)) (P 5E28(c)(vi)) — 2,921
Effect of rights issue (note 28(c)(vii)) A% z F £
(P 5 28(c)(vii)) 3,285,395 582,115
Effect of share consolidation Bhahexw 2
(note 34) (B 5E34) (3.802,885) (1,309,757)
Weighted average number of R-—ZE——F+_-A
ordinary shares at 31 December =+—8/
2012/30 September 2011 —ET——fF
NA=Z+HZE®
F 7 15 Az 2K 422,543 145,529

Annual Report 2012 & 131



9

Notes to the Financial Statements B4 # iR Zff 5%

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share
The diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the fifteen
months ended 31 December 2012 and year ended
30 September 2011 are the same as the basic (loss)/
earnings per share as the outstanding share options,
equity settled share-based transactions and
conversion options for the convertible notes during
the period/year have anti-dilutive effect to the basic
(loss)/earnings per share. The then status of
condition was assumed unchanged and thus the
condition of reset and adjustment were not met.

10 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme managed by an
independent approved MPF Scheme trustee. Under the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of $25,000 ($20,000 prior to
June 2012). Contributions to the scheme vest
immediately.

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in
the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Group participate in
a defined contribution retirement plan (the “Plan”)
organised by the local government authorities whereby
the subsidiaries are required to contribute to the Plan to
fund the retirement benefits of the eligible employees.
Contributions made to the Plan are calculated at a range
from 9% to 22.5% of the basic salaries of the eligible
employees. The local government authorities are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
the retired employees. The Group is not liable to any
retirement benefits payment in the PRC beyond the
contributions to the Plan.

The Group does not operate any other scheme for
retirement benefits provided to the Group’s employees.
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SkR(EBE) BHE)

(b) SREF(BE) B
BHE-_T——F+-A=+—
At+R@EARBE-ZT——
FAAZTHIEFE  Si#
BB /BANESRER
(B8 BFAER ' FEA
H,/ FRNZRITHEERE -
BRELHNZGRABRERZ
HRESEREAN(EER),
BFEERBERE - AR
EEEERETE B
AETKABKMHE -

BHREFEE
EEREBEEB(AFMUERELFE
BODAEBREEBRBIEDN)EE
BEEAZEERIBHERTES
I ([aEesrEl]) - B 5T
AEHRBIYRAZEESFEETA
B ERMEFERKREE - BB
MIEEEE  BEERERBAESH
HREEABRA Z5%METEEL
HEX BEARKAZBALR A
25000 (ZZE ——F XN AR A
20,0007T) © 5T &) 2 KB B 8 A
ER -

BETEBELS T EIRER &
Bz B BB A )2 B b U BRORT
ez TREEFRIRE 8 ([%5T
2 Bt WBARZERZTE
HP - EABREEREERHERIK
BARZES - MZTEER ZHR
EEREERRBEEAFH &2
9% %E225% - M A BT HRE & &
MEREEZNEN 22 RIK
© o BRTMRZATEER BTN - &
BEFR R EEMRREFERE
£

SEYESEE ZEEEMEMAE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (55 &#5855) » LUETTIR)

11 FIXED ASSETS "N BE&E
The Group
£E
Furniture,
fixtures and
Land and Leasehold other fixed Production Props and
buildings improvements assets equipment  costumes Total
Rl K8
REMEE
T RiEF HERE HE HERE EARER @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fx Fx Fx Fx Fx Fx
Cost: BA:
At 1 October 2011 R-ZE——%
+A—H 113,778 27,594 17,075 2,958 11,504 172,909
Additions NE — 2,267 1,265 — — 3,532
Disposals e (19,081) (1,679) (582) = = (21,342)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENB QA (11,456) — (272) — — (11,728)
Exchange adjustments E X HE 268 172 103 14 73 630
At 31 December 2012 RZZ—ZF
+-A=+-H 83,509 28,354 17,589 2,972 11,577 144,001

Accumulated depreciation: BiHifE:

At 1 October 2011 RZE——F

+HA—H 5,713 21,943 10,880 2,450 11,476 52,462
Charge for the period HrHEX 4,124 4,121 3,105 278 28 11,656
Written back on disposals HERKED (2,331) (1,054) (340) — — (3,725)
Written back on disposal of &M B A EE#

subsidiaries (931) — (169) — — (1,100)

Exchange adjustments R 25 (732) 62 10 73 (562)
At 31 December 2012 RZZ—=F
e AR aeny  ded [ N 2 R (SR 2|
Net book value: AREFE:
At 31 December 2012 RZT—=F

+-RA=+—H 76,909 4,076 4,051 234 — 85,270
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5 &#895) + LUETTIR)

11 FIXED ASSETS (continued) 1N BEEEE
The Group
L]
Furniture,
fixtures and
Land and Leasehold  other fixed  Production  Props and
buildings improvements assets  equipment costumes Total
G RE
R E A& E
T RIETF HEEE BE BEXRE BARBR s
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T T
Cost: B :
At 1 October 2010 RZT-ZF
+A—H 140,420 24,551 14,546 2,896 11,076 193,489
Additions nE 460 2,112 1,688 6 14 4,280
Disposals HE (28,615) (32) (15) — — (28,662)
Exchange adjustments ME 5 B 1,513 963 856 56 414 3,802
At 30 September 2011 NZT——%F
AA=+H 113,778 27,594 17,075 2,958 11,504 172,909

Accumulated depreciation: RitifE:

At 1 October 2010 RZZE—ZF

+H—H 3,571 17,921 8,452 2,170 11,038 43,152
Exchange adjustments BE 34, 0 2 98 695 260 45 411 1,509
Charge for the year FRNRX 3,393 3,337 2,182 235 27 9,174
Written back on disposal HERER (1,349) (10) (14) — — (1,373)
At 30 September 2011 R-ZE——F
e VASTER 2713 21943 10880 - 240 . 1476 52462
Net book value: REFHE:
At 30 September 2011 RNZE——fF

AA=+H 108,065 5,651 6,195 508 28 120,447
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11 FIXED ASSETS (continued) 1N BEEEE
(@) The analysis of net book value of land and () T REFZREFE
buildings is as follows: SHWT:
The Group
£E
As at As at
31 December 30 September
2012 2011
»® N

:%—:é —E——F
+=-RA=+-—H NA=+8

$'000 $'000
Fx T
In Macau under short-term lease 7ESRFILAR BN E — 10,766
In Hong Kong under EEEUNFHBORFE
medium-term lease 12,502 12,941
In the PRC under long-term leases fE P B AR BB A FH 64,407 84,358
76,909 108,065
(b) Land and buildings held by certain subsidiaries with (b) ETHEARFMFBERERE
carrying value of $23,722,000 (30 September 2011: £23,722,000L (=& — — F
$108,065,000) were pledged as security for 7L A=+ H:108,065,0007T)
mortgage bank loans of $11,912,000 (30 September 2t REFETHER - F
2011: $56,973,000) (note 22). 1R 18 3R 17 B 511,912,000

T(ZTE——FNWA=+H:
56,973,00070) (M 7£22) 2 &K
& e
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5 &#895) + LUETTIR)

12 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 12 RMBASIZKRE
The Company
AT
As at As at
31 December 30 September

2012 2011
—g—C-F —T——%F
+-—A=+—H HALA=+H

$'000 $'000

F Tt F 7T

Unlisted shares, at cost JEEMRRA AR 72,943 72,943
Less: impairment loss B OREE B (12,000) —
60,943 72,943

An impairment loss of $12,000,000 has been made for RZE——ZHF+=HA=+—8" &
the investment in subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 RRBRARZEERmMEBE SN
(30 September 2011: Nil) as the carrying amount of AL E%E  WEARMBARZ
investment in subsidiaries exceeds its recoverable amount. & & £H12,000,000T (=B ——4F

NA=1+H: E)BEERE -
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12

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities
of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless

otherwise stated.

12 RBASZRE(E)

FERBEHR
EER -

TREBIGEEXE  EEHEE
BEAFEZMNBRRZFHE - K
5 BI P45 B4 28051 5

Proportion Issued share
Place of of attributable capital/
incorporation/ Place of  equity interest held registered
Name of company establishment operation Directly Indirectly capital Principal activity
HME BAEZEERELLSN smapsx
AT EE P 3L b Bh B B HiE SEREFX EEEH
Communication and You Hong Kong Hong Kong — 100% $100  Provision of production
Holdings Company equipment for use
Limited by group companies
Communication and You & & s> — 100% 100t REEEARF
Holdings Company FrE Az RIERRM
Limited
Qin Jia Yuan Shares British Virgin Hong Kong 100% — US$1  Investment holding
Company Limited Islands (“BVI")
H+ERNDBRATF EBRBELZESE &AB 100% — 1E7x ‘EER
Qin Jia Yuan Advertising  BVI PRC 100% — US$2  Investment holding
Company Limited
H+ixBEERRAAE REREZHES TE 100% — 2%t KRAER
Qin Jia Yuan Marketing PRC PRC — 100% $56,000,000  Provision of market
(Shenzhen) Limited ** research and
broadcasting report
for advertisers
ginxmsRa ORI FE B — 100% 56,000,000t EHESEHREHTS
BRAR* MEREERSE
Qin Jia Yuan Production  PRC PRC — 100% $10,000,000  Provision of costumes
Service (Shenzhen) and image design
Limited *+ services
P BEERBORID a3 — 100% 10,000,0007C #2 #t EL AR J2 JP SR 3R &
BRAF i
Happily Development Hong Kong PRC — 100% $2  Property investment
Limited
EXRBERABRAF i H — 100% 27t WMERE

Annual Report 2012 & 137



138

Notes to the Financial Statements B4 # iR Zff 5%

12

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Proportion of

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5 &#895) + LUETTIR)

Issued share

12 RBATZRE(E)

Place of attributable capital/
incorporation/ Place of  equity interest held registered
Name of company establishment operation Directly Indirectly capital Principal activity
HMET FAEZEBERELRS smapx
ATETE X 3T 3 Bh B BEiE HiE /SREF IEEB
Qin Jia Yuan Cultural Hong Kong Hong Kong 100% — # $2  Property investment
Assets (Hong Kong) #* 492
Company Limited
P+ XULEX(FEB) BE BE 100% — P27 MERE
BRAF " 927T
Qin Jia Yuan International BVI Hong Kong 100% — US$1  Investment holding
Film, Culture,
Communication
Company Limited
P+HEBREZR Xt HABELESE BT 100% — 1€ WEER
BEER QA
Qin Jia Yuan Media BVI Hong Kong 100% — US$1  Investment holding
Creation Co., Limited
P+ G EEBAEARRAR RBRELES FF 100% — €T REER
Qin Jia Yuan Creation BVI PRC — 100% US$10  Holding of scripts,
Company Limited synopses and editing
rights
+ZBIEBER DA EBEZHEHE FEH — 100% 10E(7T BHEBA - HEXM
K m =
Qin Jia Yuan Media BVI Macau 100% — US$1  Investment holding
Services, Productions,
Distributions Company
Limited
P+ HEZHRRE  BF EBREAXHFE R 100% — 1€ REER
BITAERRAA
Qin Jia Yuan Media Macau Macau — 100%  MOP100,000 Provision of
Services Investment commercial agency
Macao Commercial services
Offshore Limited
PNGEERERMEE BT B P9 — 100% 100,000 fRHEHERE RSB
FEERBERRAA SRFITT

Qin Jia Yuan Media Services Company Limited #)+&IEERIEER QA
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12 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 12 RHEBASIZIRE (&)

Proportion of Issued share
Place of attributable capital/
incorporation/ Place of  equity interest held registered
Name of company establishment operation Directly Indirectly capital Principal activity
HMET BHZEGRELS BETBA

ATETE X 31 3 B cE3 Hi & SEAMEE TEEB

Progressive Chic BVI Hong Kong 100% — US$1  Investment holding
Development Limited

Progressive Chic EBEZEES BE 100% — 127 BREER
Development Limited

Hangwai Enterprises BVI Hong Kong — 100% US$1  Holding of distribution
Limited rights

BEEEFRAF RERZHEES TE — 100% 1ET BEEITE

Sheen Global Services BVI Hong Kong — 100% US$1  Holding of advertising
Limited and public relations

rights of TV channel
KEERBHEARAT HBELHED BH —  100% 1ET BESREEY
E&RABME

Soar Up Holdings Limited BVI Hong Kong — 100% US$1  Holding of advertising
rights of printed
media

Soar Up Holdings Limited ZEBERELZEHES & — 100% 127 HEHRIEEZ

B &

Jumbo Add Investments  BVI Hong Kong — 100% US$1  Holdings of advertising
Limited rights of printed

media

AR EBR QR REREZHEES BB — 100% 1€ HEORIEEZ

B &

Qin Jia Yuan International BVI Hong Kong — 100% US$1  Holding of advertising
Cultural Media Planning rights of printed
and Services media and a radio
Company Ltd show

P+ EBERCENES RBRLHS BH —  100% 1ET BEORRBRES
KRB ER AR #iH 2 B
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12

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Proportion of

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5 &#895) + LUETTIR)

Issued share

12 RBATZRE(E)

Place of attributable capital/
incorporation/ Place of  equity interest held registered
Name of company establishment operation Directly Indirectly capital Principal activity
HMET BHZEGRELS BETBA
ATETE X 3T 3 Bh 3R HiE & SEAMEE TEEH
Qin Jia Yuan (China) PRC PRC — 100% RMB  Holding of customer
Advertising Company 100,000,000 contracts and
Limited * provision of
advertising related
services
)70 45 (7R B B 45  E t —  100% AR%E BERPARREHR
BRAR 100,000,000t =& EERE
Vast Top Investments BVI Hong Kong — 100% US$1  Holding of adaptation
Limited rights of fiction
series
BREEBERAA EEEZHE TE — 100% 1€ BAPNRRINZ
mEE
Info Bond Development  BVI Hong Kong — 100% US$1  Holding of advertising
Limited rights of TV channel
AHAERARAR RERRES B — 100% 1€ BEERBEEZ
&
Great Reform Holdings BVI Hong Kong — 100% US$1  Holding of advertising
Limited rights of TV channel
BEEKRAERRAF HBERAESE & — 100% 1€ HEERBEZ
&
Famous Well Investment BVI Hong Kong — 100% US$1  Holding of advertising
Limited rights of TV channel
BEREERAA EBEREXES AR — 100% 1€ BAEEHREBEZ
[ 1
Ever Merit Limited BVI Hong Kong — 100% US$1  Holding of advertising
rights of TV channel
XEABR AR RERZHES TE — 100% 1€ BEERMABEZ
&
Sonic Wealth Investment BVI Hong Kong — 100% US$1  Holding of advertising
Limited rights of TV channel
ERREARAF REREZHES BB — 100% 1EXT HBAERMABZ
B &
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12 RBATZRE(E)

Proportion of

12 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Issued share

Place of attributable capital/
incorporation/ Place of  €quity interest held registered
Name of company establishment operation Directly Indirectly capital Principal activity
HMET FRZEGRELS BETBA
AEETH P, 3 4 B B HE  ME HRES TEXE
Silver Knight Enterprises  BVI Hong Kong — 100% US$1  Holding of advertising
Limited rights of TV channel
R EERBRAQF ERBETEHE BT — 100% 1€ BAEEHREBEZ
[ 1
Step China Enterprise Hong Kong PRC — 100% $1  Property holding
Limited
BELEBERAF BE W E — 100% 1T BAEME
QJY Impact (China) Hong Kong PRC — 65% $1,000,000 Investment holding
Entertainment Services
Company Limited
P+ B (PR)RE FHFE HE — 65% 1,000,000 & & £ Bk
BEERBARARA]
Qin Jia Yuan E-Commerce BVI Hong Kong 100% — US$1  Investment holding
Investments Limited
PNEETHERE HERRES BF 100% — 1€ REER
BRAF
Great Mean Enterprises BVI Hong Kong — 100% US$1  Holding of adaptation
Limited rights of fiction
series
ERGEBRAQF EEERZHES TE — 100% 1€ BENHRIZ
mEE
Sharp Cheer Enterprises  BVI Hong Kong — 100% US$1  Holding of distribution
Limited rights
BRHEERRAF EBETEE T — 100% 1€ FHEBITE
Emperor View Holdings Hong Kong Macau — 100% $1  Property holding
Limited
HEREREBERARQF B JELPY — 100% 1T BAYE
Talent Step Group Hong Kong Hong Kong — 100% $1  Property holding
Holdings Limited
BRESEEZERARAT FE e — 100% T BAME
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12 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 12 RHEBASIZIRE (&)

Proportion of Issued share
Place of attributable capital/
incorporation/ Place of  equity interest held registered
Name of company establishment operation Directly Indirectly capital Principal activity
HMET FHRZEGRELS BETBA
ATETE X 3T 3 Bh 3R HiE & SEAMEE TEEH
Luck Success Enterprise Hong Kong PRC — 100% $1  Property holding
Limited
WP EBERAA HB 7 E — 100% 1T BAEYE
Qin Jia Yuan Digital Hong Kong Hong Kong — 100% $2  Investment holding
Entertainment Company
Limited
PHMEBBREBFRAR FE e — 100% 27t BEER
New Fine International Hong Kong Hong Kong — 100% $1  Property holding
Holdings Limited
MABEREEERAR FE 5 — 100% T RAWME
QJY Advertising And BVI Hong Kong 100% — US$1  Investment holding
Communication
Holdings Company
Limited
QJY Advertising And HBELEE T 100% — 1€ REER

Communication
Holdings Company

Limited
Green Team Culture Asset BVI Hong Kong — 100% US$10,000 Holding of publication
Limited and adaptation
rights
ERNICEERERAT REBEERELES &E — 100% 10,000€ 7T HEHREESE
Clear Light Group Limited BVI PRC — 55% US$100  Provision of
consultancy and
advertising services
SBEBEBRAR RBRAEES TE — 55% 100% 7T RREHAHELESRS
* Wholly foreign owned enterprises established in the PRC. * RPBEKT 2INEEERE -
# Class A non-voting shares # ABREREERD
##  Class B voting shares # BEAREREH
+ English name for identification purpose only + A R R R
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13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13 BREE
The Group
e 1]
Purchased TV  Purchased Customer
licence  programs advertising contract
rights in progress rights costs Others Total
EEE e EBE ZTEFA&R
YR EHREE EEE % 3 Hit @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Fr T Fr T Fr
Cost: R :
At 1 October 2011 R ——4&F
+A—HA 891,016 112,142 50,220 67,150 22,367 1,142,895
Additions NE 347,972 — —_ — — 347,972
Disposal of a subsidiary & — % B
NS = = — — (8,216) (8,216)
Exchange difference e X ZE R — — — — 6 6
At 31 December 2012 RZZT—Z=4F
+=ZA=+—H 1,238,988 112,142 50,220 67,150 14,157 1,482,657
Accumulated Rt R
amortisation and BIEEE:
impairment loss:
At 1 October 2011 R-ZT——F
+H—H 68,716 112,142 50,220 20,221 13,935 265,234
Charge for the period HiF X 47,659 — — 7,105 4,377 59,141
Impairment loss B & B 278,583 — — 12,496 — 291,079
Written back on HE—RIB
disposal of a NGILSS 2 JE
subsidiary — — — — (4,795) (4,795)
At 31 December 2012 R-ZT——4F
S P = s S Sa S U 20 N U220 S 22N /o055 0
Net book value: REFE
At 31 December 2012 R=-Z—=
+=-—A=+—H 844,030 = - 27,328 640 871,998
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13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 13 BREEE
The Group
CL]
Purchased TV Purchased  Customer
licence programs in  advertising contract
rights progress rights costs Others Total
BEHE C BEEE ZFFAR
AT BIRE B & & (DN EHAh 5
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T 7T T T 7T Tt T T
Cost: R
At 1 October 2010 RZIZE—FF
+A—H 807,638 112,142 50,220 38,000 22,349 1,030,349
Additions NE 367,025 — — — — 367,025
Acquisition of a 1 B — ) B B
subsidiary A — — — 29,150 — 29,150
Disposals & (283,647) — — — —  (283,647)
Exchange difference ] — — — — 18 18
At 30 September 2011 HRZZT——4F
e nASTE BOLO6 112142 50220 67150 22367 1,142,895
Accumulated St R
amortisation and WERE:
impairment loss:
At 1 October 2010 RZZT—ZF
+A—H 58,838 112,142 50,220 15,569 9,776 246,545
Charge for the year FRRAZ 27,390 — — 4,652 4,159 36,201
Written back on H e B O
disposals (17,512) — — — — (17,512)
At 30 September 2011 W-ZT——4
e VASTR 68,716 . 112142 50,220 20221 13,935 265,234
Net book value: REFE
At 30 September 2011 HRZZT——4F
hA=+H 822,300 — — 46,929 8,432 877,661

The amortisation charge for the period/year is included in
“direct costs” in the consolidated income statement.

B/ FREHAXREEERRA
SIRIEERA] -

Purchased licence rights with carrying value of
$305,189,000 (30 September 2011: $322,865,000) as of
31 December 2012 have been pledged for convertible
notes with outstanding principal amount of
$100,000,000 (30 September 2011: $100,000,000) (note
26(e)).

RZE——F+=-_RA=+—H0" 8
M 18 £305,189,000 T (=T — — 4
A=+ H:322,865,0007T) 7 =
BERTHECEAREELASEAR
100,000,000 (ZZE——F L A=
+H :100,000,0007T) 7 Al 3 fR = 4%
(B 5E26(e)) 2 HEH -
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13

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment tests for intangible assets

Since no sales have been generated from certain of the
Group’s purchased licence rights during the fifteen
months ended 31 December 2012, the directors engaged
an independent professional valuer, BMI Appraisals
Limited (“BMI"), to conduct a valuation of the purchased
licence rights and other intangible assets of the Group as
at 31 December 2012.

BMI calculated the fair values of the intangible assets as
at 31 December 2012 using the income capitalisation
approach and a discount rate of 18.69%. The
recoverable amounts of these intangible assets were
determined on the basis of value in use. In addition,
based on the recently concluded partnership arrangement
with a subsidiary of the State Administration of Radio,
Film and Television on distribution arrangements of films
and TV series in mainland China, the Group's intangible
assets as at 31 December 2012 are assumed to be
entirely disposed of within the next 10 years. Forecast
gross margins were determined based on past
performance and management’s expectation on market
development.

As the book value of the intangible assets as at 31
December 2012 exceeded the calculated fair value, the
Company has made an impairment provision of
$291,079,000, representing the difference. Any adverse
change in the key assumptions could increase the
impairment provision.

13 BREEE)

EBEEEZRERBIE
HRBE-_E——F+=-_RA=+—
BEttRAEARTEFREEEET
EBARTEZHE  WEEEE
BB BEGEMPAILRATEA
RARI(RMABRDR=-_TE—=—F
+ A=+ HBHEBEEBEAEHF
ERHEMBEREEETHE-

FAMABRBEAREKAZER
18N BEEFEELEEZA
FE ZEEFEEZTKRLEEEHE
REREBEREEET o i - BE
MHERNREEREYERAR —
FWNB AR N PREAEITER
NERB LI 2EIER
B BEEBR-_ZT——F+_-A
=+ HAZEREESRRRTF
NEHHE - FBAEFRZBER
REEREERACMSGERET

HRBEEAEN_Z——F+_A
—t—HZEEEBHMEZA
FE: AR E IR B E R B
291,079,0007C (Bl B ERE) - £
BREBWMBEEMINES g2 HE
B -
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14 GOODWILL 14 B8
The Group
®E
As at As at
31 December 30 September
2012 2011

—¥—-F :%——i
+=-A=+-—H ANA=+A8

$'000 $'000
T T

Cost and carrying amount: BRARRERE:
At 1 October ®TH—H 21,076 —
Additions through acquisition FRKENBARIARE

of subsidiaries — 21,076
At 31 December 2012 N_E——_F+-_HA=+—H

/30 September 2011 S —E——FNA=+H 21,076 21,076
Impairment test for cash-generating unit BAREZHEELEENZ
containing goodwill i B A&
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s advertising business BEIREZEEECEEEBEAR
as a cash generating unit (“CGU"). The directors engaged ReEEEMN) EFCZERY
an independent professional valuer, BMI, to conduct a EEGHEMPANTER T —=F
valuation of this CGU of the Group as at 31 December TZA=T—REELBEELE
2012. The recoverable amount is determined based on L EITHE - JE e EREEA
value-in-use calculations. Based on the result that the BEFEEET - REATKESEE
recoverable amount is higher than the carrying amount of SRERSELAEMR-_T—ZF
this CGU as at 31 December 2012, no impairment loss +ZA=+t—HZzEASBE &
has been recognised for the CGU as at 31 December R RZZE——F+-_H=+—H
2012. W EBL UL IR & & 4 B AL R EA

B E B 1R
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15 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 15 REBEABIZHESR
The Group
£H
As at As at
31 December 30 September
2012 2011
S S

—®--f -—T——*%
+=A=+-B AA=TA

$'000 $'000

Fr T
Share of net assets EIEEEFE 3,858 70,973
The particulars of the associates which are unlisted FEEBXBEREEZHERA
corporate entities, that affected the results or assets of (RIELTMEEER)ZFHBOT:

the Group is as follows:

Proportion of ownership interest

BEEERIL
Place of Particulars of Group's
Form of business establishment issued and effective Held by the Held by a
Name of associate structure and operation paid up capital interest Company subsidiary Principal activity
B EBTR
HELTER ERRERR  MEL HERFEN  SEERES LAKE  WBATRE EEEE
Beijing Guoguang Huaxia Incorporated PRC 10,000,000/ 45% — 45%  Purchase and
Media Broadcasting 8,200,000 holding of
Company Limited* ordinary shares of distribution rights
RMB1 each
LREEZEEX(EER EE i 10,000,000% / 45% — 45% BERBHERTE
BERAT 8,200,000/
BREEARBIT
ZEBK
(CBS Outdoor (Beijing) Limited  Incorporated PRC 14,000,000 22.95% — 45%  Provision of design
(Note) ordinary shares and advertising
of $1 each services
R ErPNMERES EE i 14,000,000/% & i 22.95% - 45% RERFR
(R BRAR EEITZEER B &R
Cik3)
* English name for identification purpose only * ES € AR Pl
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5 & #5895} » LUETTIIR)

INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

15 REEAS Z2#Em(F

Summary of financial information on associates BHEATIZHMBERBE
Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue Profit
&aE B& i [ N it #)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
F 7t F 7T Tt F 7t F 7T
As at/for the fifteen NR-T—=%
months ended +=A=+-—-8
31 December 2012 BE-T——%+—=AH
=+—HLE+HEAR
100 per cent 100% 8,584 1,817 6,767 97,611 7,091
Group's effective interest SEER#ER 3,863 818 3,045 22,402 1,167
As at/for the year ended WRZ-T——FhA=+H
30 September 2011 BE_F——%N1A8
=+B8ILEE
100 per cent 100% 165,490 79,330 86,160 148,841 15,190
Group's effective interest SEER#ER 37,980 18,206 19,774 34,159 3,486

Note: Details of the disposal of 51% interest in a subsidiary which sE: EER—BEMRBARGEERML
holds 45% interest in CBS Outdoor (Beijing) Limited are TREINMEEESE (UL R) BRAA
disclosed in note 30(b)(ii) to the financial statements. ZA5%HEEE) 2 51% 1 3 2 FEIE

B 75 3R < B 5E30(b)(iii) 3 2 -
16 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 16 HtMH&EE
The Group
%M
As at As at
31 December 30 September
2012 2011
—E——f -—T %«
+=-HA=+—H HNA=+H
$'000 $'000
FIt + 7T
Available-for-sale equity securities A ERAE F

— Unlisted — Lt 31,908 31,908
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17 INVENTORIES 17 &8
(@) The balance of inventories at the balance sheet date @ MRBEPRIHFELEBES
represents the cost of acquisition of certain scripts, FERIA - ERLE - S AR -
synopses, publication rights, copyrights and editing MR HE N dm B 2 WIS XS -
rights.
No inventories were written off nor provided for HE-_FT——F+A=1—
during the fifteen months ended 31 December 2012 B+ R @A I & TS s
(year ended 30 September 2011: Nil). BB EBEE_ZE——FNA
=tHALFE &)
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised by EEREAILFTAERZ
as an expense and included in profit or loss is as FESBEITBT:
follows:
The Group
£E
Fifteen
months
ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2012 2011
L 0z

—¥-—=—% _—z__»&
T=H=+—H AA=+H

IE+AEA IEFE
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Carrying amount EHEREZRESRE
of inventories sold 56,341 82,308
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18 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS, 18 FEYWERF - EARRIE - & &
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES B H4th FE W SR IE
(a) Accounts receivable (a) FEULER X
The Group
e 1.
As at As at
31 December 30 September
2012 2011

:@—:é —T——F
+=-RA=+—AH NA=+A8

$'000 $'000
T T
Accounts receivable JFE W BR X 150,161 409,663
Included in accounts receivable expected to be EHE T ——F+-HA=+
recovered within twelve months from 31 December —HEF T =@ ARNKE &
2012 are debtors with the following ageing analysis WER AR BIEA TR - BR
(based on invoice date): o (REZAEMET:
The Group
£E
As at As at
31 December 30 September
2012 2011
® N

—F——%F —E——%F
+=A=+—H AA=1+H

$'000 $'000

T Tt

Within 1 month —@EARA 69,207 16,583
1 to 3 months —Z=={@A 21,056 232,024
3 to 6 months =E=NEA 59,898 128,542
6 months to 1 year NEAE—F — —
More than 1 year HB A —F — 32,514
150,161 409,663
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18 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Accounts receivable (continued)

The credit terms offered by the Group are in
accordance with the terms specified in each
agreement entered into with the relevant customers,
ranging from three to fifteen months. Subject to
negotiations, extended credit terms are available for
certain major customers with well-established
operating records. The Group’s credit policy is set
out in note 29(a)(i).

Impairment losses in respect of the accounts
receivable are recorded using an allowance account
unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the
amount is remote, in which case the impairment
loss is written off against accounts receivable
directly. As at 31 December 2012, full provision of
$35,626,000 has been made for accounts receivable
due from two advertising agencies located in the
PRC. Further details are disclosed in note 5(c) to the
financial statements. At 30 September 2011, no
amounts of significant accounts receivable were
individually determined to be doubtful or impaired.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group assessed that,
except for the above, virtually all of the accounts
receivable are neither past due nor impaired (30
September 2011: Nil).

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

An impairment provision of $137,463,000 has been
made at 31 December 2012 for prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, details of which are
disclosed in note 5(c) to the financial statements
(30 September 2011: Nil).

 LOETTAR)

18

(a)

(b)

FERRIE B

FE& Wy Bz 3K
REMEWRIEE)

FEYTBR =K (42)
SEREBEHEEBEHEFF L
2 & DB EEAEE - BEHN
FT=@BAE+HMBEAZRER
H - RIEEPoER AT
BEROEBLEHBIETER
FERERER S8 21E
B BUR E R K FE29)3) ©

FEWBR N 2 B BB AR A B
HRE - BRIEEBE(EH Hﬂz@ﬁ
FeR A RE MR - Ei1E)
m@ﬁEE&KEW%,
I o M E——F+ A=
+—HB EREUREFRRE
EREREBEFTRZEHEE
35,626,0007T ° #E— BN
B R R M sE5(Q W EE - N
T——FNA=Z+H WES
ANEKREFEREEARE
R (A o

RZE——F+_A=+—
B Btz £EFEK
BB A EABR F K A
BRBECE——ENLA=
+8:&)-

BARRE REkHM
FE W 5% 18
RZE——F+=_A=+—
B EfENRE RekH
W RIBEFIRBERE
137,463,000t (ZZE——F N,
A=+H: &) B@EFBERH
7% 3R R MY FES(O) # FE o
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AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. An impairment loss of
$746,970,000 has been made for the amounts due from
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 (30 September
2011: Nil), because these subsidiaries have deficiency in

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5 & #5895} » LUETTIIR)

19

FEWr ~(FE f) Bt /B 2 S SR IR
BB AR 22 b REIEE
G B RANERHEE - R-F—
“FF+-A=+—B R BH M
BAREESBEM ALk B9
B M 3% 55 B B A R 2 OB AL

I 2 5 FEURHT B AR R IEME R
746,970,000 BB E(ZE ——
FANA=+H:E)-

PLEDGED DEPOSITS 20 EHEWFER
The balance represents bank deposits pledged as security ZEREERERRITEE (M T
for banking facilities (note 22). 22) 7 W m 2 |RITHER o

assets and accordingly, a portion of the amounts due
from them is impaired.

20

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21 RERREEEY
The Group The Company
£HE 2 g
As at As at As at As at
31 December 30 September 31 December 30 September
2012 2011 2012 201
w» S ® B
—T—"f —E——F —E—C-F —T——%
+=HA=+—H hA=+8 +=HA=+—H NE=+H
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T FT Tt
Cash at bank and in hand RITEFERS 55,077 211,875 74 126
Cash and cash equivalents in the REEBEBERZRE
balance sheets RBR&EEY 55,077 211,875 74 126
Bank overdrafts (note 22) RITIE X (M 5E22) (19,247) (4,586)
Cash and cash equivalents in the R4FARERERZ
consolidated cash flow RekASEEY
statement 35,830 207,289
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22 BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS 22 SRTERREX

The Group
£F
As at As at
31 December 30 September
2012 20M
»® S
—¥-=-§f —Z2——F
+=A=+—H AA=+H
$'000 $'000
FIt T 7T
Bank overdrafts wT€x . 19247 4586
Secured bank loans FRWRITER
Current portion BV ERE8 5> 385,064 322,517
Non-current portion ERNERE 12,917 16,875
S, 397981 339,392
Mortgage bank loans RIBMITEM
Current portion BN ERE8 5 1,161 5,145
Non-current portion ERNERE 10,751 51,828
1L 1. S 56,973
429,140 400,951
Repayable as follows: ERENT
— Within 1 year or on demand  — THEAKNERE 405472 332,248
— After 1 year but within 2 years — —FBEMFNR 9,788 16,629
— After 2 years but within 5 years — MEEE RAFER 7,937 23,275
— After 5 years — hF & 5,943 28,799
e 23,668 . 68,703
429,140 400,951
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #if Zff 5%

BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS (continued)
At 31 December 2012, certain bank loan facilities were
secured by pledged deposits of $112,113,000 (30
September 2011: $89,281,000) (note 20), certain shares
of a subsidiary, and the corporate guarantee provided by
the Company and its subsidiaries, totalling $399,953,000
(30 September 2011: $760,080,000) which were utilised
to the extent of $397,981,000 (30 September 2011:
$339,392,000) at the balance sheet date.

At 31 December 2012, mortgage bank loans of
$11,912,000 (30 September 2011: $56,973,000) were
secured by the Group’s land and buildings with carrying
value of $23,722,000 (30 September 2011:
$108,065,000) (note 11), and the corporate guarantee
provided by the Company.

LOANS FROM SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER

LOANS

(a) Loans from shareholders
As at 31 December 2012, loan from a shareholder
to a subsidiary of the Group of $8,716,000 is
unsecured, interest-bearing at prime rate per annum
and repayable on demand. Loan from a shareholder
to a subsidiary of the Group of $3,981,000 is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

As at 30 September 2011, the loan from a
shareholder to the Company was unsecured,
interest-free and was repayable on or before 10
October 2011. The Company has fully repaid the
loan on 4 October 2011.
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23

RITERRER(EZ)
R-TE——F+-_A=+—HH &F
R 17T & X EE LA112,113,000 T (= &
——%h A=+H:89,281,0007T)
Z BRI F (M 5E20) ~ — R BT /B
NAEIZAETHRHOREABRMENB A
AIRM 2 AR ERERT - ZEE
& 58 #£51399,953,000 T (ZF ——
Fh A=+H:760,080,0007T) * A
iR 45 B K B2 8 F9397,981,0007T (=
T——F N A=+H": 339,392,000
JT) °

R-E——F+-_A=+—8 "%
BIRITE 11,912,000 (ZF——
F N HA=+H:56,973,0007T) A &
B BEME{E 23,722,000 (= &E——4F
N A =+ H:108,065,0007T) 2 +
WREF(MF1REARERZA
AIEIRIEE -

KERRZERRHAMBER

(@ RKEEERZER

R-ZE——F+-_A=+—
H kE—E2REETEE—
5 B 8 A 7] 2 § 5£8,716,000
TTEERE  LUREEREMNX
EEFRERFTBERARENK
BEE - REEE—HEHBA
Al — & W/ E 2 553,981,000
THREEF 2EREARE
K EE ©

R-ZFB——FAA=1H K
B—E2RRETRARZERR
BEM 2EER-T——F
TA+TB&ZAER - 272
R-TE——F+AMNBZEE

ym S £
= =5 A °
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23 LOANS FROM SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER 23 KEBERFEZEZRHEMGEE
LOANS (continued) (%)
(b) Other loans (b) HibE&E=

All the other loans borrowed by the Company are
repayable within one year, of which $31,800,000 is
secured and interest-free, while $20,000,000 is
unsecured and interest-bearing at 12% per annum.

For the other loans borrowed by the subsidiaries of
the Company, all are repayable within one year and
unsecured, of which $3,000,000 is subject to fixed
interest and handling fee amounted to $360,000 in
aggregate, while the remaining amount of
$8,198,000 is interest-bearing at prime rate per

REER 2B EMERAR
—FREE - H+31,800,000
TAEABERBERERE M
20,000,0007T & K iR F
FIER1D2EEE -

NEMBARIER 2 M E K
AR —FREERBEIR
# - H f13,000,0007T 1% & F
FEE - WHEFEEAH
360,0007T - 1 H 8,198,000
A B EFFEKETE -

annum.

24 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 24 BEIERAREMEMSRIE
All of the accruals and other payables are expected to be FRERERTE R R M BN KIS E
settled or recognised as income within one year or are HIR—FRNEENERABIA - K
payable on demand. ANEBERKER -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5 & #5895} » LUETTIIR)

25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25 fTAE€RMTA
The Group The Company
&3 2 g
As at As at As at As at
31 December 30 September 31 December 30 September
2012 201 2012 201

—E——f§ —E——% —ET——F —E——%F
+=A=+—H8 hA=+8H +=A=+—H HA=+H

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt T T T 7
Derivative financial liabilities: THEUBEE:
Conversion option of convertible 7] [% 2 ¥ 2 & #2 #%
notes (note 26) (Fff 5% 26) — 40,937 — 40,937
All the amounts of derivative financial instruments are FrETESm T A UAFESD
stated at fair value. B -
The fair value of the conversion option as at 30 ERMER_T——FLA=1THZ
September 2011 was determined by an independent N FAE B G E R A B AT A
valuer, BMI Appraisal Limited, using the binomial option BRARKAZEABEEEED
pricing model. BEE
=
26 CONVERTIBLE NOTES 26 TTRRTR
The Group and the Company
EE NG
Equity
Conversion Redemption component of
Liability option option convertible notes  Warrant reserve Total
BELES
AfE i B0 2RSS RBIEBHRE 25t
(note 26(c)(i))  (note 26(c)(iii)) (note 28(d)(vii))
(B sE26(0)(ii)) (P 5E26(c) i) (P 5% 28(d)(vii))
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tt Tt Tt T Tt
At 1 October 2010 RZZ—FF
S TATR netd4 121024 . SRR R 5392 242,560
Conversion of EmankER
convertible notes (25,463) (2,899) — — — (28,362)
Reclassification of convertible = # 7 £8 a] ¥ i
notes EX — (54,341) (30) 54,371 — —
Effective interest FEERFE
for the year 30,109 — — — — 30,109
Change in fair value AFEEH — (22,847) 30 — — (22,817)
At 30 September 2011 RZF——F
hWA=+A 120,790 40,937 — 54,371 5,392 221,490
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &#5855) + LIETTIR)

26 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

26 TRARERE ()

The Group and the Company

KERAF
Equity
component of
Conversion Redemption convertible
Liability option option notes Warrant reserve Total
TR ER
BfE B HEE# ZiEEBY RREIHRE “@ct
(note 26(c)(ii)) (note 26(c)(iii)) (note 28(d)(vii))
(Bt aE26(c)(i) (Bt EE26(c)(iii)) (B &£ 28(d)(vii))
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
F T F T F T
At 1 October 2011 RZZ——%F
S AR 20 e TR deek ey
Effective interest HEBRA
for the period 94,381 — — — — 94,381
Change in fair value DNEEED — (40,937) — — = (40,937)
Redemption of BOATARER
convertible note (90,670) — — — — (90,670)
At 31 December 2012 R-_ZE—=
+=ZA=+—8H 124,501 — — 54,371 5,392 184,264
(@) During the year ended 30 September 2009, the @ REBEZE_ZTAFNAA=+H

Company entered into a subscription agreement
with each of Smart Peace Development Limited
("Smart Peace”), a wholly owned subsidiary of CCB
International Asset Management Limited, and Star
Group International Investment Limited (”Star
Group”), both independent third parties, pursuant to
which the Company agreed to issue up to
$100,000,000 unlisted convertible notes (the “Notes
to Smart Peace”) and unlisted warrants with exercise
monies not more than $100,000,000 to Smart
Peace, and to issue up to $50,000,000 unlisted
convertible notes (the “Notes to Star Group”) and
unlisted warrants with exercise monies not more
than $25,000,000 to Star Group (collectively, the
“2009 Notes”).

IEFE - BRI R R B
EBEERARARIZZEWMES
AA]Smart Peace Development
Limited ([Smart Peacel) & £
EREREEARAA(2E])
(MEARIYAEBLIE=FH)
I REWE B A7
[ & B Smart Peace 31T &% %
100,000,0007T 2 3E £ 1 A] #2
B Z 4% ([Smart PeaceZ & |) &
171 & %8 1 %8 38100,000,000
TLZIELEMRRER - ARE
[ 2% 17 5 %50,000,0007C 2 3F
EFRAREBRER(EERE])
NAT7{# & BT 8 125,000,000
TLZIE LR (i =
TZENFER]D -
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26 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

(@

(continued)

On 15 May 2009 and 7 August 2009, two tranches
of the Notes to Smart Peace with principal amount
of $50,000,000 each (“Tranche 1 Smart Peace Note”
and “Tranche 2 Smart Peace Note”) were issued to
Smart Peace. The Notes to Smart Peace bear interest
at a rate of 5% per annum and a handling fee of
3.5 % per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears
with the first interest payment to be made on the
date falling six months from the date of issue of
such convertible notes.

On 18 November 2009 and 19 March 2010, two
tranches of the Notes to Star Group with principal
amount of $25,000,000 each (“Tranche 1 Star
Group Note” and “Tranche 2 Star Group Note”) were
issued to Star Group.

The Notes to Star Group bear interest at a rate of
6-month Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
("HIBOR") per annum and a handling fee of 3.5%
per annum for the unsecured Notes to Star Group,
payable monthly in arrears.

The 2009 Notes will be redeemed at 100% of the
principal amount plus any accrued and unpaid
interest together with a redemption premium
calculated at the 6-month HIBOR plus 2.5% per
annum of the principal amount on the maturity
date, being the fifth anniversary from the date of
issue. The 2009 Notes holders can, by serving a 30-
day notice to the Company, after the expiry of the
first anniversary of the date of issue of the
respective elements of the 2009 Notes, require the
Company to redeem, in whole or in part, the 2009
Notes plus any accrued and unpaid interest,
together with a redemption premium at 1.5% per
annum, 6-month HIBOR plus 2% per annum, and
6-month HIBOR plus 2.5% per annum during the
second, third and fourth anniversary up to the
maturity date since the issue date of the 2009
Notes, respectively.
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 LUEITTSIR)

26 TRRERE(~Z)

(@

(&)
R-ZZEEAFRA+RBENC
ZENFNALH AL ER
/450,000,0007T 2 A #t Smart

Peace &£ & ([% — #t Smart
Peace £ #5 | }2 [ 5 — #L Smart

Peace & #]) ¥ 47 T Smart
Peace ° Smart Peace Z 1§ {2 F
FEs%stE  FEEAEF
35% @ AREBEFHRINMT
BEHFEBERZETRERE
BETzZAERANEACZEHX
e

_77n¢+ A+N1\BX
—ZF=A+NH K&
%ﬁ%;%zs,ooo 0007 Z M#L 2

ERER(F-HEERE IR
[(E_HEERBDETTE
@ o

EREZBEENERAEAE
BIRTTREFREAE - BEH
EEZBCTEEREF

35%  ARETH AR -
“EENFRBECELER

AR EAE T A EENE
SR E - ERAEEAEED
BITHHPERBFAERAF) A
R ANEABTBERITRER
BEMERNR25%:tEBH 2
BENGE - —ETZNFEEF
BEARR_EZNFRIEAS
Mo THBEHEERBRSBER
?%Fﬂ@ﬁ?%’é%%%ﬁ%ﬂ - B3R
NAIELQE2HBHBIP_ZTZTN
FEIE - buﬂ{ﬂﬁ&“?&ﬂ%
HHE - ZRERGEE(R=
TTH¢ 2 R TT EIHHﬁ_EHr
FRF  F-AFRFENA
FEHEAED BIIRFEF =
15%  ~EAAEERITRE
FFE M EFEFE2% K& 75 & A
BEBRITAERE N LEFA
K25%:HE) o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (555 #855)

26 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

(@

(continued)

The 2009 Notes are convertible into the Company’s
ordinary shares at any time from the day falling on
the 180th day after their respective issue dates up
to, but excluding, the five business days prior to the
respective maturity dates, at a conversion price of
$1.7014 per share (subject to reset and adjustment).

On 31 December 2010, in accordance with the
respective terms and conditions of the 2009 Notes,
the conversion price of the 2009 Notes was reset to
$1.3778 per share. Further, in accordance with the
respective terms and conditions of the 2009 Notes,
the conversion price of the 2009 Notes will not be
reset or adjusted subsequent to 31 December 2010.
As the conversion price of the conversion option of
the 2009 Notes was fixed, the conversion option
was reclassified as equity as at 31 December 2010.

During the year ended 30 September 2010, the
Company entered into a subscription agreement
with First Media Holdings, Limited (“First Media"”),
an independent third party, pursuant to which the
Company agreed to issue up to $120,892,924
unlisted convertible notes (the “First Media Notes”)
and unlisted warrants (the “First Media Warrants”)
to purchase an additional 11,380,942 Company’s
ordinary shares.

On 8 July 2010, the two series of the First Media
Notes with principal amount of $30,223,231 and
$90,669,693 (“Series A Notes” and “Series B Notes")
were issued to First Media.

 LOETTAR)

26 TRARERE ()

€)

(&)
—ETNFEBEITREZRE
THHEFISBOAKERZEAES

BEHAMAEZEER(TE
FEZB) IR - R
EERI1704c (A FETE &
AE)EBR AN ZEBK -

KRB BFE+=A=1—
h o SEEAEEELRER
BRI T TAE I

BEREEHETREBR
1.37787C © toh » BIFE-ZEFE
NFEZE 2 BRI RGN
TETENFEBECBREER
—E-TF+-A=+—H%
%Kﬁéiimﬁom#—
TNFEBEzERE B
hﬁaﬁi it s R —
T-ZEF+-_A=+—H#Z
EERER -

RBEE-_T—ZTFNLA=1H
EFE- /“Téﬁiﬁi%fﬁ

First Media Holdings, Limited
([First I\/IediaD 2T R E
& Bt ARAEE %ﬂ?y
i#120,892,9247C 2 3E L A]
# I Z 3% ([First MediaZ 1% 1)
LA K 3E | T 3R A% # 7 ([First
Media R Bz 7& ) M%E?I\ﬁ%
A11,380,942f% ~ 7l 2 &

fi&% o

RZE—ZFF+ANB K
% % 9 5l £30,223,2317T &
90,669,6937T < WM Z %] First
Media ZH(ARF EH] &
[B & 5| & &) % 17 F First
Media °
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26 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

(b)

(continued)

The Series A Notes are non interest-bearing. The
Series B Notes bear interest at a rate of 7% per
annum. Interest is capitalised quarterly and payable
in kind when First Media exercises the conversion
option or redemption option.

The First Media Notes will be redeemed at 100% of
the principal amount plus uncapitalised interest
accrued. First Media are entitled at any time after
the first anniversary of the issue of the First Media
Notes to redeem the First Media Notes at an
amount equal to the principal amount of the First

Media Notes subject to redemption plus
uncapitalised interest accrued.
The First Media Notes are convertible into the

Company’s ordinary shares any time from the date
of issue of the First Media Notes until the maturity
date, which is five years from the date of issue, at
a conversion price of $1.3278 per share (subject to
reset and adjustments, and automatic conversion
features in accordance with the subscription
agreement with First Media).
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26 TRRERE(~Z)

(b)

(4&)
ARG EEATFE - BRIE
BIRFEFNRI%E - F BF
ZFE ML W First MediafT
FERENEDERIATY
SAF o

First MediaR B 2 B &5 &
EH AL MAKRENE 2 A
A B o First Mediaf # # First
Media R BB ITRETFE—BF
1% BE RS BB B First MediaZ2 4% -
fE O & %8 /8% 5 BB B 2 First
MediaZ EARE B INKEARL
ZIERTAE o

First Media 2 #& 7] B First
MediaZR E TR Z 2 HA
HifE - BlREBTHHRF A
hFE BRHREBRRESRK
1.32787L (Al T E & K& A & -
N % BR PR ¥R B First Media®]
U REBEWEZEDEBRK
HHEH A NR TR -



Notes to the Financial Statements B # R Z B 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &#5855) + LIETTIR)

26 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The net proceeds received from the issue of the 2009
Notes and the First Media Notes contain the
following components that are required to be
separately accounted for in accordance with Hong
Kong Accounting Standard 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement:

©

(i)

(ii)

Liability component for the 2009 Notes and the
First Media Notes represents the present value
of the contractually determined stream of
future cash flows discounted at the rate of
interest determined by the market to
instruments of comparable credit status taken
into account the business risk of the Company
as well as the large amount of the 2009
Notes and the First Media Notes, but without
the conversion option. The effective interest
rate of the liability component of the Tranche
1 Smart Peace Notes and Tranche 2 Smart
Peace Notes are 46.6% and 37.3%,
respectively. The effective interest rate of the
liability component of the Tranche 1 Star
Group Notes and Tranche 2 Star Group Notes
are 29.7% and 23.9%, respectively. The
effective interest rate of the liability
component of the Series A Notes and Series B
Notes are both 26.4%.

Conversion option of the 2009 Notes and the
First Media Notes to be accounted for as a
separate financial liability represents the fair
value of the option to convert the liability into
equity of the Company but the conversion will
be settled other than by the exchange of a
fixed number of the Company’s own equity. As
mentioned above, as the conversion price of
the conversion option of the 2009 Notes has
become fixed, the Company reclassified the
conversion option of the 2009 Notes to equity
as at 31 December 2010.

26 TRARERE ()

©

AT

—E T NF ZE & KFirst

Media = 1% FT 18 5UR F R B 1
ATNARBC(EEETER)SE

395R (4Rt T A : 1R

e

DREARZED

(ii)

“EENF EE NMFirst
MediaZ= 15 2 BE D
EEXHFTEZARKRRE
mMEERTS ERMAEFT
B BREEHRREILE
@EmETA(EPE=E
BAT 2 FERE R A K&
ZE TN F FEHE KFirst
MediaRIE £ RERE XN E
EZHEETARE 2
I8 E- B — #& Smart
Peace Z & & £ — #t
Smart PeaceZ & 7 B &
HBozEBEBRENES R A
46.6% N 37.3% o FE—Ht
EEZEBERFE_HEME
EBR BRSO ZER
M E 5D B B297% K
23.9% > ARSI ZE 1 KB
RINEBcEBEHD 2
ERFEYR26.4% °

15 A1 Bl B 7% & & 51| BR
Z_ETNFEE KFirst
Media R 15 < B #1588
BABANAIER &
BREANFE EzER
BAEIBRETEHE 2
RAIARGEmNAINCT
LT o 0 Tt
HR-_ZEZNFEBEZ
EmRE o BMREERE
FARIER-IZE—TF
+ZA=+—BA=2=F
NFEBEZERESH

DR
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26 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)
(¢ (continued)

(i) Redemption option represents the option of
Smart Peace, Star Group and First Media to
early redeem all or part of the 2009 Notes
and First Media Notes. Smart Peace is allowed
to redeem 100% of the principal amount plus
any accrued and unpaid interest together with
the redemption premium of the Notes to
Smart Peace at any time after one year from
the issue date of the related tranche. Star
Group is allowed to redeem the Notes to Star
Group at any time after the issue date of the
related tranche. First Media is allowed to
redeem 100% of the principal amount plus
any accrued and uncapitalised interest at any
time after one year from the issue date of First
Media Notes.

(iv) The First Media Warrants are exercisable from
the issue date of the First Media Notes to the
maturity date, which is five years from the date
of issue, with a subscription price of $1.3278
per share and are accounted for as an equity
instrument in the Company’s warrant reserve
(note 28(d)(vii)).

(d) On 13 December 2010, the Series A Notes with
principal amount of $30,223,231 was automatically
converted into 22,760,000 ordinary shares at a
conversion price of $1.3278 per ordinary share in
accordance with the subscription agreement with
First Media. The remaining balances were settled in
cash pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
Series A Notes. As at 30 September 2011, the 2009
Notes and the Series B Notes were outstanding.
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26 TR ERE(Z)

©

(d)

(%)

(i) P& [0 4 $5 Smart  Peace »
E [E N First Mediaiz £ &
EeHXILHI_FTZFN
FZWE N First MediaZ 15
ZEERE - Smart Peace
EER SR EE BT
Elﬁﬁi.ﬁr ifﬁﬁfﬁiﬁm
[@ Smart Peace Z % - &
@@%ﬁﬁi\%ﬁ$$m&
] FE &1 M R AT FI) B F
EOEE - 2EEER
Xﬁtj—ﬁf?‘ H Hi 1% B8

FEE [0 2 [E = & ° First
Medlaﬁé A FAFirst Media
ZRETHERB —F
14 BERF BE [0 First MediaZ2
B EBEoemEATIAN
EMEMEFTFRERER
L2 F 8 o

(iv)  First MediasR B4 RE AT R
First MediaZ2 152577 H H§
ZRHAEMTE - BD
RETHHEBSABER
F R ﬁ%{ﬁiﬂ% 3278
JT ]IE/\ i )
1u%f%W§IJ7%T/§é\ T B (Bt
5F28(d)(vii)) °

RZZE—FTF+-_A+=8"
K4 %8 /530,223,231t 2 AR
J = 12 1R 3% B First Medias] 3
REwRERREERY
Tl Hx1.327875 ERERE Ry
22,760,000 L i@ I - & 45
FERBARINER 2GR K
BHEUNRESEE - R ——
FAA=+H" *EThET
BERBRYEER M AKRITHE o



Notes to the Financial Statements B # R Z B 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &#5855) + LIETTIR)

26 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

(e)

A fixed charge over the entire amount of issued share
capital of certain subsidiaries held by the Company
are pledged for the 2009 Notes with outstanding
principal amount of $100,000,000 (30 September
2011: $100,000,000). Aggregate net assets held by
those subsidiaries amounted to $7,107,000 (30
September 2011: $28,833,000) which consist of
purchased licence rights with carrying value of
$305,189,000 (30 September 2011: $322,865,000)
are pledged to the aforesaid convertible notes by
means of a debenture over all assets of such
subsidiary which owns the purchased license rights
as of 31 December 2012 (note 13).

As a result of the rights issue of the Company which
was completed in February 2012, the conversion
prices of the Series B Notes and the 2009 Notes
were adjusted to $0.7161 and $0.7431 respectively
and the subscription prices of the First Media
Warrants and warrants of 2009 Notes were adjusted
to $0.7161 and $1.1110 respectively.

On 27 February 2012, the Company entered into a
redemption deed with First Media to provide the
Company with the rights, with the agreement of
First Media, to redeem the Series B Notes on 2
April 2012 or such a later day that the Company
and First Media may agree. The redemption price
comprised of (i) the outstanding principal amount of
the Series B Notes of $90,699,693; (ii) an amount of
$10,627,000 representing the premiums on early
redemption and (iii) all accrued interest.

26 TRARERE ()

(e)

RAILNFEAEE THEB AR
ZEHEBHTRAZEER
SIEARERBASE A
100,000,000t (ZE——F 1,
A =-+H :100,000,0007T) 2
“TENFEBEEBR - Z
EWBRAIFACFEER
8 A&7,107,000 (=& ——4F
N A=+H 28,833,000 T X%
¥ BR E B 4305,189,0007T (=
T—-——%F L A=Z+8:
322,865,0007T) 2 E 88 ARFEF
) EEBERN_T——F
+—A=+—HEEZEEBA
SHEZHBRARZHEE
ZEEFZFRFANEALLMATH
IR E 2 AR (K 5E13) ©

AR AR -_ZE——F A%
AR - Btk BRAIEE K
—EENFEBEZ2BBRES
B # B 20.71617T }%0.7431
JC » M First MediazR2 f& 5 &
TEENFEBECRBRESE
ZRBESRFAEZE0.71617T
E111107T ©

RZE——F-_A=_++H8"
T B First Media] 37 B& 3] 32
1+ LATEFirst MediaR & T 45
FRARENR-_E——FMA
— Hsk A A] B First Mediaf] &
WEZREBEERBRSIZE
B -BLHERRFENBRINZE
< 18 & 7N & ¥890,699,693
T (VMERREREEBELNRE 2®
%410,627,0007T ; X (i) T A& &
A o
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26 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

(9)

(continued)

The terms of the Series B Notes have been
substantially modified by the redemption deed
dated 27 February 2012 to the effect that the
repayment amount would no longer be the principal
amount plus accrued interest, but rather principal,
plus redemption premium and accrued interest.
Accordingly, there was an increase in the one-off
finance costs (effective interest of $50,000,000 and
a one-off early redemption premium of $10,627,000
as disclosed in note 5()) for the fifteen months
ended 31 December 2012.

On the same date, the fair value of the Series B
Notes was remeasured as a result of the
modification and a fair value gain of $40,937,000
was recognised in the profit or loss for the period.

On 28 May 2012, the redemption of the Series B
Notes was completed and no effective interest on
the Series B Notes will be incurred thereafter.

On 2 April 2012, the Company entered into
amendment deeds with Smart Peace and Star Group
regarding the terms and conditions of the
convertible notes. According to the amendment
deeds, the Company could request for early
redemption of convertible notes as to such principal
amounts of not less than $16,000,000 and
$8,000,000 from Smart Peace and Star Group
respectively on or before 31 December 2012. The
Company did not actually redeem the convertible
notes by 31 December 2012.
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26 TRRERE(~Z)

(9)

(4&)

BRIZERE 2N ERIEH
BR_ETE——F-_A-_++tHZ
BERIZERBENR BHEE
BB ITIBAASEMES
FE - mMAEARSREMNERL GE
MEGHE - Bl - #HEZF
——H+-A=+—HIt+H
& B 2z — %4 B 7% B A (B 3%
5@) T & 2 B B 7 &
50,000,0007T & — X412 R &
[@ % {Z10,627,0007T) 78 A B
R

RIA - BRIIREZAFER
femERHE - WRAHIRE
BaE R AT ERS
40,937,0007C ©

RZE——FRA-_+NH
BRINEBHEETKER - Hig
BRINEZEBEEITEHEELEEN

BEEREAME -

RZE—Z—ZFWOAZH " A7
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &#5855) + LIETTIR)

26 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued) 26 T@IREE(Z)

(h) (continued)
In substitution of the original payment as mentioned
above, the Company entered into a deed of
undertaking with Smart Peace and Star Group on 5
February 2013, which requested the Company to
redeem $25,000,000 and $12,500,000 respectively
of the principal amounts of the convertible notes,
together with any redemption premium and

(hy (%)
ERRLEEMRTNH A
AR-—E—-—=F=_A0ARA
Smart Peace & 2 [E 5] 7 &
RiE - BERARELDARRK
Z g K4 56525,000,0007T &
12,500,0007T @ & [F{E {A] BE 2]
REEFE  WEARZE—=

interests, to be paid on 3 April 2013. FWMA=HXff -
27 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 27 BREXAXS
TRANSACTIONS
The Company has a share option scheme which was RRABE-HER_ZTTHFRAT

adopted on 13 June 2004 (“the Scheme”) whereby the
directors of the Company are authorised, at their
discretion, to invite any full time or part time employees
and directors, consultants and advisers of the Group, to
take up options at $1 each to subscribe for ordinary
shares of the Company. The Scheme shall be effective for
a period of ten years ending on 13 June 2014. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company.

—ARAZBRE B (58]
Bt ARESERERBESE
BzERzBRBEERES
HAEERERAEHITERT
RBAR BB ZBRE - SHER
BE_Z-—NMFA+=HiIzt
FHRAR SOBRERTHA
ARBRR — BB ZER -
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27 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

The terms and conditions of the share
options granted that existed during the
fifteen months ended 31 December 2012
are as follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5 & #5895} » LUETTIIR)

27 REXIXH(E)
(@ TIBRBE_F—Z=F

+ZA=+—HiI+AEA
MR FRIREZREER
Ak 1

Number of
Number of options options
Adjusted/ outstanding outstanding
original as at as at
Date granted Exercise period exercise price 31 December 2012 30 September 2011
RZ¥-ZF R-ZZ——F
+=-H=+-H NA=+AH
mREE/ RITRE RITHE
BHEH TR RiT®ME BREYE BREHE
(Note)
(Fff &E)
Options granted to directors
RYEBZHERE
6 March 2007 6 March 2007 to 13 June 2014 $0.8076/$2.05 1,423,680 560,844
ZETEF=ARH CETLF-AAHEZT-WESAT=H 0.80767t/2.057C
15 March 2007 15 March 2007 to 13 June 2014 $0.8076/$2.05 14,236,842 5,608,453
—TT+F=A+AA —EE+F=A+RAE-E-NEAA+=H 0.80767t/2.057C
21 March 2007 21 March 2007 to 13 June 2014 $0.8076/$2.05 — 560,844
“EZLF=A+-H ZEELF-A-T-HE-Z-mEXRATZH  0.80767T/2.057T
16 April 2008 16 April 2008 to 13 June 2014 $1.6231/$4.12 — 1,365,861
“ET\FMATAH —ZE\EMA+ABEZZE—NEAA+=H 1.623170/4.127C
22 May 2008 22 May 2008 to 13 June 2014 $2.0249/$5.14 — 682,930
“ZZ\FEAZ+tZH ZEE\FRA-T-HE-Z-MERATZ=H 2.024970/5.147C
10 June 2008 10 June 2008 to 13 June 2014 $2.0249/$5.14 — 682,930
ZEZN\FXATH ZET\FRATHEZZ-NFEAA+=H 2.02497T/5.147T
21 December 2009 7 January 2010 to 13 June 2014 $0.6422/$1.63 3,807,690 1,500,000
“EENFT-ACT-R —E-EF-AtHE-Z-MFEXRATZ=A 0.64227T/1.637C
21 December 2009 8 January 2010 to 13 June 2014 $0.6422/$1.63 - 500,000
“EENF+-ACT-R —E-EF-ANBE-Z-WEXNATZ=A 0.64227T/1.637C
21 December 2009 11 January 2010 to 13 June 2014 $0.6422/$1.63 - 500,000
“EENFT-ACT-R ZE-EE-A+-BE-Z-WFERATZH 0.64227T/1.637C
21 December 2009 15 January 2010 to 13 June 2014 $0.6422/$1.63 2,538,460 1,000,000
“EEANFT-ACH-R ZE-ZEE-A+tRAE-E-WENAT=H 0.64227T/1.637C
21 December 2009 19 January 2010 to 13 June 2014 $0.6422/$1.63 - 500,000
“EENFT-ACH-R ZE-EE-AtNARE-Z-WEAATZ=A 0.64227T/1.637C
21 December 2009 27 January 2010 to 13 June 2014 $0.6422/$1.63 — 1,500,000
ZZINFHZAZtT R ZT-TF-AZFTHHEZT-WMFRATZAE 0642270/1637T
21 December 2009 29 January 2010 to 13 June 2014 $0.6422/$1.63 - 500,000
ZZINFHZAZT R ZT-TF-AZTNABEZT-NFERATZHE  0642270/1.637T
21 December 2009 30 January 2010 to 13 June 2014 $0.6422/$1.63 - 500,000
“EENF+T-AC+-R “E-ZEE-A=+HAE"_Z-MEANA+=A 0.64227C/1.637C
Total share options 22,006,672 15,961,862

BRIELE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &#5855) + LIETTIR)

27 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@) (continued)

Note: The exercise prices and number of outstanding share
options were adjusted upon the completion of the rights
issue in the proportion of four rights shares for every one
existing share in February 2012.

27 REZXFIXH(E)

(@ (#&)
GERNCESETS 13 PASE-A 18
BEER-F——F-AREH
B — R IR 1) 2 B B R g
R BB 15 2 b 34T 44 R 2 1

TEHFAEE o
(b) The number and weighted average exercise (b) T BEREZEBAR
prices of share options are as follows: MEFEHITEE:
Fifteen months ended Year ended
31 December 2012 30 September 2011
BE-F——-F HE_ZT——
+=A=+—BL+AEA NA=+HIEFE
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
o = 15 nEFEH
TEE BEREXRE T1EE WREZE
$ $
JT 7T
Outstanding at 1 October m+A—H
i AT 2.39 15,961,862 239 15,961,862
Effect of rights issue R zZE 0.91 24,556,699 — —
Forfeited 2808 1.10 (18,511,889) — —
Outstanding at 31 December 2012 R-ZT——F+—
/30 September 2011 A=+—8/
—ZE——FNA
=T HEARITE 0.76 22,006,672 239 15,961,862
Exercisable at 31 December 2012 RZ-T——F+=
/30 September 2011 A=+—8/
—Z=——%NA
=+ HATRE 0.76 22,006,672 239 15,961,862

The number of share options forfeited during the
period is 18,511,889 (year ended 30 September
2011: Nil). No options were exercised during the
fifteen months ended 31 December 2012 (year
ended 30 September 2011: Nil). The share options
outstanding as at 31 December 2012 and 30
September 2011 are all exercisable.

HRNBERKWEKESAE A
18,511,88910 (Bl EZ=T——%
NAZTHILEFE  £8) - BRE
E-E——-F+-A=+—H
I+ RE A &R EITE
(Hz-_=2——FNA=+H
IFE &) - IER-ZE—=
F+-_A=+—HERZ=ZT——
FLAZ+TH®ERITEZBR
P ATIT(E ©
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27 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(9]

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5 & #5895} » LUETTIIR)

27 BREXHFXH(E)

(b) (continued) (b) (&)
The share options outstanding at 31 December R_E-——F+-HA=+—H
2012 had a weighted average remaining contractual i ARITE 2 BB IR 2 h#E T
life of 1.5 years (30 September 2011: 2.7 years). BRI ERBRAR/ISF (=
TE-—FAA=1H:27
F)e
Fair value of share options and assumptions () BEREZAFERMR:SR
The fair value of services received in return for share 7R AT R RS AR R i Uk ER
options granted is measured by reference to the fair LBz AFEDZ2RBAE
value of share options granted. The estimate of the HEREZATFEFE T
fair value of the share options granted is measured REBERE 22 A TFEZMGEE
based on the Black-Scholes pricing model. The HFHRBMAT — R
contractual life of the share option is used as an TERAUHE -BREZS
input into this model. RWEAR D AIEZE R 2 8 A
& -
2010
—ZT-TF
Fair value of share options and assumptions BREZATFERER
Fair value at grant date REHERZAFE $0.437T
Share price % & $1.547C
Exercise price TE(E $1.637C
Expected volatility (based on the historical volatility of the share TEHER(REARRELES
prices of the Company over the period that is equal to the RELEBRI 2 TERFEEH 2
expected life before the grant date) MR FELREE) 50.72%
Option life (based on the validity period of the options) % % e 4F HR (AR 4% B AR 4 B R
E) 4.5 yearsE
Expected dividends FEHRE 0.32%
Risk-free interest rate (based on Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes) #ERFIER (RIEEFHINEES
ZEFE) 1.54%

The expected volatility is based on the historical
volatility of the share prices of the Company over
the period that is equal to the expected life before
the grant date. Expected dividends are based on
historical dividends. Changes in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &#5855) + LIETTIR)

28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 28 AAXRGHE
(@) Movements in components of equity (a) Eﬁ*ﬂﬁi*ﬂﬁZﬁif]
The reconciliation between the opening and closing %i/\ B s S AR E o R
balances of each component of the Group’'s % £ %53%:5??25@5%65’\\@
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated /\E% mEFE &K o TT’EE/”\X
statement of changes in equity. Details of the HARBORBANERKR &
changes in the Company’s individual components of B EHINAT:

equity between the beginning and the end of the
period are set out below:

The Company A7l
Equity Retained
Capital component eamings/
Share Share redemption  Capital ~ Contributed of convertible ~ Warrant  (accumulated
capital  premium reserve  reserve surplus notes reserve losses) Total
ENHE! EX TARER RREEZ RERH/
BE RAEE #E HE ERERR ZEEED e (ZHER) @it
Note $'000 $000 $'000  $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
i3 T T fr T T T T T T
At 1 October 2010 RZZ-3F
+A-H 63,827 851,106 95 10,398 59,382 - 5,392 172,916 1,163,116
Profit for the year KERRF — - - - - - — (49,035 (49,035)
Other comprehensive rEEEMZERR
income for the year — — - - — — - - —
Total comprehensive TEEZAE
income for the year BamaE — — — — — — — (49,035)  (49,035)
Dividends declared in respect FLEETRZBE 28(b)ii),
of the previous year 28(c)(iv) 121 1,870 — — — — — (10,765)  (8,774)
Dividends declared in respect RAEEERZKE 28(0)i),
of the current year 28(c)(iv) — — — — — — — (11,937)  (11,937)
Placement of shares RERD 8(i) 6,560 102,423 - - — - - — 108,983
Equity settled share-based REZNZS
transactions 27 — — — 4361 — - - - 4,361
Remuneration shares ) 28()(v) 137 2,069 — — — — — — 2,206
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BB 2 ) 28(c)(vi),
30(a) 459 7,080 - - - - - - 7,539
Conversion of convertible notes BRUBREE 26(d) 1775 26,587 — — — — — — 28362
Reclassification of convertible notes EX A HAHERE  26() — — - - — 54,371 - — 54371
At 30 September 2011 WZZ-—%
NRE=TH 72,8719 991,135 95 14,759 59,382 54,37 5,392 101,179 1,299,192
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5 & #5895} » LUETTIIR)

28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 28 BEXRGEE(E)
(@) Movements in components of equity () HEBERBrZEEHE)
(continued)
The Company (continued) RNEl (&)
Equity Retained
Capital component earnings/
Share Share redemption Capital Contributed of convertible ~Warrant (accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve surplus notes  reserve losses) Total
A5EE 4% THERER DREE RIEH/
k& R HiE  HE  EARR 2ELHS HE  (RitBR) A3t
Note $'000 $'000 $'000  $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(i T T TR Fn TR T T T TR
At 1 October 2011 RZ§--%§
+HA-8 72,879 991,135 95 14,759 59,382 54,371 5,392 101,179 1,299,192
Profit for the period KRR - - - - - - - (860,099) (860,099)

Other comprehensive income  AHEEM2AEE
for the period — - = = = = = — —

Total comprehensive income THE2E

for the period BREE - - - - - - - (860,099) (860,099)
Dividends declared in respect ~ HEFESR KA 28(b)(i),

of the previous year 28(c)(iv) 527 1,440 — — - — - (1,404) 563
Dividends declared in respect ~ HAHMERZKE  28(0)(),

of the current period 28(c)(iv) 329 24 - - — - - (1,170) (817)
Issue of new shares upon BEREBETHR

rights issue 28(c)(vii) 291,927 (11,256) - - - - - — 280,671
At 31 December 2012 R-%-=%

+ZR=+-H 365,662 981,343 95 14,759 59,382 54,371 5,392 (761,494) 719,510
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &#5855) + LIETTIR)

28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

28 BEXNftEE)

(b) Dividends (b) KB
() Dividends payable to equity shareholders of () BRI EEE T A]
the Company attributable to the period REFFEAZRE
Fifteen
months
ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2012 201
8F #BHE
—F-CZF —E——F
+=A=+—8 AA=1+H
IE+AHMEA IEFE
$'000 $'000
T T
Interim dividend declared and B F J& MK 1~ 7 HA
paid of 0.025 cent (30 1% 2.5 120.0251
September 2011: 1.28 cents) —E——%F
per share nA=+8:
1.281) 1,170 11,937
Final dividend proposed after — fR&EHIAR%Z 22k
the balance sheet date of nil  KHEIE E&H K=
(30 September 2011: 0.03 —E——%F
cent) per share nA=+8:
0.031) — 1,404
1,170 13,341

Interim scrip dividends declared during the
fifteen months ended 31 December 2012 and
year ended 30 September 2011 were offered to
shareholders with cash option. Details of
dividends paid are disclosed in note 28(c)(iv).

REE-Z——F+_A
=t+—HBIE+TREAR
BE_ZT——FNA=F
HIEFESEIRURKRRKER
ZHHRKRE BREA

EERWRES - 2K
B IR M RE28(0)(iv) B

E‘g o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5 & #5895} » LUETTIIR)

28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 28 EXRGHEE)
(b) Dividends (continued) (b) BRE (&)
() (continued) 0 (&)
The directors do not recommend the payment EETERLNEEC
of a final dividend for the fifteen months T——F+-_A=+—H
ended 31 December 2012 (year ended 30 IE+HREAZ RERKRE
September 2011: 0.03 cent). (HzEz-—Z—Fh A=
THIEFE0.031) -
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) B B E A
Company attributable to the previous financial NRRERBAZRE
year, approved and paid during the period: RER A HE M R
As at As at
31 December 30 September
2012 201

" i
—T—-—%F —T——%F
+=-A=+-—H NA=+AH

$'000 $'000

FI Tt
Final dividend in respect of the M H A #t/fE MK B
previous financial year, REEMBEE 2
approved and paid during the R HIAZ B & 0%0.03
period of 0.03 cent (year WEE=Z—%F
ended 30 September 2011: NA=THLFE:

1.28 cents) per share 1.281L) 1,404 10,765
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &#5855) + LIETTIR)

28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(c) Share capital

As at 31 December 2012

28 BEXNftEE)
(0 KX

As at 30 September 2011

N-ZT——%§ R-T——4
+=HA=+-—H hB=+8
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
% 5 8B &¥ RHHE k-
Note ‘000 $'000 ‘000 $'000
B 5E T % Tt F & T
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of US$0.01 each % f% [ {£0.01
EnZ2EBR (i) 10,000,000 780,000 2,600,000 202,800
Issued and fully paid: EETRARE:
At 1 October »+HA—H 934,340 72,879 818,294 63,827
Conversion of convertible notes %% # A 3% I = 15 (ii) — — 22,760 1,775
Placement of shares fic & A% {7 (iii) — — 84,100 6,560
Shares issued as scrip dividend  {E &ML X 8
BT 2 1D (iv) 10,980 856 1,546 121
Remuneration shares RN AR D (v) — — 1,750 137
Acquisition of subsidiaries 1 B B B R A (vi) — — 5,890 459
Issue of new shares R BB IT TR
upon rights issue (vii) 3,742,661 291,927 — —
At 31 December 2012 RZE—=F
/30 September 2011 +=—A=+—
B/ —%——
FhLA=1H 4,687,981 365,662 934,340 72,879
Notes: (T
(i)  Increase in authorised share capital (i) WmMEERE

By an ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 15 December 2011, the
Company’s authorised ordinary share capital was
increased to 10,000,000,000 by the creation of an
additional 7,400,000,000 ordinary shares of US$0.01
each, ranking pari passu with the existing ordinary shares
of the Company in all respects.

ERR T ——F+=-A+H
ARTZREFIAS BB
ZEBRBE RBRIZAEAEE
78 % 7K 1 H0 210,000,000,000
f& » 5= A% 7,400,000,000
B F M EE0OIE T2 ¥R
B g EEREARRAT
BRESFEHZAERS#

s o
m

Annual Report 2012 & 173



Notes to the Financial Statements B #if Zff 5%

28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Conversion of convertible notes

On 13 December 2010, the Series A Notes with principal
amount of $30,223,231 was converted into 22,760,000
ordinary shares at a conversion price of $1.3278 per
ordinary share in accordance with the subscription
agreement with First Media.

Placement of shares

A placement of 84,100,000 shares of the Company at a
price of $1.35 per ordinary share was made with
independent investors on 11 May 2011. The placing price
represented a discount of approximately 0.74% to the
closing price of $1.36 per ordinary share on 27 April
2011 and a premium of approximately 1.35% to the ten
trading days average closing price of $1.332 per ordinary
share up to and including 27 April 2011. The net
proceeds will be used to repay the outstanding bank
borrowings of the Group, finance the expansion of the
Group’s media advertising and TV production business
and as general working capital. These shares rank pari
passu with the existing ordinary shares of the Company in
all respects.

Shares issued as scrip dividend

On 20 April 2011, the Company issued and allotted
1,545,631 ordinary shares of US$0.01 each at $1.288 per
share to the shareholders who received shares of the
Company in lieu of cash for the 2010 final dividend
pursuant to the scrip dividend scheme announced by the
Company on 25 March 2011. These shares rank pari
passu with the existing ordinary shares of the Company in
all respects.

On 7 October 2011, the Company issued and allotted
1,325,391 ordinary shares of US$0.01 each at $1.072 per
share to the shareholders who received shares of the
Company in lieu of cash for 2011 interim dividend
pursuant to the scrip dividend scheme announced by the
Company on 24 May 2011. These shares rank pari passu
with the existing ordinary shares of the Company in all
respects.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5 & #5895} » LUETTIIR)

28 BEXRRGEE)
(o BE(E)

B &

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(%)

BB REER
RZE—ZTF+-_A+=H0"
K& 58 530,223,231 T 2 AR
5l Z 3% 3% BR B2 First Mediaz] 3
CREWMBEUNERTER
13278 T MR EEE R A
22,760,000 % 38 f% o

B & % i
R-ZE——FHA+—B 2
RIE SR E B350 2 B
[7) %8 37 1% & #& B 84,100,000
BRGNS - EREERLER
RZTE——FWA=-+tHZ
B Y T B1.367T 4T iE 4
0.74% » W LB R B ZE =
E——FENA-++H(BIEX
At HERSAZEKRFHIR
ME1.33270 @ E 41.35% © A
BRBEFEEANEEEE
KEBRITEE  AEEER
HEEERERBUEEFRME
Bd - WIEA—MEEELESD -
ZERMBENRIRALBRE
EFEHZERSES -

EBUBRRKEBITZRG
R-ZZ——FEWMA-+H8 2
A) LA & A% 1.288 7T M) IR R E 1T
& BE %%1,545,6310% 5 J& & &
0.01F Tz EMA - RIFAA
RZE——F=HA-+HBAR
M2 AR ERE  ZERER
WEARBROUAER —E—F
FRPBEWE - ZSBRMHE
ARBAEERRESHTEBEE
BEREER -

RZZT——F+A+H 27
VAR 1.072 T M AR R B3 1T X B
%%1,325,391/% & IR A {H0.013
TZEREK - REBEAFTNR-Z
——FRA-FTMHARQMHEZI
R EE - ZEBREREA
AIRHBUER T ——FFhH
BERE - ZSRHEARIR
BEERESFEHZERSE
s o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &#5855) + LIETTIR)

28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(iv)

(v)

Shares issued as scrip dividend (continued)

On 16 May 2012, the Company issued and allotted
5,435,641 ordinary shares of US$0.01 each at $0.1006
per share to the shareholders who received shares of the
Company in lieu of cash for the 2011 final dividend
pursuant to the scrip dividend scheme announced by the
Company on 28 December 2011. These shares rank pari
passu with the existing ordinary shares of the Company in
all respects.

On 4 July 2012, the Company issued and allotted
4,219,057 ordinary shares of US$0.01 each at $0.0838
per share to the shareholders who received shares of the
Company in lieu of cash for the 2012 interim dividend
pursuant to the scrip dividend scheme announced by the
Company on 30 April 2012. These shares rank pari passu
with the existing ordinary shares of the Company in all
respects.

Remuneration shares

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 21 March 2011, the shareholders of the Company
approved to issue and allot up to 1,750,000 shares and
2,000,000 shares to Mr Lam Haw Shun, Dennis (“Mr
Lam”) and Mr Tse Wai Kuen, Gary (“Mr Tse"),
respectively, upon their completion of 12 months of
services. In addition, the Company approved to issue and
allot 20,000,000 shares to Dr Leung Anita Fung Yee,
Maria (“Dr Leung”) upon her fulfillment of certain
performance conditions and completion of service term.
On 8 July 2011, 1,750,000 ordinary shares of US$0.1 per
share were issued and allotted to Mr Lam for his
appointment as non-executive director pursuant to a letter
of appointment. These shares rank pari passu with the
existing ordinary shares of the Company in all respects.

28 EXRfEEE)
(0 B&EE)
B 5 (45)
(iv EBUBKERTZERMH
(%)
RZE——FHRA+AB A
A LA EM0.10067T M) i% B 37T
N B 255,435,641/ & I m &
0.01FE Tz EMA - BIFAA
R-FT——F+=-A=1+NH
Az ABRKRBEE - ZER
FUER D T RAD AR — B —
—FRHRLRE - RERH
RARRASBRESTEY
THRSER -

R-ZE——F+ AMNA - A7
LASEB%0.0838 T [A] A% B 3 1T I
fid 854,219,057 3% A% I {E0.01
E2EBRR - REATINZ
E-_FMA=+HAMHZA
BREFE - ZEREREA
FIRMDINER T — —FhHf
BERE - ZERMHEARIR
BEERESFEHZERE

e

o

Bk

(v) SREMBE
RZE——F=ZA=-+—HH
TzRRABREFENRE £
ARAIREERMRZEEE
(TR A 1) % 8 4 o & (9
EEDERT_@A%R @\
MuEERHHEEDRBETR
fic % £ %1,750,0000% A% {5 &
2,000,0008% f& 13 = L4 - 2
AIEHERRZEEE (R
BEDERETREEGER
ImERRELBITRAE S
20,000,000/ &1 « R=Z —
—4%+ F/\8 * 1,750,0000% &=
B E{EO.13E T2 T3 A% B B AR
EERBEZTREZTAIE
WITEEMEITREETME
o ZERMHEQRBAELR
BESFEHZEREES -

o

Annual Report 2012 3% 175



Notes to the Financial Statements B #if Zff 5%

28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Remuneration shares (continued)

At a meeting of the remuneration committee of the
Company held on 13 October 2011, the remuneration
committee approved the cancellation of Dr Leung’'s bonus
share entitlement of 20,000,000 shares. No shares have
been issued to Dr Leung, Mr Lam nor Mr Tse during the
fifteen months ended 31 December 2012.

Acquisition of subsidiaries

On 11 March 2011, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to
acquire 55% of the issued share capital of Clear Light
Group Limited, which principal business activities are the
provision of consultancy and advertising services, in
Guangzhou, the PRC, at a purchase consideration
comprising $36,000,000 in cash and 5,890,438 ordinary
shares of the Company (note 30(a)). The consideration
shares were issued at $1.28 per share measured at the
closing price on 2 April 2011. These shares rank pari
passu with the existing ordinary shares of the Company in
all respects.

Issue of new shares upon rights issue

On 10 February 2012, the Company completed a rights
issue pursuant to which 3,742,660,840 shares of US$0.01
each were issued in the proportion of four rights shares
for every one ordinary share at a subscription price of
$0.08 per rights share. These newly issued shares rank
pari passu in all respects with the existing ordinary
shares. As a result of the rights issue, total consideration,
net of related expenses, of $280,671,000 was received. In
addition, $291,927,000 was credited to share capital and
$11,256,000 was debited to the share premium account.

176 Qin Jia Yuan Media Services Company Limited #)+4 182 BRISH R A 7
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28 BEXRRGEE)
(o BE(E)

B &

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(%)

BN B 15 (42)
R-E——F+A+=ZHETT
ZRRFNEESSH L F
EEeH EEVERBLEH
2 41 B% (20,000,000 f% B 17) -
REBEE=_ZT—=—F+=-A=+
—BiE+HREA ARWEMR
PAE 4 - RS R S BT
TR, -

KEEKMEBAS

R-E——F=H+—H8 &
BE—RBYE=FFVESR
WE - NKESBEEESRA
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &#5855) + LIETTIR)

28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)
Notes: (continued)
(viii) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the

balance sheet date are set out in note 27(a) to the
financial statements.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium
account of the Company are distributable to
the shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed the
Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due.

General reserve

According to the articles of association of the
subsidiaries established in the PRC, the PRC
subsidiaries are required to transfer at least
10% of their profit after taxation, as
determined under PRC accounting regulations,
to the general reserve fund until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of the registered capital.
The transfer to this reserve must be made
before the distribution of a dividend to equity
shareholders. The general reserve fund can be
used to make good previous years' losses, if
any.

Capital reserve

Pursuant to a group reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”) which was completed on 17
November 2003 to rationalise the Group
structure in the preparation for the listing of
the Company’s shares on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
Company became the holding company of the
Group. The excess of the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company over the
aggregate of the nominal value of the share
capital of the subsidiaries which the Company
acquired under the Reorganisation was
transferred to the capital reserve.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5 & #5895} » LUETTIIR)

28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 28 BAXRGHEZ
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued) d) REZHERARE)

(i) Capital reserve (continued) (i) BEXFE(E)
The capital reserve also comprises the fair value BN N B 1S AR 1R B
of the number of unexercised share options ST 2(s)(iii) BR 4 2 AR 10 2 A+t
granted to directors of the Company and an RIE TR PR
employee of the Group recognised in BRYRARIEEREEE
accordance with the accounting policy adopted BZRITHEBEBREEE
for share based payments in note 2(s)ii). ZRFE -

(iv) Exchange reserve (iv) [E L #E
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign EHH#EEEEARE
exchange differences arising from the BRSNS E
translation of the financial statements of MEXZMAEEHRZE
subsidiaries in the PRC. The reserve is dealt B o ZEEDIRRBHE
with in accordance with the accounting policy 20w) P #E it 2 & 5T SR
set out in note 2(w). BRI o

(v)  Contributed surplus ) EHEEZ
Contributed surplus represents the excess of 4O 8 SN
aggregate of the net asset value of subsidiaries BRAlz FEEHER
acquired by the Company over the nominal NABBEHEZEITRG
value of the shares issued by the Company ZHEESHZRIE -
pursuant to the Reorganisation.

(vi) Hedging reserve (vi) #IFE G
The hedging reserve comprises the effective HrhHEeEReRE
portion of the cumulative net change in the HHopmAYHPIAZR
fair value of the hedging instruments used in FATFEEZEFE A
cash flow hedges pending subsequent MEB S - Bz AR 5 B
recognition of the hedged cash flow in 2hEmzReREs
accordance with the accounting policy adopted R T IR 3R BE SR X
for cash flow hedges in note 2(h). ZHERE °

(vii) Warrant reserve (vii) 5% R BE & 5 1
The warrant reserve represents the excess of RREZFEEEETA
proceeds from the issue of the convertible BB ATERIERY
notes over the amount initially recognised as FHERBRBABRKRERIA
the liability component of the convertible notes N B8 [ 32 F N 58 0 B
and the redemption call and put options. BEHszeBERLZ

FRIE o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &#5855) + LIETTIR)

28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(e) Distributability of reserves

(f)

At 31 December 2012, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company was $353,848,000 (30
September 2011: $1,226,313,000), subject to the
restriction stated in note 28(d)(i) above. After the
balance sheet date, the directors do not recommend
a payment of final dividend (30 September 2011:
0.03 cent per ordinary share, amounting to
$1,404,000).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, to meet its financial
obligations and continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure by
reviewing its net debt-to-equity ratio and cash flow
requirements, taking into account its future financial
obligations and commitments. For this purpose, the
Group defines net debts as total borrowings less
pledged deposits.

There has been no change in the Group's capital
management practices as compared to prior years.

28 BEXNftEE)
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28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 28 BEXRfEEE
(f) Capital management (continued) f) EXEEZ)
The net debt-to-equity ratio at 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=-A=+—H
and 30 September 2011 was as follows: E_Z——FAA=1TH #
BEEESEENT:

As at As at

31 December 30 September

2012 2011

—F—-F —ET——F

+=—H=+—H NA=+H

Note $'000 $'000

B 5T Tt F T

Bank overdraft RITEX 22 19,247 4,586
Secured bank loans BERFHETER 22 397,981 339,392
Mortgage bank loans EBIRITERK 22 11,912 56,973
Loans from shareholders REREZER 23(a) 12,697 28,000
Other loans HaE 23(b) 62,998 —
Convertible notes AR E & 26 124,501 120,790
Total borrowings mEs 629,336 549,741
Less: Pledged deposits B BB ER 20 (112,113) (89,281)
Net debts FEE 517,223 460,460
Total equity B 987,608 1,342,610
Net debt-to-equity ratio FEEMEERLE 52.37% 34.30%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are NEIKEFE R B AT
subject to externally imposed capital requirements. SNERHE AN 2 BRI ERTIRIE ©
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &#5855) + LIETTIR)

29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group’s financial management policies and practices
are described below.

(@) Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
accounts receivable and bank deposits. The Group
maintains a defined credit policy and the exposures
to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

() Accounts receivable

The credit terms offered by the Group are in
accordance with the terms specified in each
agreement entered into with the relevant
customers, ranging from three to fifteen
months. Subject to negotiations, extended
credit terms are available for certain major
customers with well-established operating
records. An ageing analysis of the receivables
is prepared on a regular basis and is closely
monitored to minimise any credit risk
associated with these receivables.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk s
influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. The default
risk of the industry and country in which
customers operate also has an influence on
credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the
balance sheet date, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 77% (30
September 2011: 10%) and 95% (30
September 2011: 41%) of the total accounts
receivable was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers
respectively. The Group does not provide any
other guarantees which expose the Group to
credit risk.

29 £MTH
SERERXBBRTELREE
nBEE  MEREBRR - £E
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29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(@) Credit risk (continued)

(i)  Accounts receivable (continued)
Further quantitative disclosures in respect of
the Group's exposure to credit risk arising from
accounts receivable are set out in note 18(a).

(i) Bank deposits

Cash is deposited with financial institutions
with sound credit ratings that are located
where the Group companies are operated and
the Group has exposure limit to any single
financial institution. Given their high credit
ratings, management does not expect any of
these financial institutions will fail to meet their

obligations.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the balance sheet.

(b) Liquidity risk

The treasury function of the Group is arranged
centrally to cover expected cash demands. The
Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
funding lines from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
and the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the balance sheet date) and the earliest
date the Group and the Company can be required
to pay.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &#5855) + LIETTIR)

29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 29 €T R(Z
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBELRAEEZ)
The Group -9

As at 31 December 2012
R-¥-—-%+-RA=+-8H

Total More than  More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or on less than less than  More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
BHRMBEZ —ERE — &1 MEE
RELE HeREE#E REX B EMER ERAER hEE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T 5P T Fr 5P Tt
Convertible notes BE:Y &3 124,501 182,751 182,751 — — —
Secured bank loans BERARITER 397,981 409,797 393,271 12,143 4,383 —
Mortgage bank loans RIBRITER 11,912 15,099 1,588 1,588 4,765 7,158
Accrual and other payables B & FE K&
Hof e A 335,493 335,493 335,493 — — —
Loans from shareholders REBRRZER 12,697 13,133 13,133 — — —
Other loans H At & 5K 62,998 65,615 65,615 — — —
945,582 1,021,888 991,851 13,731 9,148 7,158
As at 30 September 2011
RZE—-——FNA=+H
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or on less than less than More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
BRRERZ —ER% —Fiz R
FEe# RenemmE RE R EMER ERER HEE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tt T T Tt T
Convertible notes R R E 120,790 267,007 267,007 — — —
Secured bank loans BERARITER 339,392 345,982 327,668 11,689 6,625 —
Mortgage bank loans RIBHRITER 56,973 74,109 8,038 8,038 24113 33,920
Accrual and other payables Bt & E K&
H fth JE 73R8 504,301 504,301 504,301 — — —
Loan from a shareholder RE—BRRZ
B& 28,000 28,000 28,000 — — —
1,049,456 1,219,399 1,135,014 19,727 30,738 33,920
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5 & #5895} » LUETTIIR)
29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 29 &R TR (A
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBELRAEEZ)
The Company 4+ ]

As at 31 December 2012
R-¥--#+-A=+-H

Total More than  More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or on less than less than ~ More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
BHRBRZ —ERE —£# MER
RESE REZELE RERE EWMER ERLER R
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T T T T T
Convertible notes AR E & 124,501 182,751 182,751 — — —
Accruals and other payables & 5+ & A & H
JE 4 50R 14,997 14,997 14,997 — — —
139,498 197,748 197,748 — — —

Financial guarantees issued: 2 H 2

B R
Maximum amount EREREHE
guaranteed 443,089 — — — — —
As at 30 September 2011
R-E——FAA=+A
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or on less than less than ~ More than 5
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years years
EHRER 2 —ER%K —F1& W E 18
BEeE BeREEE  REXS  EWMEA  EAEM ST
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt T 7T Tt T T 7T Tt
Convertible notes BBk RE 120,790 267,007 267,007 — — —
Accruals and other payables — [E=H & B & E it
FE 15 %A 22,239 22,239 22,239 — — —
143,029 289,246 289,246 — — —
Financial guarantees issued: 2%z
B PER -
Maximum amount EaEReE
guaranteed 904,160 — — — — —
() Interest rate risk (o FI= = bk
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through ﬂ?‘*m@}ﬁ AEEE(EER
the impact of rate changes on interest bearing FEAMEREFR)IEKRTE &
borrowings which are subject to predominantly E SEEEMNERER SEZ
floating interest rates. The Group monitors closely its DEEEEMNERER - BLEE
interest rate exposure. In respect of income earning WAZHBEE R R ﬁ‘n
financial assets and interest bearing financial BEMS  TXREVRWMEY
liabilities, the following table indicates their effective RKEESHEEB ZHEK i'J
interest rates at the balance sheet date and the HHEUARFEELEE) 2ERF
periods in which they reprice or the maturity dates, &K o

if earlier.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &#5855) + LIETTIR)

29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 29 £RTRE)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued) (0 FMEREEE)
The Group -]

As at 31 December 2012
R-F——-&#+=-H=+—H

Effective
Fixed/ interest Within One to Two to More than
floating rate one year two years five years five years Total
8/
FR L EE — £k —EWE WELE ZRAE st
% $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
% T T T T T
Cash and cash equivalents ~ Floating 0.57 55,077 — — — 55,077
ReRREEEY FR
Bank loans Floating 5.81 386,225 9,788 7,937 5,943 409,893
RITER FR
Bank overdrafts Floating 2.54 19,247 — — — 19,247
HRATE X FR
Loans from shareholders Floating 5.00 12,697 — — — 12,697
FERRZEK FR
Other loans Floating 4.43 62,998 — — — 62,998
Hih &% FR
Convertible notes Fixed 33.73 — 103,658 20,843 — 124,501
Qe 3 E 8
As at 30 September 2011
RZZE-——FNAA=TH
Effective
Fixed/ interest Within One to Two to More than
floating rate  one year two years five years five years Total
-9
A BERA = —FRN —EWFE MERLFE ZRILF Bt
% $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
% T T T T 7T T 7T
Cash and cash equivalents  Floating 0.3 211,875 — — — 211,875
RekBeEEY A
Bank loans Floating 6.6 327,662 16,629 23,275 28,799 396,365
BITER pE g\
Bank overdrafts Floating 3.5 4,586 — — — 4,586
RITE X IS\
Convertible notes Fixed 32.68 — — 120,790 — 120,790
Qe 3 E B

Annual Report 2012 &% 185



Notes to the Financial Statements B #if Zff 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5 & #5895} » LUETTIIR)

29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 29 &M IRE)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued) (0 FMEREEE)
The Company 274

As at 31 December 2012
R-F——-&#+=-H=+—H

Effective
Fixed/ interest Within One to Two to More than
floating rate one year two years five years five years Total
8/
FR L EES —ER —EWE WERE ZRAE st
% $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $000
% T T Tt T T T T Tt
Convertible notes Fixed 33.73 — 103,658 20,843 — 124,501
QR e E B
As at 30 September 2011
RZE——FNA=+H
Effective
Fixed/ interest Within One to Two to More than
floating rate  one year two years five years five years Total
ERS
=R B RA & —FRN —EZEWF WMERF ZREF HEt
% $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
% T T FT F T F T
Convertible notes Fixed 32.68 — — 120,790 — 120,790
AR R R T A
(1)  Hedging ) #r
Cross currency interest rate swap contracts, SECRBTRSHTF
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") BRI XX BB R = 5
and Renminbi (“RMB"), were entered into with B ABT R ARES
a counterparty bank to hedge against, inter {B) - AR (K @ 3F)
alia, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk RiEHENBLHARE
in respect of certain amount of the secured ilJHHEl,HHFEﬁgﬂF{ﬁ%Ez
bank loans (see note 22) which may arise ET&#%E??E%K(%@M#
during the period between the issue date and EEZZ)EJ”@?EEEEZ*'J%EL
the maturity date of the swap contracts. No BRSNS R - B iE
further swap contracts have been entered into BHR=_F——FNAN
by the Group after the maturity of the swap A2 MR SEIEE
contracts on 9 September 2011. —HEIVRBER -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (555 #855)

29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(9]

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Company (continued)

(i)~ Sensitivity analysis
Assuming that the interest rates increased/
decreased by not more than 100 basis points
(30 September 2011: 100 basis points) at 31
December 2012 and the changes had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for
financial instruments in existence at that date,
with all other variables held constant, the
impact on the Group’s loss after tax and total
equity attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company is not expected to be material.
The exposure to interest rate risk as referred to
above represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates
during the period from the balance sheet date
until the next annual balance sheet date.

(d) Foreign currency risk

The Group’s primary foreign currency exposures
arise mainly from its media services and advertising
related services in the PRC. During the period, total
exchange loss mainly arising from the translation of
financial statements of subsidiaries in the PRC
amounted to $750,000 (30 September 2011:
$6,765,000) for the Group, which has been dealt
with as an equity movement.

The Group is also exposed to foreign currency risk
in respect of its Renminbi denominated cash and
cash equivalents and receivables.

The Group monitors the currency risk by
designating bank borrowings denominated in
Renminbi to mitigate the foreign currency risk
arising from the exposure of Renminbi against Hong
Kong dollars.
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29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d) Foreign currency risk (continued)

The PRC government imposes various controls on
the convertibility of Renminbi into foreign currencies
and, in certain cases, the remittance of currency out
of mainland China. Shortages in the availability of
foreign currencies may restrict the ability of PRC
subsidiaries of the Group to remit sufficient foreign
currencies to pay dividends or other payments to the
Group, or otherwise satisfy their foreign currency
denominated obligations, if any. Approval from
relevant governmental authorities is required where
RMB is to be converted into foreign currency and
remitted out of China to pay capital expenses such

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 & #5855

 LUEITTSIR)
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ZIRITEER) ALHAEBK
JF L B8 HE o

as the repayment of bank borrowings denominated
in foreign currencies.

(i) Exposure to currency risk () EXE b
The following table details the Group's TRAHEERNREH
exposure at the balance sheet date to currency ANAW AL EE A
risk arising from forecast transactions or #Ihae B ¥ 5 E < 78 5
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in RGP IEEREESXE
a currency other than the functional currency EMEEXZEERER -
of the Group’s entities to which they relate.

The Group
&£E
As at As at
31 December 30 September
2012 2011
S i

—E-—_f —ET——%F
+=-A=+-—H NA=+8
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBETR AREF T

Accounts receivable JE U BR 3K —_ 119,285
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &#5855) + LIETTIR)

29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d) Foreign currency risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

The approximate change in the Group's loss
and total equity in response to reasonably
possible changes in the foreign exchange rates
to which the Group has significant exposure at
the balance sheet date are as follows:

5% increase/decrease in the foreign
exchange rate of HKD against RMB will
increase/decrease the Group's profit by
approximately $6.0 million and increase/
decrease the Group's total equity by
approximately $6.0 million for the year
ended 30 September 2011.

The sensitivity analysis includes balances among
group companies where the denomination is in
a currency other than the functional currencies
of the Group’s entities to which they relate.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange
rates had occurred at the balance sheet date
and had been applied to each of the Group
entities’ exposure to currency risk for both
derivative and non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date, and that
all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant.

29 2@ TAHE)
d) shEsmbE(Z)

(1)

J?Wf >
R EHR

MEBEA
%?EKR@ZE%ﬂ
BEEBzABEEHME
EI%E&%*ﬂﬁz
WA EsHmT -

BHE_ZT——FN
BA=+tBILFE -
BILHE AREE
£ EFHAHT B5%
BHEHREERZ &
|IS: I [ A
6,000,000 T & £
ZREZ RGN,
B > 496,000,000
ﬁ o

BREI>TBREEEAR
RE R MxEHE
HENEEERBEEAD
REE MU § &5
(ERR

B LR E DR
TBREEREFHERE
HRELEE WAD
ERANREESERNZ
REGEZITERIEN
Yo T EzEERR
AEYE - mArE e g
I%(tﬁ%ﬂr)i@%ﬁ
FAE o
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29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d) Foreign currency risk (continued)

(ii)

(e) Eair

(i)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Results of the analysis as presented above
represent an aggregation of the effects on
each of the Group entities’ profit/loss and
equity measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into HKD at exchange
rate ruling at the balance sheet date for
presentation purposes. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2011.

Values
Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value
of financial instruments measured at fair value
at the balance sheet date across the three
levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in
HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures,
with the fair value of each financial instrument
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest
level of input that is significant to that fair
value measurement. The levels are defined as
follows:

Level 1 (highest level): fair values
measured using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments

Level 2: fair values measured using guoted
prices in active markets for similar
financial instruments, or using valuation
techniques in which all significant inputs
are directly or indirectly based on
observable market data

Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured
using valuation techniques in which any
significant input is not based on
observable market data
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29 2@ TAHE)
d) shEsmbE(Z)

(ii)

B KB T ()
A ERBIEEE
EERBUABNERS
(ER2HMBEMARSE
HIRZIRITERBER
BT E RN EBR
RgGME 2w g —
T——F2oWMHENR
Al AT o

() 2F{H
() HURFEINRZ T/
TA

TREJINNBBEHR
B(ERBY B HREEL)
F7RI[e T A 5 5E]
IAEZRAFEERZ
ZEERT - UAFE
AEZERIAZERE
B F2BIAZAYF
BLERBRFEFE
MEBERZH AER
BEERE2HETHIR -
REBMIERDT:

E—R(BEER):
) B3 4% B T 45
RS HIAY R
BORE B E) i 2
AFE

FAR-NAERE
BhmEFEUSE
TEZRE AT
EEEZE[ AEHE
EaEEEN B
RMIGHEZHE
izt 8 2 FE

£ = &x K
B NBABEER
W AEHEERA
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &#5855) + LIETTIR)

29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 29 €T R(ZE
(e) Fair Values (continued) () AFEE)
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value () HURFEIKRZ 2
(continued) TA(E)
As at 31 December 2012 w-—E'—-—%+=AH
=+-—H2

The Group and the Company
EERAT
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—R FH-H FE=4 et
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt Ft Tt Ft

Liabilities B
Derivative financial instruments: $T4A & @ T A :
— Conversion option — MR ER

embedded in NEZ

convertible notes B2 it 1 — — — —
As at 30 September 2011 R-ZF——%N1A

=+d
The Group and the Company
S DNNG)
Level 1T Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—R F-H/ F=H 5t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt T 7T T Tt

Liabilities BfE
Derivative financial instruments: T4 & @ T A :
— Conversion option — AR ER

embedded in NEZ

convertible notes B 0 — 40,937 — 40,937
During the period there was no significant RN E—REE R
transfer between instruments in Level 1 and L EBEERIAE
Level 2. B o
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29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(e) Fair Values (continued)

(i) Fair values of financial instruments carried
at other than fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial instruments carried at cost
or amortised cost are not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2012
and 30 September 2011.

30 ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF

SUBSIDIARIES

(@) Acquisition of Clear Light Group
On 2 April 2011, the Group completed the
acquisition of 55% of the issued share capital of
Clear Light Group Limited (“Clear Light Group”). The
principal activities of Clear Light Group are the
provision of consultancy and advertising services in
Guangzhou, China.

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries
(i) Disposal of Triangle Marketing Services

Company Limited

On 28 June 2012, the Group and Rodney’s
Think Tank Holdings Limited, an independent
third party, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement pursuant to which the Group
disposed of its entire equity interests in
Triangle Marketing Services Company Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company. The disposal was
completed on 30 June 2012.
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29 2@ TAHE)
AFEE)
(i) WA FEZERZ

(e)

AT AN FE

= B & A T A B AR 3
ERAYIEZEMTA
FHSBEER-_T—
—“F+-A=+—HEK=
E——FHA=+THZA
FTEITEEAEZER -

30 INEERHEMEBAT

@) WEEREXRHE

RZE——FWAHA=-H " &€
WETEESEARAR([E
EEDBBITRAZ55% ©

(b)

[

BeXTBXBARNTHE

FEMNER AR N ES R o

th £ Bt /B 2 5]
() HEWHEDGESE

ER R A]

RZZE—=—FNA=ZTN
H SEHEBIYE=FH
AIEBEEERAAG]
VYEEWE B £
EHEERQAFHNER
RItEMEREBRA
AlZEEMHE - 2T
EER-_TE——F A=
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &#5855) + LIETTIR)

30 ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF 30 MEERHEMBATE(E
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (continued) (b) HEMBAT (&)
(i) Disposals of Yo Harvest Limited and Joyful (i) HEBBERELR
Times Limited HEHR L A]
On 18 July 2012, the Group and Power Gold RZE—ZFtA+N
International Limited, an independent third H SBEEBIYIE=H
party, entered into a sale and purchase B BIBRB R ARG L
agreement pursuant to which the Group EEWm®E Bt &8
disposed of its entire equity interests in Yo & H RN A R/ E B
Harvest Limited and Joyful Times Limited, two NABBEBRAR K%
subsidiaries of the Company. Both disposals BEERAR 22 ERRAE -
were completed on the same date. ZMBELHEERRFAAT
B o
(i) Disposal of Rich State Media Enterprises (i) HE#H @ FIRPFE
Limited B R F]
On 22 October 2012, the Group completed N—_E——F+HA=+=
the disposal of its 51% interest in a subsidiary, B SBETKEENE
Rich State Media Enterprises Limited, which NAMRBHREEBR
holds 45% interest in an outdoor media RR(FH—EHREL I
advertising business in the PRC. HEESEB 245% #
W) Z51%HES o
In accordance with the sale and purchase BREEEWHZ SED
agreement, the Group received $15,000,000 in I EX 15,000,000 03 & -
cash plus non-exclusive rights to sell SMEEFRBERASE T
advertising time on certain LED display screens LED KRz E&E 2 I
within the PRC for a fixed term of three years, BREN BEFHR
with maximum revenue of $20,000,000 per =F RIEEREFZ
year depending on the amount of business HEHE O BFRARES
that the Group is able to secure. Since the A] 320,000,0007T ° A
exercise of the rights for each advertising time REBETEERSES
slot requested by the Group is subject to the R ZENBERKE SR
purchaser’s agreement, minimal value has been B ZEENREE
assigned to such rights as at the date of EHEGREREEE-
disposal. Accordingly, a loss on disposal of this Bt - #E2=F——F+
subsidiary of $58,057,000 was recorded in “A=+—HLETHHE
profit or loss for the fifteen months ended 31 AzERBEELEMNE
December 2012. A @ 2 &5 858,057,000
E
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5 & #5895} » LUETTIIR)

30 ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF 30 KEERHEMBAT(Z
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (continued) (b) HEMBAT(Z)
(iv) The aggregate net assets of the subsidiaries (iv) B 5E30(b)() 2 (iii) B 2t Bt
mentioned in notes 30(b)(i) to (i) at their B AR K& ELEHH

respective dates of disposal were as follows: LEEFEEBNOT

$'000

Tt
Fixed assets B E & E 10,628
Intangible assets mEEE 3,421
Interest in an associate R—EBER A 2R 73,079
Accounts receivable JiE W BR 3R 395

Prepayment, deposits and other receivables

BNRIE - R R EA

JI& Y R 18 26
Bank loans RITENK (7,853)
Accruals and other payables FEETE B & B e A (1,234)
Tax payable J& 7t 18 (85)
Non-controlling interest FE 12 I 1 2 (591)
Deferred tax liabilities BT IR B E (565)
77,221
Less: Consideration, in aggregate VR A= 32,200
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENBRARERE 45,021
Net cash inflow arising on disposals: HEELEZRSRNTHE:
Cash consideration, in aggregate ReRELE 32,200
Bank loans disposed of EHERITER 7,853
Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries i i B A 7]~
e m N 40,053
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &#5855) + LIETTIR)

31 COMMITMENTS
(@) Commitments under operating leases
At 31 December 2012, the total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases are payable as follows:

31 &R

() EEHEERIE
RZF-—ZF+ZA=+—

B SERETAIAGEEZHE

EMBAXMNZARKREMEE

RIBRAFEWMT
The Group
®E=

As at As at
31 December 30 September
2012 20M
—¥--F —ZT—F
+=-—A=+—H NA=+A8
$'000 $'000
FT T 7T
Within one year —FR 9,205 9,345
After one year but within five years —F & & AF R 14,376 18,555
After five years HF1& 264 306
23,845 28,206

The Group leases a number of properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an
initial period of one to five years, with an option to
renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

SERELK=HEEMAZHE
ME - ZFHE-—RESH
—FENF BREHE ER

P |

AR AENHER - %F

HERrefusildse -
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31 COMMITMENTS (continued)
(b) Capital commitments
The Group’s capital commitments outstanding as at

(9]

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5 & #5895} » LUETTIIR)

31 RIEE)
(b) BEXRZEIE
SRR =T ——F+=-A=+

31 December 2012 not provided for in the financial —BRETBERERAEEZ
statements were as follows: REEBEREAENT:
The Group
£E
As at As at
31 December 30 September
2012 2011
® N
—E-CfF —E——F
+=RA=+—H2 hA=+AH
$'000 $'000
F It T
Contracted for =S 22,882 68,675
Authorised but not contracted for & #E18 15 A& 5] 4 — —
22,882 68,675
Other commitments (© Efﬂ’.ﬁ(%

(i)

Pursuant to the terms of a Master Investors
Procurement Agreement, the Group agreed to
procure the required funding to a production
house for the production of 6,000 hours of TV
programs. During the fifteen months ended 31
December 2012, the Group did not procure
any funding for the production of such TV
programs (30 September 2011: Nil). The total
funding required for the remaining 5,713 hours
(30 September 2011: 5,713 hours) is to be
determined when individual projects for TV
program production are agreed and therefore
is not quantifiable as at 31 December 2012.
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(i)

BIESIE e 2 &5
SEREMEERF I
N 2U1E6,000/ b5 EAR &R
BFZEz2E® - £EEBR
HE-ZT——F+-A=
+—HIEt+RMBEAL X
ZHERIEZEERENE
FiEzEmMEs(=ZZ—
—FEAA=+H: 8\ -
B 18 H #5713/ B (=
T—-——9FhLA=1+H:
5,713/ EREEFTH
2ESRBEERTESR
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BET RN ZE——F
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &#5855) + LIETTIR)

31 COMMITMENTS (continued)
() Other commitments (continued)

(i)

(continued)

During the period ended 31 December 2012,
there is no corresponding funding paid by the
licensed advertising agencies pursuant to the
agreements among the Group, the production
house and the advertising agencies concluded
on an individual program basis (30 September
2011: Nil). Pursuant to a supplementary
agreement to the Master Investors
Procurement Agreement dated 11 November
2002, should the production house not
eventually receive the agreed funding in full, (1)
the Group shall pay the shortfall in full,
following which the Group will be entitled to
the rights in relation to the relevant TV
program, or if the Group cannot be entitled to
such rights for any reasons, the TV production
house shall repay the shortfall to the Group
together with interest at a rate of 10% one
year after the first round broadcasting of the
TV programme; or (2) the Group shall pay an
amount up to 15% of the shortfall, following
which the production house will be entitled to
the rights in relation to the relevant TV
program.

31 &kiE(E)
() HtbmiEE)

(i)

(#)

REZE-_ZT——F+-H
=t+—HI-HH - RE
S8 - ZLERAKRES
REBZBERESBEFZZ
W& HTEEREY
EYNHEESE(ZE—
—FhA=+H:E\E)-
BESIEBHBENR_F
T-F+—A+—HZ®
TiaE - MEREELQR
B A W B 2 B T
B (WV&EEZEFEZ
HErRBELHEEE=E
EBERGE &R
KN EEBREATMNER
Efm T e =H BEER -
EREERRBABER
HBEEREREE G E
B —F 2B (RI0EF
B)REBF&ER: Q&
BASNTZRERR
IH215% - HIZBENT]
BEZEEBEREGFHEZ
REF o
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guarantees to banks in respect of banking facilities
granted to certain of its wholly owned subsidiaries.
$170,289,000 will expire within five years from the
balance sheet date (30 September 2011: $107,000,000).

As at the balance sheet date, the directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under any of the guarantees given. The
Company has not recognized any deferred income in
respect of these guarantees as their fair value cannot be
reliably measured and they do not have any transaction
price.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5 & #5895} » LUETTIIR)
31 COMMITMENTS (continued) 31 RiE(E)
(c) Other commitments (continued) (c) HfwxiE(E)

(i) The Group has entered into acquisition (i EEFERBBEZ2ET
agreements of certain exclusive advertising BRESREE I
agency rights through TV channels. The total BB o m oKz &
outstanding commitment was as follows: FREmT:

The Group
£E
As at As at
31 December 30 September
2012 20M
® i
—E—-_"F —ET——F
+=A=+-—H HNLA=+H
$'000 $'000
T T
Within one year —FR — 43,743
After one year but within five —%F%ZE RFER
years — 13,515
After five years HF & — —
— 57,258
32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32 HAER
Financial guarantees issued EEHMBER
As at the balance sheet date, the Company has issued RMESRR - ArEREET2E

MEARERZRITEEMZHEIER
77 3 & 1R © 170,289,0007T #
WEHABRARFRINBP (=T —
—% N A=4+H:107,000,0007T) °

b’/\\iﬁiﬁﬂﬁi BEERRBAAITKA

BEARIRFTIR M 2 E M ERTE
EIJEE/% HRZEERZATFED
fersst=s BWELRIZRSHE
& AR B 2 F IR R
fa] 3 E Y A ©



Notes to the Financial Statements B # R Z B 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &#5855) + LIETTIR)

33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) Material transactions between the Group and other

related parties during the fifteen months ended 31
December 2012 are as follows:

(i)

(ii)

On 28 December 2006, the Group entered into
three leasing agreements with Winco
(Dongguan) Paper Products Co, Ltd (“Winco")
to lease three properties located in Dongguan,
the PRC, at an annual rental of RMB1,032,000
from 1 January 2007 to 31 December 2009. It
was renewed on 31 December 2009 at an
annual rental of RMB1,014,000 from 1 January
2010 to 31 December 2012. Winco is a wholly
foreign owned enterprise established in the
PRC and controlled by Dr Wong Yu Hong,
Philip (“Dr Wong”) and Dr Leung Anita Fung
Yee Maria (“Dr Leung”). Rental expenses paid
and payable to Winco amounted to
$1,558,000 for the fifteen months ended 31
December 2012 (year ended 30 September
2011: $1,209,000).

On 5 March 2013, the Group entered into a
leasing agreement with Hanny Group
Management Limited (“Hanny”) to lease a
property located at Kwun Tong, Hong Kong, at
an annual rental of $600,000 from 22
September 2012 to 21 September 2013. Hanny
is a fellow subsidiary of Loyal Concept Limited,
which is a substantial shareholder of the
Company. Rental expenses paid and payable to
Hanny amounted to $165,000 for the fifteen
months ended 31 December 2012 (year ended
30 September 2011: Nil).

33 EXEBALRS
() EEHEEMEBATHRERZ
E——F+-_A=+—HIt+
AEAABTZEARSMT

(i)

(ii)

N—EERF+-_A=+
NB - SEEKE (R
ERBRAB(KED
SIN=MEA UHEE
URHFRREZ=ZEY
¥ FHcAARE
1,032,000 - Z =
+HFE-A—HAZE_ZEZTAH
F+-—A=1+—H8 - - Y
BERZZEZNF+_A=
+—HEH FH:2A
A E #1,014,0007T ©
—E-ZTF—-H—HZEC
T tTZA=1—
B o k@ AR KL
ZHNEBELE H=E
BohBX(®EEEB DR
Z2EEEBELT(REBE LD
ZH c HEZT——F+
—“A=+—HItt+HEAR
WER K ERMKE 2 HE
& B X #1,558,0007C
(Hz—2——Fh A=
+ B 1k % & : 1,209,000
JT) °

R-E—=F=HAAB -
SEHBEEERERA
BRAE ([RE ) FT— 1%
A UHEMRES
BEz2-—EWE M4
% /4600,0007T - H=F
——FhAZt+=ZB=ZE=
T—=FNA=t+—H-
WEAANRETERR
Loyal Concept Limited,Z
AEMBAR - HEZ
T——_H+-A=1+—8H
F+RBEARE N K E
MHisE 2R E
165,000 (B 2 =& —
—FNA=THIEFE:
/) o
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33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(continued)

(a)

(iii)

(iv)

On 6 December 2012, the Group entered into
a loan agreement with Loyal Concept Limited,
which is a substantial shareholder of the
Company. The principal of the loan s
$8,700,000. The loan is repayable within one
year and bears annual interest rate at market
prime rate.

On 26 September 2008, the Group entered
into a leasing arrangement with Beli Yongfu
Investment Consulting (Shenzhen) Co Ltd (“Beli
Yongfu”), a company wholly owned by Dr
Leung to lease a property located in Shanghai,
the PRC, for a term of three years
commencing on 1 October 2008 at an annual
rental of RMB234,000. Rental expenses paid
and payable to Beli Yongfu amounted to
$279,000 in the year ended 30 September
2011.
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 LUEITTSIR)

33 EXEHBANLRS(E)

(%)

(a)

(iii)

(iv)

RZTE—ZFF+ AR
B+ %£E & oyal Concept
Limited (A 7 2 * E &
RIFIVERmE - BEX
A& £8,700,0007T ° %
EEHRAEAR—FANIE
B WA IS EERE
ERFMEEFE o

\—7 )\ﬂzj—LH +/\
EI B R ﬂﬂwa?x
@ AORIDBR R

(f FoKE]- %T@ii
= X -IA/NCIDE I RVAS/)
Mg DEEMLRFEH
EBZ—IEYE BT
ZNF+A—BRTAH
—F - FHEAARE
234,0007T °c L E—F—
—FNA=ZTHIEFER
ENEEMEFKEZ
& F X A279,0007T °




Notes to the Financial Statements B # R Z B 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (555 #855)

33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(continued)

(a)

(v)

On 2 February 2010, the Group entered into a
leasing arrangement with Bili Yongsheng
Investment & Consultation (Shenzhen) Co Ltd
(“Bili Yongsheng”), a company wholly owned
by Dr Leung to lease two properties located in
Beijing, the PRC, for a term of one year
commencing on 18 February 2010 and 1
March 2010 at an annual rental of
RMB96,000 and RMB108,000 respectively.
Rental expenses paid and payable to Bili
Yongsheng amounted to $113,000 in
aggregate for the year ended 30 September
2011.

On 24 June 2010, the Group entered into a
leasing agreement with Bili Yongsheng to lease
a property located in Beijing, the PRC, for a
term of one year commencing on 24 June
2010 at an annual rental of RMB96,000.
Rental expenses paid and payable to Bili
Yongsheng amounted to $86,000 for the year
ended 30 September 2011.

The directors are of the opinion that all the
above transactions (i) to (v) were carried out on
normal commercial terms and in the ordinary
course of business.

In addition to the above transactions, details of
the Group’s amounts due from and to related
parties are disclosed in notes 19 and 23.

 LOETTAR)

33 EXEHBANLXS(E)

(%)

(a)

(v)

RZE—FTF-_H=-H"

SEEEFKEKRER

ORI BRRAI(E
M| REL2EH
BzRaDFIL—1mHE
2 MHEEMRAE
RZMIBBYME - 5 HlH
—TE—ZFTF-_A+N\BR
—E—-TF= [t
BH—F FHE25 5
A AR #96,0007T & A
R #108,0007T ° & &= —
T——FNA=+THItF
EARAENM KRB EF K
BrrHeRAIXAEHAE

113,0007T °
RIE—FFA +m
E' ’ ;/1E< \EEiﬁJiK n—.l—

YA AHEN
m¢lﬁaz IR
B-E-—ZFA-1+KWM
HRFAH—F £/
& B A R ¥96,0007T °
HE-_ZT—FNA=T
BEFEARAEBNREN
BRxEzEEAYA
86,0007T °

BEERA - LHOEWVZ
PMEXRZHYE —KRBEE
FRREEEXEBBRET
#TT o

Br Ll R Z 5N - S EE
Yo Ko f& 1 R B A £ 3K
TA F B M sE 19k 234
= o
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33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(b) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to

(9]

connected transactions

The related party transactions as disclosed in notes
33(a)(i) to (iii) above are in existence or entered into
during the fifteen months ended 31 December 2012
which falls under the definition of connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Details of the continuing connected transactions
during the fifteen months ended 31 December 2012
as set out in note 33(a)(i) is required to be disclosed
in “Continuing Connected Transactions” section of
the Annual Report on page 63. The other
transactions as set out in notes 33(a) (ii) to (v) fall
under Rules 14A.33(3)(c) and 14A.65(4) of the
Listing Rules respectively and are exempted from
reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements in the Listing
Rules.

Key management personnel remuneration
During the period, the remuneration for key
management personnel being short-term employee
benefits amounted to credit of $13,808,000 (year
ended 30 September 2011: $24,624,000) as
disclosed in note 7. The remuneration of directors
and senior management is determined by the
Remuneration Committee having regard to market
trends and the performance and responsibilities of
each individual.
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34 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT 34 IREHKREEIE

On 2 November 2012, the Company announced that it
proposed to reorganise its capital structure by
consolidating every 10 issued and unissued shares into
one consolidated share of par value US$0.10 each, and
subsequently reducing the nominal value of each issued
consolidated share from US$0.10 to US$0.01. The
subsequent share capital will be US$10,000,000 divided
into 1,000,000,000 shares of US$0.01 each. The capital
restructuring was approved by shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting on 21 December 2012 and
by the court of Cayman Islands on 22 February 2013.

In addition, the Company also proposed to issue
468,798,074 to 493,294,716 new ordinary shares of
US$0.01 each by way of a rights issue in the proportion
of one rights share for every ordinary shares then held by
qualifying shareholders at a subscription price of $0.35
per rights share.

Accordingly, the Company has proposed to increase its
issued share capital by 3,742,660,840 shares to
4,824,397,052 shares. These newly issued shares rank pari
passu in all respects with the existing shares. The net
proceeds, after deduction of related expenses, of
approximately $153.1 million to $161.7 million from the
rights issue will be used as to approximately $70 million
for reducing the borrowings of the Group, and
approximately $70 million for development of the Group's
TV program, foreign films distribution and production
related services, as well as for general working capital
purpose.

On 27 March 2013, the Company announced the results
of the rights issue on the basis of one rights share for
every share held on the record date of $0.35 per rights
share. Further details have been disclosed in that
announcement.
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35 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
The key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical
accounting judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies are described below.

(a) Provision for impairment of intangible

assets

The management estimates the recoverable amount
of intangible assets based primarily on the value in
use calculation. In addition, the Group carries out a
review on intangible assets at each balance sheet
date and provision is made when events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Determination as to
whether and how much an asset is impaired
involves management estimates and judgements
such as future selling price, discount rate used in
discounting the projected cash flow and customer
profile. However, the impairment reviews and
calculations are only based on assumptions that are
consistent with the Group’s business plan, but
selling price is affected by a wide range of global
and domestic factors which are beyond the control
of the Group. Favourable change to some
assumptions may allow the Group to avoid the need
to impair any assets in these vyears, whereas
unfavourable changes may cause the assets to
become impaired.

(b) Useful lives of fixed assets and intangible
assets
The Group estimates the useful lives of property,
plant and equipment and intangible asset in order to
determine the amount of depreciation expenses and
amortisation expenses to be recorded according to
the accounting policy set out in notes 2(i)(iii) and
2(j). The useful lives are estimated at the time the
asset is acquired based on historical experience, the
expected usage, wear and tear of the assets, as well
as technical obsolescence arising from changes in
market demands or service output of the assets. The
Group also performs annual reviews on whether the
assumptions made on useful lives continue to be
valid. Such reviews take into account technological
changes, prospective economic utilisation and
physical condition of the assets concerned.
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35 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 35

(continued)

(9]

(d)

(e)

Provision for impairment of goodwiill

The Group reviews whether there are indications of
impairment of goodwill at each balance sheet date
according to the accounting policies set out in
notes 2(e) and 2(I)(ii). The recoverable amounts of
cash-generating units are determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations require
the use of estimates and assumptions made by
management on the future operation of the

business, pre-tax discount rates, and other
assumptions underlying the value-in-use
calculations.

Provision for impairment of receivables
The provisioning policy for impairment of receivables
of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectability and ageing analysis of the receivables
and on management’s judgements. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
the current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer. If the financial conditions
of the customers of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowance may be required.

Provision for impairment of inventories
The management estimates the net realisable value
of inventories such as certain scripts, synopses,
publication rights, copyrights and editing rights
based on the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale according to the accounting policy set
out in note 2(m). In addition, the Group carries out
a review on inventories at each balance sheet date
and provision is made when net realisable value of
inventories is estimated to be less than their
carrying amount.
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36 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 36 &Z_—_f——-—f+-H=+1+

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED —BIE+HEBEAC E MBI
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE FIFTEEN KREMZEST - HEA KRR
MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 BEURERZEZE

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HEZSEUBRETIERE  FF
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and five M ASERMEBE_ST——F
new standards which are not yet effective for the fifteen +TZA=t+—BHLE+TREAEKRE
months ended 31 December 2012 and which have not BEAERARNRUERBHREFHN %
been adopted in these financial statements. These include BT N BAEFER - BERBEET
the following which may be relevant to the Group. P rIpe B B AERE & o

Effective for

accounting
periods
beginning
on or after
RULTHEH
BiEEER
ZEFHEAER
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements — Presentation 1 July 2012
of items of other comprehensive income
(BEBGERDENVR 2 BTN ZIHHF#HE — —E-_F+A—H
ZIEAEMEE B EA]
HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements 1 January 2013
(BB RERADF 0K/ FEHBEHE) —_T—=%—H—H
HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements 1 January 2013
(BEAMBMELEADFENR/AELH) —T—=%—H—H
HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities 1 January 2013
(BB RERRDF 29/ A M EF R m 15 —T—=%—HA—H
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement 1 January 2013
(BEEMBREER)DEBR/AFEFEZE] —T—=%—H—H
HKAS 27, Separate financial statements (2011) 1 January 2013
(BREGHERDR2IR/ B BRI/ T ——F) —E-=%—HA—H
HKAS 28, Investments in associates and joint ventures 1 January 2013
(BB ERDERBR/IRHELELAIREELRZKRE] —T—=F—H—H
Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits 1 January 2013
RIEFKE R GFTERDFER/ESEF/ —E-=%—HA—H
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle 1 January 2013
(BBHBEHEER) —FEENFE_E——FHHFRENE —T—=F—H—H
Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures — Disclosures 1 January 2013
— Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
(BEMBRELNDETR ZEETAR —T—=%—A—H

[T TA: KiE— KFE — BHIFEERYFRE]
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36 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 36 BE-F——F+=-HA=+
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED —BL+AEAEEHIE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE FIFTEEN REFZIER] - MEARS
MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 BoRERZBE(#E
(continued)

Effective for

accounting

periods

beginning

on or after

RUTHH

5 18 #E i

ZEFHEER

Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial instruments. Presentation — Offsetting 1 January 2014

financial assets and financial liabilities
(BB ER)ENRZEBITAR —ET-NF-H—H
[2@ T A 23 — BHHMEEERTERE]

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2015

(BB BRELER)ER/2H T A/ —E—-—hF—H—H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of SRR ERZFEITRERERN
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be FEFEH R 2T EELTM -
in the period of initial application. The Group is therefore It SEREFEBERNRKNZEN
unable to disclose the impact if adopting these new or HMEFICE R A B MEER )
revised HKFRSs will have on its financial position and the HESEEUBARAARKEXER

results of operations when such new or revised HKFRSs a2

are adopted.
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Financial Summary BI#15E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LBl )
Fifteen
months ended
Year ended 30 September 31 December
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BE
+-A=+—-H
BEAA=TRLEE E+HEER
“EENF ZETNF —E2-TF C—T——F —E--f
T T T T T
INCOME STATEMENT BaR
Turnover BEH 322,258 226,129 424,610 742,234 478,842
Profit/(loss) before taxation Buianid
(B518) 219,617 (389,307) 82,631 60,159 (576,397)
Income tax Fig# (2,154) (1,154) (2,603) (5,691) (49,831)
Profit/(loss) after taxation BRBEERN
(E518) 217,463 (390,461) 80,028 54,468 (626,228)
Attributable to: TH&EIERELY:
Equity shareholders of the ATREFEA
Company 217,463 (390,374) 80,472 53,748 (628,058)
Non-controlling interests IR D — (87) (444) 720 1,830
As at
As at 30 September 31 December
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
S
RAA=+H +-A=+-8H
“EEN\& CZETHhEFE —T-TF —T——-F —g--F
T T T T Fx
BALANCE SHEET BEBRBR
Total assets BEELE 1,624,996 1,547,602 2,166,220 2,465,450 2,026,821
Total liabilities BEHE (382,891) (653,836) (1,060,607) (1,122,840) (1,039,213)
Net assets BEEE 1,242,105 893,766 1,105,613 1,342,610 987,608
Total equity attributable to equity 2 FBEZA A
shareholders of the Company JElhEREE 1,242,105 893,064 1,104,719 1,340,407 984,166
Non-controlling interests I PR 1 R 2 — 702 894 2,203 3,442
Total equity EHaE 1,242,105 893,766 1,105,613 1,342,610 987,608
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